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NORTHEAST COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC.

Gorparate Profis

Northeast Community Bancorp, Inc., headquartered in White Plains, New York, is the holding company
for Northeast Community Bank. Established in 1934, Northeast. Community Bank is a community-
oriented financial institution offering traditional financial services to consumers and businesses in the
New York metropolitan area. We conduct our lending activities throughout the Northeastern United
States, including New York, Massachusetts, New Jersey, Connecticut, Pennsylvania, New Hampshire,
Rhode Island, Delaware, Maryland, Maine and Vermont. We attract deposits from the general public and
use those funds to originate multi-family residential, mixed-use and non-residential real estate and

consumer loans, which we hold for investment.
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Northeast Community Bancorp, Inc.’s
common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq
Global Market under the symbol “NECB.”

Locations

Corporate Headguarters

325 Hamilton Avenue
White Plains, New York 10601

Bank Branches

325 Hamilton Avenue
White Plains, New York l_OQ()] =
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590 East 187" Street . .
Bronx, New York 10458 A
242 West 23™ Street v

New York, New York 10011~

Other Properties

300 Hamilton Avenue
White Plains, New York 10601

1353-55 First Avenue
New York, New York 10021

1470 First Avenue
New York, New York 10021

20¢7 86™ Street
Brooklyn, New York 11214

1741 Second Avenue
New York, New York 10218

40 Grove Street
Wellesley, Massachusetts (2482

830 Post Road East
Westport, Connecticut 06880
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April 14, 2008

Dear Stockholder:

You are cordially invited to attend the annual meeting of stockholders of NorthEast Community
Bancorp, Inc. The meeting will be held at the Westchester Marriott Hotel, 670 White Plains Road,
Tarrytown, New York on Wednesday, May 21, 2008 at 1:00 p.m., local time.

The notice of annual meeting and proxy statement appearing on the following pages describe the
formal business to be transacted at the meeting. Officers and directors of the Company, as well as a
representative of Beard Miller Company LLP, the Company’s independent registered public accounting
firm, will be present to respond to appropriate questions of stockholders.

It is important that your shares are represented at this meeting, whether or not you attend the
meeting in person and regardless of the number of shares you own. To make sure your shares are
represented, we urge you to complete and mail the enclosed proxy card. If you attend the meeting, you
may vote in person even if you have préviously mailed a proxy card.

We look forward to seeing you at the meeting.

Sincerely,

A~

Kenneth A. Martinek
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer
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NORTHEAST

CommuNiTy Bancorre INc.

325 Hamilton _Avenue
White Plains, New York 10601
(914) 684-2500

NOTICE OF 2008 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

TIME ANDDATE............... 1:00 p.m. on Wednesday May 21, 2008
PLACE........................ Westchester Marriott Hotel
670 White Plains Road

Tarrytown, New York
ITEMS OF BUSINESS .. ......... 8 To elect three directors to serve for a term of three years;

. (2) . Toratify the appointment of Beard Miller Company LLP
' as our indépendent registered public accounting firm for
fiscal year 2008; and

3) To transact such other business as may properly come
before the meeting and any adjournment or
postponement thereof.

RECORDDATE. ............... In order to vote, you must have been a stockholder at the close of
business on March 31, 2008.

PROXY VOTING . .............. It is important that your shares be represented and voted at the”
meeting. You can vote your shares by completing and returning
the proxy card or voting instruction card sent to you. Voting
instructions are printed on your proxy card or voting instruction
card. You can revoke a proxy at any time prior to its exercise at
the meeting by following the instructions in the proxy statement.

R

Anne Stevenson-DeBlasi
Corporate Secretary
April 14, 2008

NOTE: Whether or not you plan to attend the annual meeting, please vote by marking, signing,
dating and promptly returning the enclosed proxy card in the enclosed envelope.
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NORTHEAST COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC.

PROXY STATEMENT

GENERAL INFORMATION

We are providing this proxy statement to you in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the
Board of Directors of Northeast Community Bancorp, Inc. for the 2008 annual meeting of stockholders
and for any adjournment or postponement of the meeting. In this proxy statement, we may also refer to

”? “ " 8

Northeast Community Bancorp, Inc. as “Northeast Community Bancorp” the “Company, our” or

133 L}]

us.

Northeast Community Bancorp is the holding company for Northeast Community Bank. In this
proxy statement, we may also refer to Northeast Community Bank as the “Bank.”

We are holding the 2008 annual meeting at the Westchester Marriott Hotel, 670 White Plains
Road, Tarrytown, New York on Wednesday, May 21, 2008 at 1:00 p.m., local time.

We intend to mail this proxy statement and the enclosed proxy card to stockholders of record
beginning on or about April 14, 2008.

INFORMATION ABOUT VOTING,
Who Can Vote at the Meeting

You are entitled to vote the shares of Northeast Community Bancorp common stock that you
owned as of the close of business on March 31, 2008. As of the close of business on March 31, 2008, a
total of 13,225,000 shares of Northeast Community Bancorp common stock were outstanding, including
7,273,750 shares of common stock held by Northeast. Commumty Bancorp, MHC. Each share of
common stock has one vote. :

The Company’s Charter provides that, until July 5, 2011, record holders of the Company’s
common stock, other than Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC, who beneficially own, either directly or
indirectly, in excess of 10% of the Company’s outstanding shares are not entitled to any vote in respect of
the shares held in excess of the 10% limit.

Ownership of Shares; Attending the Meeting

You may own shares of Northeast Commﬁnity Bancorp in one or more of the following ways:

. Directly in your name as the stockholder of record;
. . Indirectly through a broker, bank or other holder of record in “street name”; or
. Indirectly in the Northeast Commun'ity Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan or the

Northeast Community Bank 401(k) Plan.




If your shares are registered directly in your name at our transfer agent, Registrar and Transfer
Company, you are the holder of record of these shares and we are sznding these proxy materials directly
to you. As the holder of record, you have-the right to give your prcxy directly to us or to vote in person at
the meeting,.

If you hold your shares in street name, your broker, bank or other holder of record is sending
these proxy materials to you. As the beneficial owner, you have th: right to direct your broker, bank or
other holder of record how to vote by filling out a voting instructio1 form that accompanies your proxy
materials. Your broker, bank or other holder of record may allow vou to provide voting instructions by
telephone or by the Internet. Please see the instruction form proviced by your broker, bank or other
holder of record that accompanies this proxy statement. If you hold your shares in street name, you will
- need proof of ownership to be admitted to the meeting. A recent brokerage statement or letter from a
bank or broker are examples of proof of ownership. If you want to'vote your shares of Northeast
Community Bancorp common stock held in ‘street name in person it the meeting, you must obtain a
written proxy in your name from the broker, bank or other holder ¢f record of your shares.

Quorum and Vote Required : S noe

Quorum. We will have a quorum and will be able to conduct the business of the annual meeting
if the holders of a majonty of the outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote are present at the
meeting, either in person or by proxy. .

Votes Required for Proposals. At this year’s annual meeting, stockholders will elect three
directors to each serve a term of three years. In voting on the election of directors, you may vote in favor
of all the nominees for director, withhold votes as to all nominees, or withhold votes as to specific
nominees. There is no cumulative voting for the election of directors. Directors must be elected by a
plurality of the votes cast at the annual meeting. Thls means that the nominees recewmg the greatest
number of votes will be elected.

In voting on the ratification of the appointment of Beard Miller Company LLP as the Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm, you may vote in favor of the proposal, vote against the
proposal or abstain from voting. To ratify the appointment of Beard Miller Company LLP as our
independent registered public accounting firm for 2008, the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares
represented at the annual meeting and entitled to vote is required.

Routine and Non-Routine Proposals. The rules of the Néw York Stock Exchange determine
whether proposals presented at stockholder meetings are routine or non-routine. If a proposal is routine, a
broket, bank or other entity holding shares for an owner in street name may vote on the proposal without
receiving voting instructions from the owner. If a proposal is non-routine, the broker, bank or other entity
may vote on the proposal only if the owner has provided voting instructions. A broker non-vote occurs
when a broker, bank or other entity holding shares for an owner in street name is unable to vote tn a
particular proposal and has not received voting instructions from the owner. The election of directors and
the ratification of Beard Miller Company LLP as our indépendent accounting firm for 2008 are currently
considered routine matters.

How We Count Votes. If you return valid proxy instructions or attend the meeting in person, we
will count your shares for purposes of determining whether there is a quorum, even if you abstain from
voting. Broker non-votes, if any, also will be counted for purposs s of determining the existence of a
quorum. : - ‘




In the election of directors, votes that are withheld will have no effect on the outcome of the
election.

In counting votes on the proposal to ratify the selection of the independent registered public
accounting firm, abstentions will have the same effect as a vote against the proposal.

Voting by Proxy ) 7 L ' '

The Company’s Board of Diroctors is sending you this proxy statement to request that you allow
your shares of Company common stock to be represented at the annual meeting by the persons named on
the enclosed proxy card. All shares of Company common stock represented at the meeting by properly
executed and dated proxy cards will be voted accordmg to the instructions indicated on the proxy card. If
you sign, date and return a proxy card without giving voting instructions, your shares will be voted as
recommended by the Company’s Board of Directors. The Board of Directors recommends that you
vote for each of the nominees for director and for ratification of the appointment of Beard Miller
Company LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm.

If any matters not descnbed in this proxy statement are properly presented at the annual meeting,
the persons named on the proxy card will use their Judgment to determine how to vote your shares. This
includes a motion to adjourn or postpone the annual meeting 10 solicit additional proxies. If the annual
meeting is postponed or adjourned, your Company common stock may be voted by the persons named on
the proxy card on the new meeting date, pr0v1ded you have not revoked your proxy. We do not know of
any other matters to be presented at the annual meeting.

You may revoke your proxy at any time before the vote is taken at the meeting. To revoke your
proxy, you must either advise the Corporate Secretary of the Company in writing before your common
stock has been voted at the annual meeting, deliver a later dated proxy or attend the meeting and vote
your shares in person. Attendance at the annual meetmg will not itself constitute revocanon of your

proxy.
Participants in the Bank’s ESOP or 401(k) Plan

If you participate in the Northeast Community Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan (the
“ESOP”) or if you hold Company common stock through the Northeast Community Bank 401(k) Plan
(the “401(k) Plan™}, you will receive a voting instruction form for each plan in which you participate that
reflects all shares that you may direct the trustee to vote on your behalf under such plan. Under the terms
of the ESOP, the ESOP trustee votes all shares held by the ESOP, but each ESOP participant may direct
the trustee how to vote thé shares of common stock allocated to his or her account. The ESOP trustee,
subject to the exercise of its fiduciary duties, will vote all unallocated shares of Company common stock
held by the ESOP and all allocated shares for which no voting instructions are received in the same
proportion as shares for which the trustee has received timely voting instructions, Under the terms of the
401(k) Plan, a participant is entitled to direct the trustee how to vote the shares in the Northeast
Community Bancorp, Inc. Stock Fund credited to his or her account. The trustee, subject to its fiduciary
duties, will vote all shares for which no instructions are given or for which instructions were not timely
received in the same proportion as shares for which the trustee received voting instructions. The
deadline for returning your voting instructions to each plan’s trustee is May 14, 2008.




- CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND BOARD MATTERS

Director Independence i

The Company’s Board of Directors currently consists of nifrie members, all of whom are
independent under the listing requirements of The NASDAQ Stock Market, except for Kenneth A.
Martinek, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the Bank, Salvatore Randazzo,
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and the Bank and Charles A.
Martinek, Vice President and Internal Loan Review Officer of the Elank. In determining the
independence of its ditectors, the Board considered transactions, relationships and arrangements between
the Company and its directors that are not required to be disclosed in this proxy statement under the
heading “Transactions with Related Persons,” including consultam services provided to the Bank by
director Kenneth H. Thomas

'
'
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Corporate Governance Policies

The Board of Directors has adopted a corporate governance: policy to govern certain activities,
inctuding: the duties and respon51blllt1es of directors; the composition, responsibilities and operation of
the Board of Directors; the establishment and operation of committses of the Board of Directors;
succession planning; convening executive sessions of independent directors; the Board of Directors’
interaction with management and third parties; and the evaluatlon cif the performance of the Board of
Directors and of the Chief Executive Officer.

Committees of the Board of Directors

The following table identifies the standing committees of our Board of Directors and their
members as of December 31, 2007. All members of each committee are independent in accordance with
the listing requirements of The NASDAQ Stock Market. The Board’s Audit, Compensation, and
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committees each operate under a written charter that is approved by
the Board of Directors. Each committee reviews and reassesses thi: adequacy of its charter at least
annually. The charters of all three committees are available in the Investor Relations section of the
Company’s website, www.necommunitybank.com. .

- ; Nommatmgl
~ Corporate .

Audit ' Compensation " Governance
Director Committee - Cominittee Committee
Diane B. Cefvanaugh ....................... OX* ' X '
Arthur M. LeVine........oovoovvveocoeoenoe ' X+ X '
John F. McKenzie ........ccoooeeeenenns X
Harry (Jeffy A.S. Read.........ccoconnn.. X ) N
Linda M. Swan.....coovivmeivnvcnenn: s . X X*
Kenneth H. Thomas............ccovovovo.. ' , X
Number of Meetings in 2007.......... 4 -8 -3

* Denotes Chairperson : .




Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in its oversight of the Company’s accounting
and reforting practices, the quality and integrity of the Company’s financial reports and the Company’s
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The Audit Committee is also responsible for engaging
the Cornpany’s independent registered public accounting firm and monitoring its conduct and
independence. The Board of Directors has designated Arthur M. Levine as an audit committee financial
expert under the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee approves the compensation objectives for the Company and the
Bank ard establishes the compensation for the Chief Executive Officer and other executives. Our Chief
Executive Officer makes recommendations to the Compensation Committee from time to time regarding
the appropriate mix and level of compensation for other executives. Those recommendations consider the
objectives of our compensation philosophy and the range of compensation programs authorized by the
Comper sation Committee. The Compensation Cornmittee reviews all compensation components for the
Compary’s Chief Executive Officer and other highly compensated executive officers’ compensation
inciuding base salary, annual incentive, long-term incentives and other perquisites. In addition to
reviewing competitive market values, the Compensation Committee also examines the total compensation
mix, pay-for-performance relationship, and how all elements, in the aggregate, comprise the executive’s
total compensation package. Decisions by the Compensation Committee with respect to the
compens ation of executive officers are approved by the full Board of Directors. The Compensation
Commitiee also assists the Board of Directors in evaluating potential candidates for executive positions.

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee

“"he Company’s Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee assists the Board of Directors in
identifying qualified individuals to serve as Board members, in determining the composition of the Board
of Directors and its committees, in monitoring a process to assess Board effectiveness and in developing
and implementing the Company’s corporate governance guidelines. The Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee also considers and recommends the nominees for director to stand for election at
the Company’s annual meeting of stockholders.

Minimum Qualifications. The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee has adopted a set
of criteri¢. that it considers when it selects individuals to be nominated for election to the Board of
Directors A candidate must meet the eligibility requirements set forth in the Company’s bylaws, which
include a requirement that the candidate not have been subject 1o certain criminal or regulatory actions. A
candidate also must meet any qualification requirements set forth in any Board or committee governing
documents. '

Candidates deemed eligible for election to the Board of Directors are evaluated by the
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee using the following criteria for selecting nominees:

. financial, regulator;;/ and business experience;
familiarity with and participation in the local community;

. integrity, honesty and reputation in connection with upholding a position of trust with
respect to customers;

U dedication to the Company and its stockholders; and
independence.




The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee will also consider any other factors the
Committee deems relevant, including age, diversity, size of the Board of Directors and regulatory
disclosure obligations. !

With respect to nominating an existing director for re-eleciion to the Board of Directors, the
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee will consider and rzview an existing director’s Board and
committee attendance and performance; length of Board service; experience, skills and contributions that
the existing director brings to the Board; and the director’s independence.

Director Nomination Process. The process that the Nominating/Corporate Governance
Committee follows to identify and evaluate individuals to be nominated for election to the Board of
Directors is as follows: :

Identification. For purposes of identifying nominees for the Board of Directors, the
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee relies on personal zontacts of the committee members and
other members of the Board of Directors, as well as its knowledge of members of the communities served
by the Bank. The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee will also consider director candidates
recommended by stockholders in accordance with the policy and procedures set forth below. The
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee has not previously used an independent search firm to
identify nominees. . .

Evaluation. In evaluating potential nominees, the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee
determines whether the candidate is eligible and qualified for service on the Board of Directors by
evaluating the candidate under the selection critéria described above. If such individual fulfills these
criteria, the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee will conduct a check of the individual’s
background and interview the candidate to further assess the qualities of the prospective nominee and the
contributions he or she would make to the Board.

Consideration of Recommendations by Stockholders. li.is the policy of the
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company to consider
director candidates recommended by stockholders who appear to be qualified to serve on the Company’s
Board of Directors. The Nominating/Corporate Governance Coramittee may choose not to consider an
unsolicited recommendation if no vacancy exists on the Board of Directors and the Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee does not perceive a need to increase the size of the Board of Directors. To avoid
the unnecessary use of the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee’s resources, the
Nommatmg/Corporate Governance Committee will consider only those director candldates recommended
in accordance with the procedures set forth below.

Procedures to be Followed by Stockholders. To submit a recommendation of a director
candidate to the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee, a stockholder should submit the
following information in writing, addressed to the Chairman of the Nominating/Corporate Governance
Committee, care of the Corporate Secretary, at the main office of the Company:

1. The name of the person recommended as a director candidate;
2. All information relating to such person that is required to be disclosed in solicitations of
proxies for election of directors pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;

3. The written consent of the person being recomraended as a director candidate to being
named in the proxy statement as a nominee and to serving as a director if elected;




4. As to the stockholder making the recommendation, the name and address of such
stockholder as they appear on the Company’s books; provided, however, that if the
stockholder is not a registered holder of the Company’s common stock, the stockholder.
should submit his or her name and-address along with a current written statement from
the record holder of the shares that reflects ownership of the Company’s common stock;
and

5. A statement disclosing whether such stockholder is acting with or on behalf of any other
person and, if applicable, the identity of such person.

In order for a director candidate to be considered for nomination at the Company’s annual
meetin g of stockholders, the recommendation must be received by the Nominating/Corporate Governance
Committee at least 120 calendar days before the date the Company’s proxy statement was released to
stockholders in connection with the previous year’s annual meeting, advanced by one year.

Director Compensation
The following table provides the compensation received by individuals, other than our named
executive officers listed in the “Summary Compensation Table”, who served as directors of the Company

during the 2007 fiscal year.

Fees Earned

‘ or Paid All Other

Name ' in Cash(l)  Compensation Total
Diane B. Cavanaugh .........ccoooo........ $29500  .§ - $29,500
Arthur M. Levine ....ooooovivceneninenees 30,500 - 30,500
Charles A, Martinek...........o..o.cccoonnnn 13,500 - 13,500
John F. McKenzie. ..o 27,500 - 27,500 . '
Linda M. Swan.......ccceiinenennnncnn, 30,000 - 30,000
Harry (Jeff) A.S Read........on.... e 28,500 - 28,500
Kenneth H. Thomas ..........ceevemeoene 29,500 60,000 89,500

{1} Includes fees earned for service with the Company and the Bank.

(2) Amount listed represents Mr. Charles Martinek’s total compensation for his services as
a director in 2007. He is also an employee of the Bank, but is not a named executive officer listed
in the Summary Compensation Table, .

(3) Amount listed represents payment for work performed as a consultant to the Bank.

Cash Retainer and Meeting Fees for Non-Employee Directors. Each non-employee director of
the Bark receives a $3,000 quarterly retainer plus $1,000 per meeting attended. Non-employee directors
also receive a $750 quarterly retainer plus $750 per meeting attended for their service on the Board of
Directcrs of the Company, and $500 per meeting attended for service on committees of the Board of the
Company. Directors do not receive any fees for their service on the Board of Directors of Northeast
Community Bancorp, MHC. Directors who are also employees received the same fees as non-employee
directors until such compensation was discontinued for employee directors beginning in July, 2007,

Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan. The Bank maintains the Northeast Community Bank
Directars’ Deferred Compensation plan to provide director participants with a vehicle to defer fees until
terminztion of service or a change in control. Director participants may elect on or before December 31st
of each year to defer all or part of their fees eamed during the following year. All deferrals are credited



with interest on an annual basis at the prevailing rate payable by the Bank on its 60-month certificate of
deposit. Directors are fully vested at all times in their deferrals. Directors must determine when their
deferrals will be distributed at the time a deferral election is made. Deferrals are also payable upon
disability, termination of service; death, following a change in contol or upon the occurrence of an
unforeseeable emergency.” All distributions will be made in cash. ‘

Outside Director Retirement Plan. The Bank maintains the Northeast Community Bank Outside
Director Retirement Plan to provide non-employee directors with long standing service with a
supplemental retirement benefit. All current hon-employee directors are participants in the plan.
Participating directors are entitled to receive a retirement benefit calculated based on years of service and
director fees paid during the 12 completed calendar months preceditig a directot’s termination of service
multiplied by. a vesting percentage. Participating directors w1th less than 10 years of service will receive
no benefit under the plan Participating diréctors with 10 years but less than 15 years of service will '
receive a benefit based on 50% of the total directors fees paid during the 12 completed calendar months
preceding the director’s termination. Participating directors with 1:3 years but less than 20 years will
receive 75% of the total directors fees paid during the 12 completecd calendar months preceding the
director’s termination. Participating directors with 20 or more years of service will receive a benefit
calculated using 100% of the director fees paid during the 12 months preceding the directors termination.
Participating directors vest in their retirement benefit at a rate of 20% per year for years of service after
January 1, 2006. The annual director retirement benefit is generallv paid monthly over a 120-month
period following the month in which a director terminates his service on the Board of Directors. In the
event a participating director dies while in pay status, the director’s beneficiary will receive his or her
remaining installments beginning in the month 1mmed1ately following the director’s death. In the event a
participating director is terminated in connection with a change in ¢ontrol (as defined in the plan), the
director will receive a lump sum payment equal to the actuarial equivalent of the director’s monthly
benefit. In the event a participating director is removed from the Board of Directors for cause, the
director will forfeit all rights and benefits under the plan.

-

Board and Committee Meetings

During 2007, the Board of Directors held 13 meetings. Each of our current directors attended at
least 90% of the Board meetings and the committee meetings on which such director served during 2007.

Director Attendance at Annual Meetmg of Stockholders E
The Board of Directors encourages each dlrector to attend .mnual meetmgs of stockholders. All
directors attended the 2007 Annua] Meeting of Stockholders:

Code of Ethics and Business Conduct
“The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that is designed to promote the
highest standards of ethical condiict by the Company’s directors, executive officers and employees. The
Code of Ethics and Business Conduct requires that the Company’s directors, executive officers and
employees avoid conflicts of interest, comply with all laws and othzi legal requlrements conduct business
in an honest and ethical manner and otherwise act ‘with integrity and in the Company’s best interest.
Under the terms of the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct, dlrectors executive officers and employees
are required to report any conduct that they believe in good faith to be an actual or apparent violation of
the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct. A copy of the Code of Fthics and Business Conduct can be
found in the Investor Relations section of the Company s websne Www, necommumtybank com. '

i
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As a mechanism to encourage compliance with the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct, the
Comp:ny has established procedures to recetve, retain and treat complaints received regarding
accour ting, internal accounting controls and auditing matters. These procedures ensure that individuals
may si.bmit concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters in a confidential and
anonymous manner. The Code of Ethics and Business Conduct also prohibits the Company from
retalialing against any director, executive officer or employee who reports actual or apparcnt violations of
the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct.

AUDIT RELATED MATTERS

Audit Committee Report '

The Company’s management is responsible for the Company’s internal controls and financial
reporting process. The independent registered public accounting firm (“independent accountants™) are
responsible for performing an independent audit of the Company’s consolidated financial statements and
issuing an opinion on the conformity of those financial statements with generally accepted accounting
principles. The Audit Committee oversees the Company’s internal controls and financial reporting
proces:; on behalf of the Board of Directors.

In this context, the Audit Committee has met and held discussions with management and the
indepeident accountants. Management represented to the Audit Committee that the Company’s
consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and the Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the consolidated financial statements
with management and the independent accountants. The Audit Committee discussed with the
independent accountants matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as
amended (AICPA, Professional Standards, Vol. 1 AV Section 380), as adopted by the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board in Rule 3200T, including the quality, not just the acceptability, of the
accounting principles, the reasonableness of significant judgments, and the clarity of the disclosures in the
financial statements. In addition, the Audit Committee has received the written disclosures and the letter
from tke independent accountants required by the Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1
(Independence Discussions With Audit Committees), as adopted by the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board in Rule 3600T, and has discussed with the independent accountants the independent
accountants’ independence. In concluding that the auditors are independent, the Audit Committee
considered, among other factors, whether the non-audit services provided by the auditors were compatible
with thzir independence.

The Audit Committee discussed with the Company’s independent accountants the overall scope
and plans for their audit. The Audit Committee meets with the independent accountants, with and
withou: management present, to discuss the results of their'examination, their evaluation of the
Company’s internal controls, and the overall quality of the Company’s financial reporting.

In performing all of these functions, the Audit Committee acts only in an oversight capacity. In
its oversight role, the Audit Committee relies on the work and assurances of the Company’s management,
which has the primary responsibility for financial statements and reports, and of the independent
accoun:ants who, in their report, express an opinion on the conformity of the Company’s financial
statements to generally accepted accounting principles. The Audit Committee’s oversight does not
provide it with an independent basis to determine that management has maintained appropriate
accounring and financial reporting principles or policies, or appropriate internal controls and procedures -
designed to assure compliance with accounting standards and applicable laws and regulations.
Furthermore, the Audit Committee’s considerations and discussions with management and the
indeperident accountants do not assure that the Company’s financial statements are presented in




accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, that the audit of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements has been carried out in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States) or that the Company’s independent accountants are in fact
“independent.” ;

In reltance on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the Audit Committee recommended
to the Board of Directors, and the Board has approved, that the audited consolidated financial statements
be included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 for
filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors
also have approved, subject to stockholder ratification, the selection of the Company’s mdependent
registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008,

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of
Northeast Community Bancorp, Inc.

. Arthur M. Levine (Chnirperson) .
. Harry (Jeff) A.S. Read
John F. McKenzie

Auditor Fees . . p

The following table sets forth the fees billed to the Companay for the fiscal years ending
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 by Beard Miller Company LLP.

_ 2007 2006
Audit Fees™ oo ST $106,462 $176,681
Audit-Related Fees® ..o, eeeeeaerenas 2,250 -
Tax Fees™ ..omiierreorereverrreeens s 24,000 20,000

All Other fEE8. .o iuieiinciiierrr st eiiaaas - —

(1) Includes professional services rendercd for the audlt of the Company s annual financial statements and
review of financial statements included in Forms 10- Q, inc. udmg out-of-pocket expenses. The fees
for 2006 include $95,000 related to the Company s mltlal public stock offering (Form S-1 filing and

- 'related comfort letter).
(2) Consists of fees for accounting consultations in connection with acquisitions and asset sales.
(3) Tax fees include the following: preparation of federal, stat: and city tax returns,

Policy on Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services

The Audit Committee is responsible for appointing and seiting the compensation and overseeing
the work of the independent auditor. In accordance with its charte:, the Audit Committee approves, in
advance, all audit and permissible non-audit services to be performed by the independent auditor to
ensure that the independent auditor does not provide any non-audir. services to the Company that are
prohibited by law or regulation. - :

In addition, the Audit Committee has established a policy regarding pre-approval of all audit and
permissible non-audit services provided by the independent auditor. Requests for services by the
independent auditor must be specific as to the particular services to be provided. The request may be
made with respect to either specific services or a type of service for predictable or recurring services.
During the year ended December 31, 2007, all services provided by the independent auditor were
approved, in advance, by the Audit Committee in compliance with these procedures.’




STOCK OWNERSHIP

The following table provides information as of March 31, 2008, with respect to persons known by
the Conipany to be the beneficial owners of more than 5% of the Company’s outstanding common stock.
A person may be considered to own any shares of common stock over which he or she has, directly or
indirectly, sole or shared voting or investing power.

Number of Shares Percent of Common
Name and Address Owned Stock Outstanding (1)
Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC ..., 7,273,750 55.0%

325 Hamilton Avenue
White P ains, New York 10601

Stilwell Value Partners IV, L.P., Stilwell Associates, L.P.,

Stilwell Value LLC, and Joseph Stilwell..............coovvvvvireeeene. 1,110,900 8.4
26 Broadway, 23rd Floor '
New York, New York 10004

Manulifi: Financial Corporation ..........ceciniinnviiconieinnsinn 679,900 5.1
200 Bloor Street East
Toronto. Ontario, Canada M4W 1ES

(1)  Based on 13,225,000 shares of the Company’s common stock outstanding and entitled to vote as of March
3., 2008. .

{2)  Based on information contained in a Schedule 13D filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 5, 2007.

(3)  Based on information contained in a Scheduie 13G filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February &, 2008.

The following table provides information about the shares of Company common stock that may
be cons.dered to be owned by each director or nominee for director of the Company, by the executive
officers named in the Summary Compensation Table and by all directors, nominees for director and
executive officers of the Company as a group as of March 31, 2008. A person may be considered to own
any shaves of common stock over which he or she has, directly or indirectly, sole or shared voting or
investment power. Unless otherwise indicated, none of the shares listed are pledged as security. and each
of the named individuals has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares shown. All
directors and executive officers as a group do not own over 1% of the Company’s outstanding shares
based on 13,225,000 shares of the Company’s common stock outstanding and entitled to vote as of March
31, 2003.
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Number of Shares

Name Owned (1)(2)
Susan Barllel 3,138
Diane B. Cavanaugh ...........ccciiiiiininnninnnen, 500
AU M. LEVINE oo e eeeevee e srseeseesessssesesesseseessesenne, 2,076%
Charles A. MartineK.......occcoovimniinirseneesieees e e 6,778
Kenneth A. Martinek ........occovviviiriinnneniirrreccieeeeeecseeeenens 31,809
John F. McKenzie........ooiiiiinesivnnrenssrererrennennares s 1,500
Salvatore Randazzo ....coeveevevevrecivirerienecreerenremreerrmennrecanns 5,297
Harry (Jeff) A.S. Read ... 5,031
Landa M. SwWan....coviiiiiiiirnersresresrssissrnnrsesssssennes 678
Kenneth H. ThOMAS ... cirssesssseresssrseesesennes ' 3,000
All Executive Officers, Directors and

Director Nominees, as a Group (10 persons)..........c....... 59,807

(1) Includes shares allocated to the account of individuals under the Eank’s ESOP with respect to which
individuals have voting but not investment power as follows: Susan Barile — 1,899 shares, Charles Martinek
— 1,226 shares, Kenneth Martinek — 3,862 shares, and Salvatore Randazzo — 2,495 shares.

(2) Includes shares held in trust in the 401(k) Plan as to which each individual has investment and voting power
as follows: Ms. Barile — 1,239 shares, Mr. Charles Martinek — 557 shares, Mr. Kenpeth Martinek — 27 947
shares and Mr. Randazzo ~ 2,802 shares. These amounts reflect cwnership units in the employer stock fund
of the 401 (k) Plan, which consists of both issuer stock and a reserve of cash. The actual number of shares
held by the individual may vary when such units are actually converted into shares upon distribution of the
units to the individual.

(3) Includes 1,076 shares held by Mr Levine's spouse as trustee.

(4) Includes 370 shares held by Mr. Thomas’ spouse’s IRA.

ITEMS TO BE YOTED ON BY STOCKHOLDERS
Item 1 — Election of Directors ) .

The Board of Directors of Northeast Community Bancorp is presently composed of nine
members. The Board is divided into three classes, each with three -year staggered terms, with one-third of
the directors elected each year. The nominees for election this year are Salvatore Randazzo, Harry (Jeff)
A.S. Read and Linda M. Swan, all of whom are current directors of the Company and the Bank.

Unless you indicate on your proxy card that your shares should not be voted for certain directors,
it is intended that the proxies solicited by the Board of Directors will be voted for the election of the
nominees named below. If any nominee is unable to serve, the persons named on the proxy card will vote
your shares to approve the election of any substitute proposed by the Board of Directors. Alternatively,
the Board of Directors may adopt a resolution to reduce the size of the Board. At this time, the Board of
Directors knows of no reason why any nominee might be unable to serve. The Board of Directors
recommends a vote “FOR” the election of all nominees.

Information regarding the nominees and the directors continuing in office is provided below.
Unless otherwise stated, each individual has held his or her current: occupation for the last five years. The
age indicated in each nominee’s biography is as of December 31, 22007. The tndicated period of service
as a director includes service as a director of the Bank.
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Board Nominees for Terms Ending in 2011

Salvatore Randazzo has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
Northeast Community Bancorp since its formation in 2006. He has served as Executive Vice President
and Chief Financtal Officer of Northeast Community Bank since 2002. Mr. Randazzo joined the Bank as
senior accountant in 1997, Age 40. Director since 2003, -

Harry (Jeff) A.S. Read has been a registered investment adviser with Geneos Wealth
Management, Inc. since January 2006. From January 2004 to December 2005, Mr. Read served as a
registered investment adviser with Financial Network Investment Corp., an ING company. Before
serving with Financial Network Investment Corp., Mr. Read worked as a registered investment adviser
with Allmerica Financial of Worcester, MA, for over twenty years. Mr. Read has served several terms in
the Massachusetts House of Representatives. Age-71. Director since 2005.

Linda M. Swan is a retired Director of the Corporate Activities Division of the Office of Thrift
Superv.sion. Age 58. Director since 1991.

Directors with Terms Ending in 2009
Diane B, Cavanaugh is an attorney. Age 51. Director since 1992,

Charles A. Martinek has served as Vice President and Internal Loan Review Qfficer of Northeast
Community Bank since May, 2007. Prior to that time, Mr. Martinek served as a commercial loan officer
with the Bank since 2001, and as an assistant vice president since 2002. Before serving with the Bank,
Mr. Martinek was a quality control analyst with C. Cowles & Co. Mr. Martinek is also the owner of
Martinck Investment Properties, LLC. Mr. Martinek’s brother, Kenneth Martinek, also serves on the
Board of Directors. Age 46. Director since 2002.

Kenneth H. Thomas has been an independent bank analyst and consultant since 1969 and has
been President of K.H. Thomas Associates, LLC since 1975. Mr. Thomas holds a Ph.D. in Finance from
the Wharton School and has written extensively on the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977. Age 60.
Director since 2001. ‘

Directors with Terms Ending in 2010

" Kenneth A. Martinek has served as Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive
Officer of Northeast Community Bancorp since its formation in 2006. He has served with Northeast
Community Bank since 1976 and has been the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank since
1991. Mr. Martinek was first elected as a director of the Bank in 1983 and was appointed Chairman of
the Board in 2002. Mr. Martinek’s brother, Charles A. Martinek, also serves on the Board of Directors.
Age 55

Arthur M. Levine is a certified public accountant and Managing Member of the accounting firm
A.L. Wellen & Co. Age 73. Director since 1995. ™

John F. McKenzie is a retired insurance éxecutive. Prior to his retirement in early 2008, Mr.

McKentzie was the owner of an insurance agency in Orange, Connecticut, providing multiline personal
and commercial insurance products. Age 64. Director since November 2006.
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Item 2 — Ratification of the Independent Registered Public¢ A‘&'oﬁi’ttinf; Firm

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has appointed Beard Milier Compaiiy :LP to be
its independent registered public accounting firm for the 2008 fiscal year, subject to ratification' by -
stockholders. A representative of Beard Miller Company LLP:is expected to be present at the annual’
meeting to respond to appropriate questions from stockholders ancf will havé the oppoitunity to'make a
statement. should he or she des:re to do so.

e gl T

If the ratification of the appomtment of Beard Miller Company LLP is"hot approved by the -
stockholders at the annual meeting, other indépendent reglstered public accountmg firms may be
consndered by the Audit Commmee of the Board of Dlrectors L S

N e et P R | -t Pt e

" The Board of Directors recommends that stockholders vote “FOR” the ratification-of the
appointment of Beard Miller Company LLP as the Company 5 mdependent reglstered publlc
accounting firm. S ) "

X R P

EXECUTIVE COMPENSA’[‘ ION

v . v

Summary Compensation Table i
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', . iy R T PN

i (- ' ..

The following table prov1des information concerning total compensation earned or paid to the
Chief Executive Officer and the two other most highly’ compensat( id executive officers of the Company
who served in such capacities at December 31, 2007. “These three' officers are referred to as the * ‘named_ *

v
¢ T T AN M

executive officers” in thls proxy statement C SR ,
" . - " LTI . .
t
‘ g : S ST et c a0 Al OtheF ' -
Name and Principal Position Year *-Salary, [z ‘ + Boniis ~Compensation{1} +  Total
Kenneth A. Martinek . o 2007 $251 675 . .. % - $35, 730 . $287,405
President and CEC o 2006 i, 235 750 L ' =7 ‘{ 57, 185 . 292,935
Salvatore Randazzo : - 2007' ' ‘ .152,611 v 10,350 : -28,699 1+ v Y 191,660
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial 2006 138,000 . - 44,732 .- 182,733
Officer : )
' s b Tt e
Susan Barile S 3007 Y 0 129,791 ‘ 12,500 12,689 154,980
Executive Vice President and Chief Mortgage .
Officer . . R T S P PO S P A

(1) Amounts do not include perquisites which, in the aggregate,were I€§s than $10,000 for éach named exetutive
- officer. For Mr. Martinek, Mr: Randazzo and Ms. Barile, amounts in 2007 include allocations under the ESOP
of $22,230, $15,199 and $12,689, respectwely For Mr: Martinek and Mr. Randazzo, amounts in 2007 also
include director fees of $13,500each. , = . ,,+. » TS e ] L ¢

Employment Agreements. The Company and the Bank each maintain employment agreements
with Kenneth A. Martinek and Salvatore Randazzo. The employment agreements with the Company and
the Bank for each executive, which have essentlally identical terms, prov1de that the Company will make
any payments not made by the Bank, but the executives will not receive any duplicative payments. The
Company and the Bank have also entered into an employment agrecement with Susan Barile. Ms, Barile’s
employment agreement prowdes that the Company will make any, payments not made by the Bank Mr,.
Martinek, Mr. Randazzo and Ms. Barile are also referred to below as the “executives” or the * exec_utwe
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.The employment agreements with the executives provide for three-year terms, subject to annual
renewal by the board of directors. The current base salaries under the employment agreements are
$265,750 for Mr. Martinek, $170,000 for Mr. Randazzo and $140,000 for Ms. Barile. The agreements
also provide for participation in employee benefit plans and programs maintained for the benefit of senior
management personnel, including discretionary bonuses, participation in stock-based benefit plans, and
fringe benefits, including an automobile allowance for each executive.

Under the terms of the agreements, the executives are subject to a one year non-compete if they
terminate their employment for good reason (as defined in the agreement} or if the they are terminated
without cause (as defined in the agreement). This non-compete provision shall not apply if the executives
are terninated within one year of a change of control.

See “Other Potential Post-Termination Benefits” for a discussion of the benefits and payments
the executives may receive under their employment agreements upon retirement or termination of
employment. , . Lo

Retireinent Beneﬁts

Supplemental Execuftive Retirement Plan. Under the supplemental executive retirement plan, upon
terminaion of employment on or after the normal retirement age of 65, Messrs. Martinek and Randazzo each
receive an annual retirement benefit equal to fifty percent (50%) of average base salary over the three-year
period preceding termination of employment. Upon termination on or after age 60 and upon completing a
minimum of 20 years of service, Messrs. Martinek and Randazzo may receive an early retirement benefit equal
to the normal retirement benefit, reduced by .25% for each month by which the executive’s age at termination is
less than age 65. The early or normal retirement benefit is payable in equal monthly installments for the greater
of the executive’s lifetime or 15 years following retirement. See “Other Potential Post-Termination Benefits”
for payinents that Mr. Martinek and Mr. Randazzo may receive under this plan upon termination of
employ nent for reasons other than retirement. :

Other ?otential Post-Termination Benefits

Payments Made Upon Termination for Cause. Under the employment agreements, an executive
who is “erminated for cause will receive base salary through the date of termination and retain the rights
to any vested benefits subjecl to the terms of the plan or agreement under which those benefits are
provided.

Payments Made.Upor‘z Termination without Cause or for Good Reason. If the Bank and the
Compay terminate the executives for reasons other than cause, or if the executives terminate voluntarily
under certain circumstances outlined in the agreements that constitute constructive-termination, the
executives, or their beneficiaries should they die prior to receipt of payment, each receive an amount
equal to their base salary and employer contributions to benefit plans payable for the remaining term of
the agreement. The Bank and the Company also agree to continue and/or pay for the executives’ life,
health znd dental coverage for the remaining term of the agreements.

Payments Made Upon Disability. If the executives become disabled, the Bank and the Company
agree to provide them with monthly disability pay equal to 75% of their monthly base salaries (50% of
monthly base salary in the case of Ms. Barile) for a peﬁod ending on the earliest to occur of (1) a return to
full-time employment with the Bank and the Company; (2} death; (3) attainment of age 65; or (4) the
expiration of the agreement. The disability payments under the agreement would be reduced, however,
by the zmount of any short- or long-term disability benefits that would become payable to the executives
under the terms of any disability insurance programs sponsored by the Bank and the Company.
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In the event of termination due to disability, Mr. Martinek and Mr. Randazzo will receive the early
retirement benefit or normal retirement benefit due under the supplemental executive retirément plan if they
have reached age 60 or 65, respectively, prior to termination. If they have not attained early retirement age prior
to termination due to disability, they will receive a benefit equal to their accrued benefit under the plan as of the
date of termination. ' :

Payments Made Upon Death. Upon the death of an executive, the executive’s employment
agreement terminates and the executive’s beneficiary will receive base salary and accrued benefits
through the last day of the month of death.

The supplemental executive retirement plan provides that upcn the death of Mr. Martinek or Mr.
Randazzo while actively employed, they, or their beneficiary, would rzceive an actuarially equivalent lump sum
benefit, calculated as if the executivé had attained age 65 prior to terinination of employment.

Payments Made Upon a Change in Control. Under the employment agreements, if an executive
is involuntarily or constructively terminated within one year of a change in control (as defined in the
agreements), the executive will receive a severance payment equal to three times his or her average
annual compensation over the five preceding years, as well as conlmued life, medlcal and dental benefits
for three years following termination of employment - -

The benefits provided to the executives under the employrnent agreements upon a change in
control are limited to avoid adverse tax consequences to the Compény and the Bank under Section 280G
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. The “280G Limits” provid: that total payments and benefits to the
executives that are contingent upon a change in coritrol shall not equal or exceed in the aggregate three
times the individual’s average annual taxable income over the five préceding years.

The supplemental executive retirement plan provides that upcen termination in connection witha
change in control Mr. Martinek and Mr. Randazzo or their beneficiary, would receive an actuarially equivalent
lump sum benefit, calculated as if they had attained age 65 prior to termination of employment All benefits
received under this plan count towards the executives’ 280G Limits.

Under the terms of our employee stock ownership plan, upon'a change in control (as defined in |
the plan), the plan will terminate and the plan trustee will repay in full any outstanding acquisition loan. |
After repayment of the acquisition loan, all remaining shares of our stock held in the loan suspense
account, all other stock or securities, and any cash proceeds from the sale or other disposition of any
shares of our stock held in the loan suspense account will be allocated among the accounts of all
participants in the plan who were employed by us on the date immediately preceding the effective date of
the change in control. The allocations of shares or cash proceeds shall be credited to each eligible
participant in proportion to the opening balances in their accounts as of the first day of the valuation
period in which the change in conirol occurred. Payments under our employee stock ownership plan do
not count towards the executives’ 280G Limits. '

OTHER INFORMATION RELATING TO
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance ' i

il

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requ1res the Company s executive officers
and directors, and persons who own more than 10% of any registered class of the Company’s equlty
securities, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership w 1th the Securities and Exchange
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Commission. . These individuals are required by regulation to furnish the Company with copies of all
Section 16(a) reports they file. :

Based solely on its review of the copies of the reports it has received and written representations
provided to the Company from the individuals required to file the reports, the Company believes that each
of its executive officers and directors has complied with applicable reporting requirements for
transactions in Company common stock during the fiscal year ended December 31 2007, except for one
Form 4 relating to one purchase that was filed late by director Read.

Policies-and Procedures for Approval of Related Persons Transactions

We maintain a Policy and Procedures Governing Related Person Transactions, which is a written
policy and set of procedures for the review and approval or ratification of transactions involving related
persons. Under the policy, related persons consist of directors, director nominees, executive officers,
persons or entities known to us to be the beneficial owner of more than five percent of any outstanding
class o the voting securities of the Company, or immediate family members or certain affiliated entities
of any of the foregoing persons.

Transactions covered by the policy consist of any financial transaction, arrangement or
relationiship or series of similar transactions, arrangements or relationships, in which: ~

. the aggregate amount involved will or may be expected to exceed $25,000 in any

calendar year;
. the Company is, will, or may be expected to be a participant; and
. any related person has or wiil have a direct or indirect material interest.

The policy excludes certain transactions, including:

. any compensation paid to an executive officer of the Company if the Compensation
Committee of the Board approved (or recommended that the Board approve) such
compensation;

. any compensation paid to a director of the Company if the Board or an authorized
committee of the Board approved such compensation; and

. any transaction with a related person involving consumer and investor financial products

and services provided in the ordinary course of the Company’s'business and on
substantially the same terms as those prevailing at the time for comparable services
provided to unrelated third parties or to the Company’s employees on a broad basis (and,
in the case of loans, in compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002). '

Related person transactions are reviewed by the Audit Committee for the purpose of determining
if the transactions are fair, reasonable and within Company policy and should be ratified and approved.
In determining whether to approve or ratify such transactions, the Audit Committee Wlll consider all
relevan: factors, mcludmg

. whether the terms of the proposed transaction are at least as favorable to the Company as
those that might be achieved with an unaffiliated third party;
the size of the transaction and the amount of consideration payable to the related person;
the nature of the interest of the related person;

. whether the transaction may involve a conflict of interest; and
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. whether the transaction involves the provision of goods and services to the Company. that
are available from unafﬁllated third parties.

A member of the Audit Committee who has an interest in the transaction will abstain from voting
on the decision to recommend approval of the transaction, but may, if so requested by the chair of the -
Audit Committee, participate in some or all of the discussion. .

Transactions with Related Persons ’ ' .

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 generally prohibits loans by the Company to its executive
officers and directors, However, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act contains a specific exemption from such
prohibition for loans by the Bank to its executive officers and directors in compliance with federal
banking regulations. Federal regulations require that all loans or extensions of credit to executive officers
and directors of insured institutions must be made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates
and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons and must not
involve more than the normal risk of repayment or present other unfavorable features. The Bank is
therefore prohibited from making any new loans or extensions of credit to executive officers and directors
at different rates or terms than those offered to the general public, zxcept for loans made pursuant to
programs generaily available to all employees. Notwithstanding this rule, federal regulations permit the
Bank to make loans to executive officers and directors at reduced interest rates if the loan is'made under a
benefit program generally available to all other employees and does not give preference to any executive
officer or director over any other employee, although the Bank does not currently have such a program in
place.

From time to time, the Bank makes loans and extensions of credit to its executive officers and
directors, and members of their immediate families. Such loans are made in the ordinary course of
business, are made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those
prevailing at the time for comparable loans with persons not related to the Bank, and do not involve more
than the normal risk of collectibility or present other unfavorable features. These loans were performing
according to their terms at December 31, 2007.

Pursuant to the Company’s Audit Committee Charter, the Audit Committee periodically reviews,
no less frequently than quarterly, a summary of the Company’s transactions with directors and executive
officers of the Company and with firms that employ directors, as vvell as any other transactions wit
h related person to determine whether the transactions are fair, reasonable and within Company policy
and should be ratified and approved. Also, in accordance with, banking regulations, the Board of
Directors reviews all loans made to a director or executive officer in an amount that, when aggregated
with the amount of all other loans to such person and his or her related interests, exceed the greater of
$25,000 or 5% of the Company’s capital and surplus (up to a max:mum of $500,000) and such loan must
be approved in advance by a majority of the disinterested members of the Board of Directors.
Additionally, pursuant to the Company’s Code of Ethics and Busiaess Conduct, all executive officers and
directors of the Company must disclose any existing or emerging onflicts of interest to the President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Such potential conflicts of interest include, but are not limited
to, the following: (i) the Company conducting business with or competing against an organization in
which a family member of an executive officer or director has an ownership or employment interest and
(ii) the ownership of more than 1% of the outstanding securities or 5% of total assets of any business
entity that does business with or is in competition with the Company
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SUBMISSION OF BUSINESS PROPOSALS AND

STOCKHOLDER NOMINATIONS

The Company must receive proposals that stockholders seek to include in the proxy statement for
the Company’s next annual meeting no later than December 16, 2008. If next year’s annual meeting is
held on i1 date more than 30'calendar days from May 21, 2009, a stockholdér proposal must be received
by a rea:onable time before the Company begins to print and mail its proxy solicitation for such annual
meeting. Any stockholder proposals will be subject to the requirements of the proxy rules adopted by the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Company’s bylaws provide that, in order for a stockholder to make nominations for the
election of directors or proposals for business to be brought before the annual meeting, a stockholder must
deliver notice of such nominations anid/or proposals to the Secretary not less than 30 days before the date
of the annual meeting. However, if less than 40 days’ notice or prior public disclosure of the date of the
annual meeting is given to stockholders, such notice of stockholder nominations or proposals must be
received not later than the close of buisiness of the tenth day following the day on which notice of the date
of the annual meeting was mailed to stockholders or prior public disclosure of the meeting date was made.
A copy of the bylaws may be obtained from the Company.

STOCKHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS

"The Company encourages stockholder communications to the Board of Directors and/or
individual directors. All communications from stockholders should be addressed to Northeast -
Community Bancorp, Inc., 325 Hamilton Avenue, White Plains, New York 10601. Communications to
the Board of Directors should be in the care of Anne Stevenson-DeBlasi, Corporate Secretary.
Commuriications to individual directors should be sent to such director at the Company’s address.
Stockholders who wish to communicate with a Committee of the Board should send their
communications to the care of the Chairperson of the particular committee, with a copy to Linda M.
Swan, thz Chair of the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee. It is in the discretion of the
Nominating/Corporate Governance Comrmittee whether any communication sent to the full Board should
be brought before the full Board.

MISCELLANEOUS

The Company will pay the cost of this proxy solicitation. The Company will reimburse
brokeragz firms and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for reasonable expenses incurred by them
in sending proxy materials to the beneficial owners of the Company. Additionally, directors, officers and
other em>loyees of the Company may solicit proxies personally or by telephone. None of these persons
will recei ve additional compensation for these activities.

The Company’s Annual Report to Stockholders has been included with this proxy statement.
Any stockholder as of March 31, 2008, who has not received a copy of the Annual Report may obtain a
copy by writing to the Corporate Secretary of the Company. The Annual Report is not to be treated as
part of the proxy solicitation material or as having been incorporated by reference into this proxy
statemen’.,
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If you and others who share your address own your shares in “street name,” your broker or other
holder of record may be sending only one annual report and proxy statement to your address. This
practice, known as “householding,” is designed to reduce our printing and postage costs. However, if a
stockholder residing at such an address wishes to receive a separite annual report or proxy statement in
the future, he or she should contact the broker or other holder of record. If you own your shares in “street
name” and are receiving multiple copies of our annual report and proxy statement, you can request
householding by contacting your broker or other holder of record. .

Whether or not you plan to attend the annual meeting, pl:ase vote by marking, signing, dating and
promptly returning the enclosed proxy,card in the enclosed envelope. :

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EEZEN

Anne Stevensor-DeBlasi
Corporate Secretary

White Plains, New York
April 14, 2008
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
[X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007
OR
[ 1] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission File Number: 0-51852
NORTHEAST COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
UNITED STATES ' 06-1786701
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This report contains certain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the federal securities
laws. These statements are not historical facts, rather, they are statements based on Northeast Community
Bancorp Inc.’s current expectations regarding its business strategies, intended results and future performance.
Forward-looking statements are preceded by terms such as “expects,” “believes,” “anticipates,” “intends” and
similar expressions.

[T "o

Management’s ability to predict results or the effect of future plans or strategies is inherently uncertain.
Factors which could affect actual results include interest rate trends, the general economic climate in the market
area in which Northeast Community Bancorp, Inc. operates, as well as nationwide, Northeast Community Bancorp,
Inc.’s ability to control costs and expenses, competitive products and pricing, loan delinguency rates and changes in
federal and state legislation and regulation. For further discussion of factors thar may affect our results, see “Item
TA. Risk Factors” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Form 10-K"”). These factors should be considered in
evaluating the forward-looking statements and undue reliance should not be placed on such statements. Northeast
Community Bancorp, Inc. assumes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements.

PART1
Item 1, BUSINESS

General

Northeast Community Bancorp, Inc. (*Northeast Community Bancorp” or the “Company”) is a federally
chartered stock holding company established on July 5, 2006 to be the holdmg company for Northeast Community
Bank (the “Bank™). Northeast Community Bancorp’s business activity is the ownership of the outstanding capital
stock of the Bank, Northeast Community Bancorp does not own or lease any property but instead uses the premises,
equipment and other property of the Bank with the payment of appropriate rental fees, as required by apphcab]e law
and regulations, under the terms of an expense allocanon agreemenl

Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC (the “MHC") is the Company’s federally chartered mutual holding
company parent. As a mutual holding company, the MHC is a non-stock company that has as its members the
depositor:. of Northeast Community Bank. The MHC does not engage in any business activity other than owning a
majority of the common stock of Northeast Community Bancorp, So long as we remain in the mutual holding
company form of organization, the MHC will own a majority of the outstanding shares of Northeast Community
Bancorp.

MNortheast Community Bank has been conducting business throughout the New York metropolitan area for
more than 74 years, Northeast Community Bank was originally chartered in 1934. In 2006, Northeast Community
Bank changed its name from “Fourth Federal Savings Bank” to “Northeast Community Bank.”

We operate as a community-oriented financial institution offering traditional financial services to
consumer: and businesses in our market area and our lending territory. We attract deposits from the general public
and use those funds to originate mult1 -family residential, mixed-use and non-residential real estate and consumer
loans, which we hold for investment. We have been originating multi-family and mixed-use real estate loans in the
New York metropolitan area for more than 50 years and expanded our lending territory to include all of New York,
Massachusetts, New Jersey, Connecticut, Pennsylvania, New Hampshire, Rhode Island, Delaware, Maryland, Maine
and Vermont, which we refer to collectively in this Form 10-K as the “Northeastern United States”. We do not offer
one- to four-family residential loans.

Curing 2007, we continued our plan to diversify the products and services that we offer our customers, In
March 2007, we hired two individuals with significant commercial bank lending experience, a senior lending officer
and a comnercial loan underwriter, for our new commercial lending department. Since establishing the department,
our commercial loan portfolio has increased from no tommercial loans at March 31, 2007 to $5. 5 million of
commercizl loans committed with $3.0 million drawu at December 31, 2007, '
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In November 2007, we completed the acquisition of the operating assets of Hayden Financial Group, LLC,
an investment advisory firm located in Westport, Connecticut. This acquisition gives us the ability to offer -
investment advisory and financial.planning services under the name Hayden Financial Group; a division of the
Bank, through a networking arrangement with a registered broker-dealer and investment advisor.

Available Information

Our website address is www,.necommunitybank.com. JInformation on our website should not be considered
a part of this Form 10-K. . .

Market Area .

We are headquartered in White Plains, New York, which is located in Westchester Cohnty and we operate
through our main office in White Plains and our five other full-service branch offices in the New York City
boroughs of Manhattan (New York County), Brooklyn (Kings County) and Bronx (Bronx County). We also operate
a loan production office in Wellesley, Massachusetts. We generate deposits through our main office and five branch
offices. We conduct lending activities throughout the Northeastern United States, including New York,
Massachusetts, New Jersey, Connecticut, Pennsylvania, New Hampshire, Rhode Island, Delaware, Maryland.

. Maine and Vermont.

Qur primary market area includes a population base with a broad cross section of wealth, employment and
ethnicity. We operate in markets that generally have experienced relatively slow demographic growth, a
characteristic typical of mature urban markets located throughout the Nu)rtheast region. New York County is a
relatively affluent market, reflecting the mﬂuence of Wall Street along wnth the presence of a broad spectrum of
Fortune 500 companies. Comparatively, ngs County and Bronx Cou 1ty are home to a broad socioeconomic,
spectrum, with a significant portion of the respectlve popu]atlons emplcyed in relatively low wage blue collar jobs.
Westchester County is also an affluent market, serving asa deswed subirban location for commuting into New York
City as well as reflecting growth of higher paying jobs in the county, perticularly in White Plains.

While‘each‘ of the states in our lending area has different economic characteristics, our customer base in
these states tends to be similar to our customer base in New York and it comprised mostly of owners of low to
moderate income apartment buildings or non-residential real estate in low to moderate income areas. Outside the
State of New York, our largest concentration of real estate loans is 1n Massachusetts.

Competition

"We face significant competition for the attraction of deposit§ The New York metropolitan area has a
significant concentration of financial institutions, including large money center and regional banks, community -
banks and credit unions. Over the pasl 10 years, consolidation of the banking industry in the New York
metropolitan area has continued, resulting in targer and increasingly eflicient competitors. We also face competition
for investors’ funds from money market funds, mutual funds and other corporate and government securities. At
June 30, 2007, which is the most recent date for which data is available from the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, we held 0.07% or less of the deposits in each of Wesichester, Kings and New, York counties, New
York, and approximately 0.61% of the deposits in Bronx County, New York, ‘

We also face significant competmon for the ongmatlon of loans. Our competition for loans comes
primarily from financial institutions in our lending territory, and, to a lesser extent, from other financial service
providers such as insurance companies, hedge funds and mortgage companies. As our lending territory is based
around densely populated areas surrounding urban centers, we face significant competmon from regional banks,

savings banks and commercial banks in the New York metropolitan ar:a as well as in the other ten states that we
designate as our lending territory. The competition for loans that we e1counter, as well as the types of institutions
with which we compete, varies from time to time dependmg upon certin factors, including the general availability
of lendable funds and credit, general and local gconomic condluons current interest rate levels, volatility in the
mortgage markets and other factors which are not readily predlctable




We expect competition to increase in the future as a result of legislative, regulatory and technological
changes and the continuing trend of consolidation in the financial services industry. Technological-advances, for
example, have lowered the barriers to market entry, allowed banks and other lenders to expand their geographic
reach by providing services over the Internet and made it possible for non-depository institutions to offer products
and services that traditionally have been provided by banks. Changes in federal law permit affiliation among banks,
securities firms and insurance companies, which promotes a competitive environment in the financial services
industry. Competition for deposits and the origination of loans could limit our future growth.

Lending Activities

GGeneral. We originate loans primarily for investment purposes. The largest segment of our loan portfolio
is multi-fumily residential real estate loans. We also originate mixed-use real estate loans and non-residential real
estate loans, and in 2007 we began originating commercial loans. To a limited degree, we make consumer loans and
purchase articipation interests in construction loans. We currently do not originate one- to four-family residential
loans and have no present intention to do so in the future. We consider our lending territory to be the Northeastern
United States, including New York, Massachusetts, New Jersey, Connecticut, Pennsylvania, New Hampshire, Rhode
Island, Delaware, Maryland, Maine and Vermont. We do not originate or purchase subprime loans.

Multi-family and Mixed-use Real Estate Loans. We offer adjustable rate mortgage loans secured by
multi-family and mixed-use real estate, These loans are comprised primarily of loans on low to moderate income
apartment buildings located in our lending territory and include, to a limited degree, loans on cooperative apartment
buildings (in the New York area), loans for Section 8 multi-family housing and loans for single room occupancy
(“SRO™) multi-family housing properties. In New York, most of the apartment buildings that we lend on are rent-
stabilized. Mixed-use real estate loans are secured by properties that are intended for both residential and business
use. Until 2004, our policy had been to originate multi-family and mixed-use real estate loans primarily in the New
York metropolitan area. In January 2004, we opened a loan production office in Wellesley, Massachusetts and
currently originate multi-family and mixed-use real estate loans throughout the Northeastern United States.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, originations-of mulii-family real estate loans in states other than -
New Yorl: represented 60.8% of our total multi-family mortgage loan originations, and originations of mixed-use
real estate loans in states other than New York represented 16.7% of our total mixed-use mortgage loan originations.
For the year ended December 31, 2006, originations of multi-family real estate loans in states other than New York
represented 55.7% of our total multi-family mortgage loan originations, and.originations of mixed-use real estate
loans in siates other than New York represented 39.3% of our total mixed-use mortgage loan originations. We
intend to c:ontinue to increase our originations of multi-family and mixed-use real estate loans in the eleven states in
which we are currently lending,

\We originate a variety of adjustable-rate and balloon multi-family and mixed-use real estate loans, The
adjustable-rate loans have fixed rates for a period of up tofive years and then adjust every three to five years
thereafter, based on the terms of the loan. Maturities on these loans can be up to 15 years, and typically they
amortize over a 20 to 30-year period. Interest rates on our adjustable-rate loans are adjusted to a rate that equals the
applicable three-year or five-year constant maturity treasury index plus a margin. The balloon loans have a
maximum maturity of five years. The lifetime interest rate cap is five percentage points over the initial interest rate
of the oan (four percentage points for loans with three-year terms). For a mixed-use property with commercial
space accounting for over 30% of the gross operating.income of the building, competition permitting, the rate
offered is generally based on the rate we offer for non-residential real estate loans. Due to the nature of our
borrowers and our lending niche, the typical multi-family or mixed-use real estate loan refinances within the first
five-year period and, in doing so, generates prepayment penalties ranging from five points to one point of the
outstandir g loan balance. Under our loan-refinancing program, borrowers who are current under the terms and
conditions of their contractual obligations can apply to refinance their existing loans to the rates and terms then
offered on new loans after the payment of their contractual prepayment penalties.

In making multi-family and mixed-use real estate loans, we primarily consider the net operating income
generated by the real estate to support the debt service, the financial resources, income level and managerial
expertise of the borrower, the marketability of the property and our lending experience with the borrower, We do
not typica ly require a personal guarantee of the borrower, but may do so depending on the location, building




condition or credit profile. We rate the property underlying the loan as Class A, B or C. Our current policy is to
require a minimum debt service coverage ratio (the ratio of earnings after subtracting all operating expenses to debt
service payments) of 1.20% to 1.35% depending on the rating of the underlying property. On multi-family. and
mixed-use real estate loans, our current policy is to finance up to 75% of the lesser of the appraised value or
purchase price of the property securing the loan-on purchases and refinences of Class A and B properties and up to -
70% of the lesser of the appraised value or purchase price for properties-that are rated Class C. Properties securing .
multi-family and mixed-use real estate loans are appraised by independent appraisers, inspected by us and generally
require Phase 1 environmental surveys.

We have been originating multi-family and mixed-use real estzte loans in the New York market area for
more than 50 years. In the New York market area, our ability to continne to grow our portfolio is dependent on the
continuation of our relationships with mortgage brokers, as the multi-family and mixed-use real estate loan market is
primarily broker driven.. We have'longstanding relationships with mortgage brokers in the New York market area,
who are familiar with our lending practices and our underwriting standards. - During the past.four years we have
developed similar retationships with imortgage brokers in the other states within our. lendmg territory and w1ll
continue to do so in order to grow our loan portfolio. . R e ' -
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The majority of the multi-family real estate loans in our portfolio are qecured by twenty unit to one hundred
unit apattment buildings. At December 31, 2007, the majority of our mixed-use real estate loans are.secured by
properties that are at least 70% remdennal but contain some non-resideatial space. !

' On December 31 2007 1the largest outstanding multi- famtly or mixed-use real estate loan had a balance of
$4.0 mllllon and is performing according to its terms at December 31, 2007, This loan is secured by a mixed-use
building with 10 apartment units and 5 commercial units located in Nevs York. As of December 31, 2007, the. .
average loan balance in our multi-family and mixed-use portfolio was approximately $572,000.

Non-residential Real Estate Loans. We offer adjustable-rate mortgage loans secured by non-residential
real estate in the same lending territory that we offer multi-family and mixed-use real estate loans. Our non-
residential real estate loans are generally secured by office buildings, mzdical facilities and retail shopping centers
that are primarily located in moderate.income areas wnhm our lending lerritory. We intend to continue to grow thls
segment of our loan portfolio. - . - ..« i "
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Qur non-residential real estate loans are structured in a manner similar to our multi-family and mixed-use
real estate loans, typically at a {ixed rate of interest for three to five years and then a rate that adjusts every three to
five years over the term of the loan, which is typically 15:years. Interest rates and payments on these-loans generally
are based on the three-year or five-year constant maturity treasury inder. plus a margin. The lifetime interest rate
cap is five percentage points over the initial interest rate of the loan (four percentage points for loans with three-year
terms), Loans are secured by. first mortgages that generally do not exceed 75%.of the property’s-appraised value.
Properties securing non-residential real estate loans are appraised by independent appraisers and inspected by us.

' . ' . . - - iy . - \ L
- We also charge prepayment penalties, with five points of the outstanding loan balance generally being -
charged on loans that refinance in the first year of the. mortgage, scaling down.to one point on loans that refinance in.
year five. These loans are typically repaid or. the term extended before maturity, in which case a new rateis .
negotiated to meet market conditions and an extension of the loan is exccuted for a new term with a new
amortization schedule. Qur non-residential real estate loans tend to refinance within the first five-year period. -

Our assessment of credit risk and our underwriting standards and procedures for non-residential real estate
loans are similar to those applicable to our multi-family and mixed-use real estate loans. In reaching a decision on
whether to make a non-residential real estate loan, we consider the net operating income of the property, the
borrower’s expertise, credit history and profitability and the value of th: underlying property. -In addition, with
respect to rental properties, we will also consider the term of the lease and the credit quality of the lenants, *We have
generally required that the properties securing non-residential real estat: loans have debt service coverage ratios (the
ratio of earnings after subtracting all operating expenses-to debt service payments) of at'least 1.30%. Phase 1
environmental surveys and property inspections are required for all loans. - . : St
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At December 31, 2007, we had $79.3 million in non-residential real estate loans outstanding, or 28.0% of
total loans. Originations in states other than New York represented 22.8% of our total originations of non-
residential real estate loans for the year ended December 31, 2007 and 28.3% for the year ended December 31, 2006.

At December 31, 2007, the largest outstanding non-residential real estate loan had an cutstanding balance
of $3.5 million. This loan is secured by a multi-tenant building located in New York, New York, and was
performing according to its terms at December 31, 2007, At December 31, 2007, the largest outstanding non-
residential real estate loan relationship with one borrower was comprised of five loans totaling $9.0 million secured’
by an of’ice building located in Larchmont, New York and four shopping centers located in New York and
Connecticut. These five loans were performing according to their terms at December 31, 2007. As of December 31
2007, the average balance of loans in our non-residential loan portfolio was $1.1 million.

In addition, at December 31, 2007, we had one loan with a net present value of $16.9 million that we
received in connection with the sale of our First Avenue branch office building. See “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Sale of New York City Branch Office.”

Egquity Lines of Credit on Real Estate Loans. Northeast Community Bank offers equity lines of credit on
multi-family; mixed-use and non-residential real estate properties on which it holds the first mortgage.

For existing borrowers only, we offer an equity line of credit program secured by a second mortgage on'the
borrowe ’s mukti-family, mixed-use or non-residential property. All lines of credit are underwritten separately from
the first mortgage and support debt service ratios and loan-to-value ratios that when combined with the first-
mortgag> meet or exceed our current underwriting standards for multi-family, mixed-use and non-residential real
estate loans. Borrowers typically hold these lines in reserve and use them for ongoing property improvements or to
purchase. additional properties when the opportunity arises.

Qur equity lin€s of credit are interest only for the first five years and then the remaining term of the line of
credit is tied to the remaining term on the first mortgage on the multi-farnily, mixed-use or non-residential property.
After the: first five years, a payment of both principal and interest is required. Interest rates and payments on our
equity liaes of credit are indexed to the prime rate as published in The Wall Street Journal and adjusted as the prime
rate changes. Interest rate adjustments on equity lines of crédit are limited to a spec1ﬁed maximum percentage over
the initial interest rate. '

Commercial Loans. Continuing our plan to diversify our portfolio, both geographically and by product
type, in March 2007 we hired two individuals with significant commercial bank lending experience, a senior iending
officer and a commercial underwriter, for our new commercial lending department, Interest rates and payments on
our commercial loans are typically indexed to the prime rate as published in the Wall Street Journal and adjusted as
the prim: rate changes. Since establishing the department, our commercial loan portfolio has increased from no
commerc:ial loans at March 31, 2007 to $5.5 million of commercial loans committed with $3.0 million drawn at
December 31, 2007.

At December 31, 2007, the largest commercial loan was a line of credit totaling $2.0 million, with a zero
outstanding balance and a remaining available line of credit of $2.0 million. This loan is secured by the assets of a
construc:ion business located in Lincoln Park, New Jersey. The largest outstanding commercial loan was a line of
credit of $1.25 million, with an outstanding balance totaling $1.1 million and a remaining available line of credit of
$170,000. This loan is secured by the inventory of numismatic coins that the borrower of this loan sells to the public
via various tele-marketing medias. The borrower is located in New Jersey. Both commercial iines of credit were
performing according to terms at December 31, 2007.

Construction Loans. We purchase participation interests in loans to finance the construction of multi-

famnily, riixed-use and non-residential buildings. We perform our own underwriting analysis on each of our o

participation interests before purchasing such loans. Construction loans are typically for twelve to twenty-four
month terms and pay interest only during that period. All construction loans are underwritten as if they will:be
rental properties and must meet our normal debt service and loan to value ratio requirements on an as completed
basis. T.e outstanding balance of construction loan participation interests purchased totaled $9.5 million at
December 31, 2007.




At December 31, 2007, the largest outstanding construction Joau participation secured by one property was
comprised of two loans with an aggregate outstanding balance of $4.1 million and a commitment of $1.9 million for
a total potential exposure of $6.0 million. This balance represents our 23% participation ownership of the loans.
These loans are secured by a building undergoing renovation to become i hotel with 151 guestrooms located in
Long Beach, New York, and were performing according to its terms at December 31, 2007. We also own a 35.6%
participation interest in a loan to the same borrower. Our outstanding baance and total commitment for this loan.
was $2.5 million at December 31, 2007. This loan is secured by a two-story commercial building located in New
York; New York. The aforementioned three loans were performing according to their terms at December 31, 2007.

* . Consumer Loans. We offer loans secured by savings accounts.or certificates of deposit (share loans) and-.
overdraft protection for checking accounts which is linked to statement savings accounts and has the ability to
transfer funds from the statement savings account to the checking account when needed to cover overdrafts. At
December 31, 2007, our portfolio of consumer loans was $88,000, or 0.03% of total loans. -
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Loan Underwriting Risks." . Co -

: Adjustable-Rate Loans. While we anticipate that adjustable-rate loans will better offset the adverse effects
of an increase in interest rates as compared to fixed-rate loans, the increased payments required of adjustable-rate . .
loan borrowers in a rising interest rate environment could cause an increzse in delinquencies and defaults. The
marketability of the underlying property also may be adversely affected in a high interest rate environment. In
addition, although adjustable-rate loans help make our loan portfolio more responsive to changes in interest rates,
the extent of this interest.sensitivity is limited by the lifetime interest rate.adjustment limits.

M ulti- famlly, Mtxed—use and Nan-reszdentml Real Estate Loans. Loans secured by multi-family, mlxed-
use and non-residential real estate generally have larger balances and involve a greater degree of risk than one- to
four-family residential mortgage loans. Of primary concern in multi-family, mixed-use and non-residential real
estate lending is the borrower’s creditworthiness and the feasibility and cash flow potential of the project. Payments
on loans secured by income properties often depend on successful operation and management of the properties.s As
a result, repayment of such loans may be subject to a greater extent than residential real estate loans to adverse
conditions in the real estate market or the economy.: To monitor cash flows on income producing properties, we
require borrowers to provide annual financial statements for all multi-faniily, mixed-use and non-residential rea!  +
estate loans. In reaching a decision on whether to make a multi-family, riixed-use or non-residential real estate
loan, we consider the net operating income of the property, the borrower's expertise, credit history and profitability
and the value of the underlying property. In addition, with respect to non-residential real estate properties, we also
consider the term of the lease and the quality of the tenants. An appraisal of the real estate used as collateral for the
real estate loan is also obtained as part of the underwriting process. We lave generally required that the properties
securing these real estate loans have debt service coverage ratios (the ratio of earnings after subtracting all operating
expenses to debt service payments) of at least.1.20%. In underwriting thzse loans, we take into account projected
increases in interest rates in determining whether a loan meets our debt scrvice coverage ratios at the higher interest
rate under the adjustable rate mortgage. Environmental surveys and property inspections are utilized for all loans.

Commercial Loans. Unlike residential mortgage loans, which ¢re generally made on the basis of a
borrower’s ability to make repayment from his or her employment or othzr income and are secured by real property
whose value tends tO be more ascertainable, commercial loans are of higher risk and tend to be made on the basis of
a borrower’s ability to make repayment from the cash flow of the borrower’s business. As a result, the availability
of funds for the repayment of commercial loans may depend substantiallyz on the success.of the business itself. 7
Further, any collateral securing such loans may depreciate over time, mar-be difficult to appraise and may fluctuate
in value. '

Construction Loans. We have purchased participation interests in loans to.finance the construction of
multi-family, mixed-use and non-residential buildings. Construction fin:ncing affords the Bank the opportunity to
achieve higher interest rates and fees with shorter terms to maturity than do residential mortgage loans. However,
construction financing is generally considered to involve a higher degree of risk of loss than long-term financing on
improved, occupied real estate due to (1) the increased difficulty at the time the loan is made of estimating the
building costs and the selling price of the property to be built; (2) the increased difficulty and costs of monitoring the.
loan; (3) the higher degree of sensitivity to increases in market rates of interest; and (4} the increased difficulty of




working out loan problems. The Bank has sought to minimize this risk by limiting the amount of construction loan
participation interests outstanding at any time and by spreading the participations among multi-family, mixed-use
and non-residential projects. We perform our own underwriting analysis on each of our construction loan
participation interests before purchasing such loans and therefore believe there is no greater risk of default on these
obligations than on a construction loan originated by the Bank. See “Mortgage and Construction Loan Originations
and Participations” below, ‘

Consumer Loans. Because the only consumer loans we otfer are secured by passbook savings accounts,
certificates of deposit accounts or statement savings accounts, we do not believe these loans represent a risk of loss
to the Bank.

~ Mortgage and Construction Loan Originations and Participations. Our mortgage loan originations come
from a number of sources. The primary source of mortgage loan originations are referrals from brokers, existing
customers, advertising and personal contacts by our loan officers. Over the years, we have developed working
relationships with many mortgage brokers in our lending territory. Under the terms of the agreements with such
brokers, "he brokers refer potentiat loans to us. The loans are underwritten and approved by us utilizing our
underwriting policies and standards. The mortgage brokers typically receive a fee from the borrower upon the
funding of the loans by us, In some instances, we will originate a real estate loan based on premium pricing.
Historically, mortgage brokers have been the source of the majority of the multi-family, mixed-use and non-
residential real estate loans originated by us. We generally retain for our portfolio all of the loans that we originate.

During 2007, we purchased participation interests in loans to finance the construction of multi-family,

mixed-use and non-residential properties. The outstanding balance of the construction loan participation interests
purchase.] totaled $9.5 million at December 31, 2007. We perform our own underwriting analysis on each of our
participalion interests before purchasing such loans and therefore believe there is no greater risk of default on these
obligations. However, in a purchased participation loan, we do not service the loan and thus are subject to the

policies 2nd practices of the lead lender with regard to monitoring delinquencies, pursuing collections and instituting,

foreclosure proceedings, all of which are reviewed and approved in advance of any participation transaction. We
review all of the documentation relating to any loan in which we participate, including annual financial statements -
provided by a borrower. Additionally, we receive monthly statements on the loan from the lead lender.

‘We intend to continue to consider, on a case-by-case basis, additional participation purchases that conform
to our underwriting standards.

Commercial Loan Originations. We originate commercial loans from contacts made by our commercial
loan officer. Our commercial lending department does not utilize the services of loan brokers.

The Bank will consider granting credit to commercial and industrial businesses located within our lending
area which is defined as the Northeastern United States. The Bank will consider the credit needs of businesses
located ir. our lending area if we can effectively service the credit and if the customer has a strong financial position.

'We will consider loans to small businesses with revenues normally not to exceed $65.0 million. The small
business may be one that manufactures wholesalé or retail products and/or services. Generally, we will consider
loans to small businesses such as: retail sales and services, such as grocery, restaurants, clothing, furniture,
appliances, hardware, automotive parts, automobiles and trucks; wholesale businesses, such as automotive parts and
industrial parts and equipment; manufacturing businesses, such as tool and die shops and commercial manufacturers
and contractors with strong financials and well-known principals.

Mortgage and Construction Loan Approval Procedures and Authority. Our lending activities follow
written, non-discriminatory, underwriting standards and loan origination procedures established by our board of
directors and management. The board has granted the Mortgage Loan Origination Group (which is comprised of all
our loan cfficers and our staff attorney) with loan approval authority for mortgage loans on income producing
property :nd construction loans in amounts of up to $1.0 million.

Mortgage and construction loans in amounts between $1.0 million and $2.0 million, in addition to being
approved by the Loan Origination Group, must be approved by the president. Mortgage and construction loans in




amounts gteater than $2.0 miilion, in addition to being approved by the I_oan Origination Group, must be approved
by the president, the chief financial officer and a majority of the non- emoloyee directors. At each monthly meeting
of the board of directors, the board ratifies all commitments issued, rega’:dless of size.
, . K 1 : s ' 4

Commercial Loan Approval Procedures and Authority. Our EOmmcrcial‘!ending activities follow written,
non-discriminatory, underwriting standards and loan origination procedures established by our board of directors
and management. The board has granted the Commercial Loan Orlgmallon Group (which is comprised of our
commercial loan officer, our commercial loan underwriter, our chief financial ofﬁcer and our president) with loan
approval authority for commercial loans up to $2.0 million. - .

Loans in amounts greater than $2.0 million, in addition to being; approved by the Commercial Loan
Origination Group, must be approved by a majority of the non-employet: directors. At each monthly meeting of the
board of directors, the board ratifies all commitments issued, regardless of size. e

Loans to One Borrower. The maximum amotint that we-mdy l2nd to one borrower and the borrower’s
related entities generally is limited, by regulation, to 15%of our stated capital and reserves. At December 31, 2007,
our generdl régulatory limit on loans to one borrower was approximateh? $11.7 million. On December 31, 2007, our
largest lending relationship consists of five loans totaling $9.0 million seéured by an office building located in New
York and four shopping centers located in New York and Connecticut. These loans were performing according to
their terms at December 31, 2007, See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations—Sale of New York City Branch Office.”

+ In connection with the sale of our First Avénue branch office bfﬁlding, the Bank received an $18.0 millién
promissory note from the purchaser which, at December 31, 2007, had & net present'value of $16.9 million, that is -
payable in two equal installments at June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2009. This promissery note is not treated as a loan
or extension of credit subject to the regulatory limits on loans to one'borrower.” ' : i '

Loan Commitments. We issue commitments for adjustable- -rate loans conditioned upon the occurrence of
certain events. Commitments to originate adjustable-rate loans are legally'binding agreements to lend to our
customers. Generally, our adjustable-rate loan commitments expire after 60 days: - '

Investment Activities

We have legal authority to invest in various types of liquid assets, including U.S. Treasury obligations,
securities of various federal agencies and municipal governments, depoiits at the Federal Home Loan Bank of New
York and certificates of deposit of federally insured institutions. Withirrcertain regulatory limits, we also may
invest a portion of our assets in mutual funds. While we have the authority under applicable law to invest in
derivative securities, we had no investments in derivative securities at Crecember 31, 2007.

. N N .

At December 3t, 2007, our securities and short-term investments.totaled $40.4 million and consisted
primarily of $36.8 million in interest-earning deposits with the Federal [Home Loan Bank of New York, $3.2 million
in mortgage-backed securities issved primarily by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and Ginnie Mae, and $414,000 in
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock. At December 31, 2007, we had no investments in callable securities.

Our securities and short-term investments-are primarily viewed as a source of liquidity, Our investment
management policy is designed to provide adequate liguidity to meet any reasonable decline in deposits and any
anticipated increase in the loan portfolio through conversion of secondary . reserves to cash and to provide safety of
principal and interest through investment in securities under limitations and restrictions prescribed in banking
regulations. Consistent with liquidity and safety requirements, our policy-is designed to generate a significant
amount of stable income and to provide collateral for advances and repurchase agreements, The policy is also
designed to serve as a counter-cyclical balance to earnings in that the. investment portfolio will absorb funds when
loan demand is low and will infuse funds when loan demand is high.

!
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Deposit Activities and Other Sources of Funds

General, Deposits, borrowings and loan repayments are the major sources of our funds for lending and
other investment purposes. Loan repayments are a relatively stable source of funds, while deposit inflows and
ouiflows and loan prepayments are significantly influenced by general interest rates and money market conditions,

Deposit Accounts. Except for certificates of deposit obtained through two nationwide listing services, as
describei below, substantially all of our depositors are residents of the State of New York. We offer a variety of
deposit accounts with a range of interest rates and terms. Our deposits principally consist of interest-bearing
demand accounts (such as NOW and money market accounts), regular savings accounts, noninterest-bearing
demand accounts (such as checkmg accounts) and certificates of deposn At December 31, 2007, we did not utilize
brokered dep051ts. Deposit account terms vary accordmg to the minimum balance required, the time periods the
funds mu st remain on deposit and the interest rate, among other factors. In determining the terms of our deposit
accounts. we consider the rates offered by our competition, our liquidity needs, profitability to us, maturity matching
deposit and loan products, and customer preferences and concerns. We generally review our deposit mix and
pricing weekly, Qur current strategy is to offer competitive rates and to be in the middle of the market for rates on
all types of deposit products,

ur deposits are typically obtained from customers residing in or working in the communities in which our
branch offices are located, and we rely on our long-standing relationships with our customers and competitive
interest rutes to retain these deposits. In the future, as we open new branches in other states, we expect our deposits
will also I>e obtained from those states. We may also, in the future, utilize our website to attract deposits.

~ During 2007, we.began to offer non-brokered certificates of deposit through two nationwide certificate of
deposit listing services. Certificates of deposit are accepted from banks, credit unions, non-profit organizations and
certain corporations in amounts greater then $75,000 and less then $100,000.

llorrowinés. We may utilize advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York to supplemeat our
supply of investable funds. The Federal Home Loan Bank functions as a central reserve bank providing credit for its
member f nancial institutions. As a member, we are required to own capital stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank
and are authorized to apply for advances on the security of such stock and certain of our whole first mortgage loans
and other assets (principally securities which are obligations of, or guaranteed by, the United States), provided
certain standards related to creditworthiness have been met. Advances are made under several different programs,
each having its own interest rate and range of maturities. Depending on the program, limitations on the amount of
advances ire based either on a fixed percentage of an institution’s net worth or on the Federal Home Loan Bank’s
assessment of the institution’s creditworthiness.

Investment Advisory and Financial Plafmiug Activities .
In November 2007, Northeast Community Bank purchased for $2.0 million the operating assets of Hayden
Financtal Group, LLC. The Bank formed a Division within the Bank known as Hayden Financial Group, and the
Division offers investment advisory and financial planning services through a networking arrangement with a
registered sroker-dealer and investment advisor.
#

.

Hayden Financial Grou‘p performs a wide range of financial planning and investment advisory services
based on the needs of a diversified client base including, but not limited to: wealth management based on a clients’
time dimer sion, risk aversionftolerance, value system and specific purposes of a portfolio; transition planning trom
one career to another, especially the transition to retirement; conducting risk assessment and management on issues
related to various kinds of insurance covered contingencies; and providing assistance relating to the ultimate
disposition of assets. In this capacity, Hayden Financial Group helps clients understand the issues and coordinates
with estate planning attorneys as.needed, o

Personnel

P i . .

As of December 31, 2007, we had 87 full-time employees and 2 part-time employeés, none of whom is
represented by a collective bargaining unit. We believe our relationship with our employees is good.




Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we may be party to various legal proceedings incidént to our business. At December
31, 2007, we were not a party to any pending legal proceedings that we believe would have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. 1 : '
Subsidiaries Lo e e

Northeast Community Bancorp’s only subsidiary is Northeast Community Bank. The Bank has one wholly
owned subsidiary, New England Commercial Properties LLC, a New-YorK limitéd liability company. New England
Commercial Properties was formed in October 2007 16 facilitate the purchase or lease of real property by the Bank.
As of December 31, 2007, New Engtand Commercial Properties, LLC had been inactive Since its formation and had
no assets or employees. In the future, we may also use New England Clommercial Properties to hold real estate
owned acquired by the Bank through foreclosure or deed-in-lieu of for:closure.

REGULATION AND SUPERVI §ION
General

Northeast Community Bank, as an insured federal savings association, is subject to extensive regulation,
examination and supervision by the Office of Thrift Supervision, as its primary federal regulator, and the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation, as its deposits insurer. Northeast Community Bank is a member of the Federal
Home Loan Bank System and its deposit accounts are insured up to applicable limits by the Deposit Insurance Fund
managed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Northeast Community Bank must file reports with the
Office of Thrift Supervision and the Federal Déposit Insurance Corporation concerning its activities and financial
condition in additicn to obtaining regulatory approvals prior to entering into certain transactions such as mergers
with, or acquisitions of, other financial institutions. There are periodic: examinations by the Office of Thrift
Supervision and, under certain circumstances, the Federal Deposit Insiirance Corporation to evaluate Northeast
Community Bank's safety and soundness and compliance with various regulatory requirements. This regulation and
supervision establishes a comprehensive framework of activities in which an institution can engage and is intended
primarily for the protection of the insurance fund and depositors. The regulatory structure also gives the regulatory
authorities extensive discretion in connection with their supervisory and enforcement activities and examination
policies, including policies with respect to the classification of assets ind the establishment of adequate loan loss
reserves for regulatory purposes. Any change in such policies, whethzr by the Office of Thrift Supervision, the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or Congress, could have a material adverse impact on Northeast Community
Bancorp, Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC and Northeast Community Bank and their operations. Northeast
Community Bancorp and Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC, as savings and loan holding companies, are
required to file certain reports with, are subject to examination by, and otherwise must comply with the rules and
regulations of the Office of Thrift Supervision. Northeast Communit/ Bancorp also is subject to the rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commissios under the fedieral securities laws,

. | '

Certain of the regulatory requirements that are applicable to Northeast Community Bank, Northeast
Community Bancorp and Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC are cescribed below. This description of statutes
and regulations is not intended to be a complete explanation of such statutes and regulations and their effects on
Northeast Community Bank, Northeast Community Bancorp and Noitheast Community Bancorp, MHC and is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the actual statutes and reguiations. !

4 1

Regulation of Federal Savings Associations :

Business Activities. Federal law and regulations govern the activities of federal savings banks, such as
Northeast Community Bank. These laws and regulations delineate the nature and extent of the business activities in
which federal savings banks may engage. In particular, certain lending authority for federal savings banks, e.g.,
commercial, non-residential real property loans and consumer loans, is limited to a specified percentage of the
institution’s capital or assets.

' . i
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~ Capital Requirements. The Office of Thrift Supervision’s capital regulations require federal savings
institutions to meet three minimum capital standards: a 1.5% tangible capital to total assets ratio, a 4% leverage
ratio (3'% for institutions receiving the highest rating on the CAMELS examination rating system} and an 8% risk-
based ciipital ratio, In addition, the prompt corrective action standards discussed below also establish, in effect, a
minimun 2% tangible capital standard, a 4% leverage ratio (3% for institutions receiving the highest rating on the
CAMELS system) and, together with the risk-based capital standard itself, a 4% Tier 1 risk-based capital standard.
The Office of Thrift Supervision regulations also require that, in meeting the tangible, leverage and risk-based
capital standards, instilnmions must generally deduct investmenis in and loans 10 subsidiaries engaged in activities as
principal that are not permissible for a national bank.

The risk-based capital standard requires federal savings institutions to maintain Tier 1 (core) and total
capital (‘which is defined as core capital and supplementary capital, less certain specified deductions from total -
capital sach as reciprocal holdings of depository institution capital, instruments and equity investments) to risk-
weighte assets of at least 4% and 89, réspectively. In determining the amount of risk-weighted assets, all assets,
includin; certain off-balance sheet assets, recourse obligations, residual interests and direct credit substitutes, are
multiplied by a risk-weight factor of 0% to 100%, assigned by the Office of Thrift Supervision capital regulation
based on the risks believed inherent in the type of asset. Core (Tier 1) capital is generally defined as common
stockhol ders’ equity (including retained earnings), certain noncumulative perpetual preferred stock and related
surplus end minority interests in equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, less intangibles other than certain
mortgage: servicing rights and credit card relationships. The components of supplementary (Tier 2) capital currently
include cumulative preferred stock, long-term perpetual preferred stock, mandatory convertible securities,
subordinated debt and intermediate preferred stock, the allowance for loan and lease losses limited 10 a maximum of
1.25% of risk-weighted assets and up to 45% of unrealized gains on avatlable-for-sale equity securities with readily
determinable fair market values. Overall, the amount of supplementary capital included as part of total capital
cannot exceed 100% of core capital,

The Office of Thrift Supervision also has authority to establish individual minimum capital requirements in
appropridte cases upon a determination that an institution’s capital level is or may become inadequate in light of the
particular circumstances. At December 31, 2007, Northeast Community Bank met each of these capital
requirem 2nts. :

Prompt Corrective Regulatory Action. The Office of Thrift Supervision is required to take certain
superviscry actions against undercapitalized institutions, the severity of which depends upon the institution’s degree
of undercapitalization. Generally, a savings institution that has a ratio of total capital to risk weighted assets of less
than 8%, a ratio of Tier 1 {core) capital to risk-weighted assets of less than 4% or a ratio of core capital to total
assets of  ess than 4% (3% or less for institutions with the highest examination rating) is considered to be
“undercapitalized.” A savings institution that has a total risk-based capital ratio less than 6%, a Tier | capital ratio
of less thiin 3% or a leverage ratio that is less than 3% is considered to be “significantly undercapitalized” and a
savings institution that has a tangible capital to assets ratio equal to or less than 2% is deemed to be “critically
undercapitalized.” Subject to a narrow exception, the Office of Thrift Supervision is required to appoint a receiver
or conserator within specified time frames for an institution that is “critically undercapitalized.” An institution
must file .1 capital restoration plan with the Office of Thrift Supervision within 45 days of the date it receives notice
that it is “undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitalized™ or “critically undercapitalized.” Compliance with the
plan must be guaranteed by any parent holding company. In addition, numerous mandatory supervisory actions
became iramediately applicable to an undercapitalized institution, including, but not limited to, increased monitoring
by regulators and restrictions on growth, capital distributions and expansion. “Significantly undercapitatized” and
“critically undercapitalized” institutions are subject to more extensive mandatory regulatory actions. The Office of
Thrift Supervision could also take any one of a number of discretionary supervisory actions, including the issuance
of a capitz] directive and the replacement of senior executive officers and directors.

Loans to One Borrower. Federal law provides that savings institutions are generally subject to the limits
on loans ty one borrower applicable to national banks. ‘Generally, subject to certain exceptions, savings institution
may not make a loan or extend credit to a single or related group of borrowers in excess of 15% of its unimpaired
capital and surplus. An additional amount may be lent, equal to 10% of unimpaired capital and surplus, if secured
by specified readily-marketable collateral.

.
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Standards for Safety and Soundness. The federal banking agencies have adopted Interagency Guidelines
prescribing Standards for Safety and Soundness in various areas such as internal controls and information systems,
internal audit, loan documentation and credit underwriting, interest rate exposure, asset growth and quality, earnings
and compensation, fees and benefits. The guidelines set forth the safety and soundness. standards that the federal
banking agencies use to identify and address problems at insured depository institutions before capital becomes
impaired. If the Office of Thrift Supervision determines that a savings institution fails to meet any standard
prescribed by the guidelines, the Office of Thrift Supervision may requite the institution to submit an acceptable
plan to achieve compliance with the standard, :

Limitation on Capital Distributions. Office of Thrift Supervision regulations impose limitations upon ail
capital distributions by a savings institution, including cash dividends, payments to repurchase its shares and
payments to stockholders of another institution in a cash-out merger. Under the regulations, an application to and
the prior approval of the Office of Thrift Supervision is required before any capital distribution if the institution does
not meet the criteria for “expedited treatment” of applications under Oftice of Thrift Supervision regulations (i.e.,
generally, examination and Community Reinvestment Act ratings in the two top categories), the total capital
distributions for the calendar year exceed net income for that year plus “he amount of retained net income for the
preceding two years, the institution would be undercapitalized following the distribution or the distribution would
otherwise be contrary to a statute, regulation or agreement with the Off.ce of Thrift Supervision. If an application is
not required, the institution must still provide prior notice to the Office of Thrift Supervision of the capital
distribution if, like Northeast Community Bank, it is a subsidiary of a holding company. If Northeast Community
Bank's capital.were ever to fall below its regulatory requirements or thi: Office of Thrift Supervision notified it that
it was in need of increased supervision, its ability to make capital distri>utions could be restricted. In addition, the
Office of Thrift Supervision could prohibit a proposed capital distribution that would otherwise be permitted by the
regulation, if the agency determines that such distribution would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice.

Qualified Thrift Lender Test. Federal law requires savings institutions to meet a qualified thrift lender
test. Under the test, a savings association is required to either qualify as a “domestic building and loan association”
under the Internal Revenue Code or maintain at least 65% of its “portfolio assets” (total assets less: (i) specified
liquid assets up to 20% of total assets; (i) intangibles, inctuding goodvill; and (iii) the value of property used to
conduct business) in certain “qualified thrift investments™ (primarily residential mortgages and related investments,
including certain mortgage-backed securities but also including educat.on, credit card and small business loans) in at
least 9 months out of each 12 month period. 1 ' .

A savings institution that fails the qualified thrift lender test is subject to ccrtain'operating restrictions and
may be required to convert to a bank charter. As of December 31, 2007, Northeast Community Bank maintained
88.1% of its portfolio assets in qualified thrift investments and, therefore, met the qualified thrift lender test.

Transactions with Related Parties. Federal law permits Northeast Community Bank to lend to, and engage
in certain other transactions with (collectively, “covered transactions”), “affiliates” (i.e., generally, any company that
controls or is under common control with an institution), including Northeast Community Bancorp and Northeast
Community Bancorp, MHC and their other subsidiaries. The aggregate amount of covered transactions with any
individual affiliate is limited to 10% of the capital and surplus of the savings institution, The aggregate amount of
covered transactions with all affiliates is limited to 20% of the savings institution’s capital and surplus. Loans and
other specified transactions with affiliates are required to be secured by collateral in an amount and of a type
described in federal taw. The purchase of low quality assets from affi jates is generally prohibited. Transactions
with affiliates must be on terms and under circumstances that are at least as favorable to the institution as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with non-affiliated companies. In addition, savings institutions
are prohibited from lending to any affiliate that is engaged in activitie: that are not permissible for bank holding
companics and no savings institution may purchase the securities of any affiliate other than a subsidiary. .

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act generally prohibits loans by Northeast Community Bancorp to its executive
officers and directors. However, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act contains a secific exemption from such prohibition for
loans by Northeast Community Bank to its executive officers and directors in compliance with federal banking
regulations. Federal regulations require that ali loans or extensions of credit to executive officers and directors of
insured institutions must be made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons and must not involve more than the normal risk
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of repayrment or present other unfavorable features. Northeast Community Bank is therefore prohibited from
making any new loans or extensions of credit to executive officers and directors at different rates or terms than those
offered to the general public, Notwithstanding this rule, federat regulations permit Northeast Community Bank to
make loans 10 executive officers and directors at reduced interest rates if the loan is made under a benefit program
generally available to all other employees and does not give preference to any executive officer or director over any
other employee. Loans to executive officers are subject to additional limitations based on the type of loan involved.

[n addition, loans made to a director or executive officer in an amount that, when aggregated with the
amount of all other loans to the person and his or her related interests, are in excess of the greater of $25,000 or 5%
of Northeast Community Bank's capital and surplus, up to a maximum of $500,000, must be approved in advance
by a majority of the disinterested members of the board of directors.

Enforcement. The Office of Thrift Supervision has primary enforcement responsibility over federal
savings institutions and has the authority to bring actions against the institution and all institution-affiliated parties,
including stockholders. and any attorneys, appraisers and accountants who knowingly or recklessly participate in
wrongful action likely to have an adverse effect on an insured institution. Formal enforcement action may range
from the . ssuance of a capital directive or cease and desist order to removal of officers and/or directors to institution
of receivership, conservatorship or termination of deposit insurance. Civil penalties cover a wide range of violations
and can amount to $25,000 per day, or even $1 million per day in especially egregious cases. The Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation has authority to recommend to the Director of the Office of Thrift Supervision that
enforcemznt action be taken with respect to a particular savings institution. If action is not taken by the Director, the
Federal Ceposit Insurance Corporation has authority to take such action under certain circumstances. Federal law
also estaktlishes criminal penalties for certain violations.

Assessments, Federal savings banks are required to pay assessments to the Office of Thrift Supervision to -
fund its operations. The general assessments, paid on a semi-annual basis, are based upon the savings institution’s
total assets, including consolidated subsidiaries, financial condition and complexity of its portfolio. The Office of
Thrift Supervision assessments paid by Northeast Community Bank for the year ended December 31, 2007 totaled
$78,000.

Insurance of Deposit Accounts. The deposits of Northeast Community Bank are insured up to applicable
limits by the Deposit Insurance Fund of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Deposit Insurance Fund is
the successor to the Bank Insurance Fund and the Savings Association [nsurance Fund, which were merged in 2006.
The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation amended its risk-based assessment system for 2007 to implement
authority zranted by the Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005 (“Reform Act”). Under the revised system,
insured institutions are assigned to one of four risk categories based on supervisory evaluations, regulatory capital
levels and certain other factors. An institution’s assessment rate depends upon the category to which it is assigned,
Risk category I, which contains the least risky depository institutions, is expected to include more than 90% of all
institutions. Unlike the other categories, Risk Category I contains further risk differentiation based on the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation’s analysis of financial ratios, examination component ratings and other information.
Assessme at rates are determined by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and currently range from five to
seven bas:s points for the healthiest institutions (Risk Category I) to 43 basis points of assessable deposits for the
riskiest (Risk Category IV). The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation may adjust rates uniformly from one
quarter to the next, except that no single adjustment can exceed three basis points. No instifution may pay a
dividend if in default of its Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation assessment.

The Reform Act also provided for a one-time credit for eligible institutions based on their assessment base
as of December 31, 1996. Subject to certain limitations, credits could be used beginning in 2007 to offset
assessments until exhausted. Northeast Community Bank’s one-time credit approximated $308,000, of which
$74,000 was used to offset assessments in 2007, and $234,000 is still available for future use. The Reform Act also
provided for the possibility that the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation may pay dividends to insured institutions
once the Dieposit Insurance fund reserve ratio equals or exceeds 1.35% of estimated insured deposits.

In addition 1o the assessment for déposit insurance, institutions are required to make payments on bonds
issued in t1e late 1980s by the Financing Corporation to recapitalize a predecessor deposit insurance fund. That




payment is established quarterly and during the calendar year ending December 31, 2007 averaged 1.18 basis points
of assessable deposits. ‘

The Reform Act provided the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation with authority to adjust the Deposit
Insurance Fund ratio to insured deposits within a range of 1.15% and 1.53%, in contrast to the prior statutorily fixed
ratio of 1.25%. The ratio, which is viewed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation as the level that the fund
should achieve, was established by the agency at 1.25% for 2008, which is unchanged from 2007,

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation has authority to increase insurance assessments. A significant
increase in insurance premiums would likely have an adverse effect on.the operating expenses and results of
operations of Northeast Community Bank. Management cannot predict what insurance assessment rates will be in
the future,

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation upon a finding that
the institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices, is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue
operations or has violated any applicable law, regulation, rule, order or condition imposed by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation or the Office of Thrift Supervision. The management of Northeast Community Bank does
not know of any practice, condition or violation that might-lead to termination of deposit insurance.

Federal Home Loan Bank System. Northeast Community Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan
Bank System, which consists of 12 regional Federal Home Loan Banks. The Federal Home Loan Bank provides a
central credit facility primarily for member institutions. Northeast Community Bank, as a member of the Federal
Home Loan Bank of New York, is required to acquire and hold shares of capital stock in that Federal Home Loan
Bank. Northeast Community Bank was in compliance with this requirenmient with an investment in Federal Home
Loan Bank stock at December 31, 2007 of $414,000. Federal Home Loan Bank advances must be secured by
specified types of collateral.

The Federal Home Loan Banks are required to provide funds for the resolution of insolvent thrifts in the
late 1980s and to contribute funds for affordable housing programs. These requirements could reduce the amount of
dividends that the Federal Home Loan Banks pay to their members and could also result in the Federal Home Loan
Banks imposing a higher rate of interest on advances to their members. :f dividends were reduced, or interest on
future Federal Home Loan Bank advances increased, our net interest income would likely also be reduced.

Federal Reserve System. The Federal Reserve Board regulatlons require savings institutions to maintain
non-interest earning reserves against their transaction accounts (primarily Negotiable Order of Withdrawal (NOW)
and regular checking accounts). The regulations generally provide that reserves be maintained against aggregate
transaction accounts as follows: a 3% reserve ratio is assessed on net transaction accounts up to and including $43.9
million; a 10% reserve ratio is applied above $43.9 million. The first $9.3 million of otherwise reservable balances
are exempted from the reserve requirements. The amounts are adjusted annually. Northeast Community Bank
complies with the foregoing requirements.

Holding Company Regulation ' =

General. Northeast Community Bancorp and Northeast Commitnity Bancorp, MHC are savings and loan
holding companics within the meaning of federal law. As such, they are registered with the Office of Thrift
Supervision and are subject to Office of Thrift Supervision regulations, :xaminations, supervision, reporting
requirements and regulations concerning corporate governance and activities. In addition, the Office of Thrift
Supervision has enforcement authority over Northeast Community Bancorp and Northeast Community Bancorp,
MHC and their non-savings institution subsidiaries. Among other things, this authority permits the Office of Thrift
Supervision to restrict or prohibit activities that are determined to be a serious risk to Northeast Community Bank.

Restrictions Applicable to Mutual Holding Companies. Acco:ding to federal law and Office of Thrift
Supervision regulations, a mutual holding company, such as Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC, may generally
engage in the following activities: (1) investing in the stock of a bank; (2) acquiring a mutual association through
the merger of such association into a bank subsidiary of such holding company or an interim bank subsidiary of such
holding company; (3) merging with or acquiring another holding company, one of whose subsidiaries is a bank; and
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(4) any activity approved by the Federal Reserve Board for a bank holding company or financial holding company
or previously approved by Office of Thrift Superviston for multiple savings and lean holding companies. In
addition, mutual holding companies may engage in activities permitted for financial holding companies. Financial
holding companies may engage in a broad array of financial service activities including insurance and securities.

JFederal law prohibits a savings and loan holding company, including a federal mutual holding company,
from dire:tty or indirectly, or through one or more subsidiaries, acquiring more than 5% of the voting stock of
another sivings association, or its holding company, without prior written approval of the Office of Thrift
Supervision. Federal law also prohibits a savings and loan holding company from acquiring more than 5% of a
company engaged in activities other than those authorized for savings and loan holding companies by federal law, or
acquiring or retaining control of a depository institution that is not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation. In evaluating applications by holding companies to acquire savings associations, the Office of Thrift
Supervision must consider the financial and managerial resources and future prospects of the company and
institution involved, the effect of the acquisition on the risk to the insurance funds, the convenience and needs of the
community and competitive factors. '

"The Office of Thrift Supervision is prohibited from approving any acquisition that would result in a
multiple «avings and loan holding company controlling savings associations in more than one state, except: (1) the
approval of interstate supervisory acquisitions by savings and loan holding companies, and (2) the acquisition of a
savings association in another state if the laws of the state of the target savings institution specifically permit such
acquisitions. The states vary in the extent to which they permit interstate savings and loan holding company
acquisitions.

Stock Holding Company Subsidiary Regulation. The Office of Thrift Supervision has adopted regulations
governiny, the two-tier mutual holding company form of organization.and subsidiary stock holding companies that
are controlled by mutual holding companies. Northeast Community Bancorp is the stock holding company .
subsidiars of Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC. Northeast Community Bancorp is permitted to engage in }
activities that are permitted for Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC subject to the same restrictions and '
conditions.

\Waivers of Dividends by Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC. Office of Thrift Supervision regulations
require Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC to notify the Office of Thrift Supervision if it proposes to waive
receipt of dividends from Northeast Community Bancorp. The Office of Thrift Supervision reviews dividend
waiver notices on a case-by-case basis, and, in general, does not object to any such waiver if: (i) the waiver would
not be detrimental to the safe and'sound operation of the savings association; and (it} the mutual holding company’s
board of directors determines that such waiver is consistent with such directors’ fiduciary duties to the mutual
holding company's members. Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC waived receipt of d1v1dends from Northeast
Commun ty Bancorp in 2007,

Conversion of Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC fo Stock Form. Office of Thrift Supervision
regulations permit Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC to convert from the mutual form of organization to the
capital stock form of organization. There can be no assurance when, if ever, a conversion transaction will occur, and
the board of directors has no current intention or plan to undertake a conversion transaction. In a conversion
transacticn, a new holding company would be formed as the suécessor to Northeast Community Bancorp, Northeast
Commun ty Bancorp, MHC's corporate existence would end, and certain depositors of Northeast Community Bank
would receive the right to subscribe for additional shares of the new holding company. In a conversion transaction,
each shar: of common stock held by stockholders other than Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC would be
automatically converted into a number of shares of common stock of the new holding company based on an
exchange ratio designed to ensure that stockholders other than Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC own the same
percentage of common stock in the new holding company as they owned in Northeast Community Bancorp
immediat:ly before conversion. The total number of shares held by stockholders other than Northeast Community
Bancorp, MHC after a conversion transaction would be increased by any purchases by such stockholders in the
stock offering conducted as part of the conversion tran,sa,cnp,n

Acquisition of Co!:.tra;l'. Under the federal Change in Bank Control Act, a notice must be submitted to the
Office of Thrift Supervision if any person (including a company), or group acting in concert, seeks to acquire direct
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or indirgct “control” of a savings and loan helding company or savings dssociation. An acquisition of “control” can
occur upon the acquisition of 10% or more of the voting stock of a savinzs and loan holding company or savings
institution or as otherwise defined by the Office of Thrift Supervision. Ulnder the Change in Bank Control Act, the
Office of Thrift Supervision has 60 days from the filing of a complete nctice to act, taking into consideratidn certain
factors, including the financial and managerial resources of the acquirer :ind the anti-trust effects of the acquisition.
Any company that so acquires contrel would then be subject to regulation as a savings and loan holtding company.

T s
‘ oo 1

Federal Securities Laws : ' ) e T -

Northeast Community Bancorp’s common stock is registered w:th the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, Northeast Commumly Bancorp is subjéct to the
information, proxy solicitation, insider tradmg restrictions and other reqmremenls under the Secuntles Exchange Act
of 1934, ° g '

' T i,

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT '

The Board of Directors annually elects the executive officers of Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC,
Northeast Community Bancorp and Northeast Commumty Bank who serve at the Board 5 dlscreuon Our executive
officers are: '

Name - Paosition : Lo
Kenneth A, Martinek President and Chief Executive Officer of the MHC, the
. Company and the Bank. . . ,
Salvatore Randazzo Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the
MHC, the Company and the Bank
Susan Barile " Executive Vice President and Chief Mongage Officer of the
' ’ " Bank

Below is information regarding our executive officer who is not also a director., Age presented is as of
December 31, 2007. , . : . e R

R .

Susan Barile has served as Executive Vice Presndem and Chief Mortgage Officer of the Bank’ since October,
2006. Prior to serving in this position, Ms. Barile spent 11 years as a multi-family, mlxed-use and non- resuienual
loan officer at the Bank. Age 42.

ITEM 1A. RISK FAéTORS

Changes in interest rates may hurt our earnings and asset value.

Our net interest'income is the interest we earn on loans’ and mvestmenl less the interest we pay on our
deposits and borrowings. Our net interest margin is the difference betwden the - yield we earn on our assets and the
interest rate we pay for deposits and our other sources of funding. Chan;res in interest rates —up or down—could
adversely affect our net interest margin and, as a result our net interest mcome Although the yield we earn on our
assets and our funding costs tend to move in the same direction in response to changes in interest rates, one can rise
or fall faster than the other, causing our net interest margin to expand or ¢ ontract Our liabilities tend to be shorter in
duration than our assets, so they may adjust faster in response to changes m interest rates. As a result, when interest
rates rise, our funding costs may rise faster than the'yield we eam on our assets causmg our net interest margin to
contract until the yield catches up. Changes in the slope of the “yield curve”—or the spread between short-term and
long-term interest rates —could also reduce our net intérest margin. Norraally, the yleld curve is upward sloping,
meaning short-term rates are lower than long-term rates. Because our liabilities terid t6 be shorter in duration than
our assets, when the yield curve flattens or even inverts, we could experience pressure on our net interest margin as
our cost of funds increases relative to the yvield we can earn on our assets See “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operanons R.rsk Manag entent— Inrerest Rate Risk Management.”
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Our emshasis on multi-family residential, mixed-use and non-residential real estate lending and our
expansion into commercial lending and participations in construction loans could expose us to increased
lending risks.

" o : ‘ . . ’
: P K

Our primary business strategy centers on continuing our emphasis on multi-family, mixed-use and non-
residential real estate loans. We have grown our loan portfolio in recent years with respect to these types of loans
and intend to continue to emphasize these types of lending. At December 31, 2007, $270.9 million, or 95.6%, of our
loan ponifolio consisted of multj-family residential, mixed-use-and non-residential real estate loans. As aresult, our
credit risk profile will be higher than traditional thrift institutions that have higher concentrations of one- to four--
family re 51dent1al loans. . T ‘ f

Loans secured by mulu farm]y, mlxed use and non-residential reat estate generally expose a lender to
greater risk of non-payment and loss than one- to four-family residential mortgage loans because repayment of the
loans often depends on the successful operation of the property and the income stream of the underlying property.
Such loans typically involve larger loan balances to single borrowers or groups of related borrowers compared to
one- to four-family residential mortgage loans, Accordingly, an adverse:development with respect to one loan or

- one credit relationship can expose us to greater risk of loss compared to an adverse development with respect to a
one- to-faur-family residential mortgage loan. We seek to minimize these risks through our underwriting policies,
which require such loans to be qualified on the basis of the property’s net income and debt service ratio; however,
there is no assurance that our underwmmg pohc1es will protect us from credlt—related losses

) - S I v i ! .

"As w1lh loans secured by mulll-farmly, mixed-use and non- re51dent1a1 real estate, commercml loans tend to
be of higher risk than one- to-four family residential mortgage loans. We seek to minimize the risks involved in
commercial lending by underwriting such'loans on the basis of the cash flows produced by the business; by
requiring; that such loans be collateralized by various business assets, including inventory, equipment, and accounts
receivable, among others; and by requiring personal guarantees, whenever possible. However, the capacity of a
borrower to repay a commercial loan is substantially dependent on the degree to which his or her business is
successful. In addition, the collateral underlying such.loans may depreciate over time, may not be conducive to
appraisal, or may fluctuate in value, based upon the business’ results. At December 31, 2007, $3.0 million, or 1.1%,
of our loan portfolio consisted of commercial loans. ‘ '

Our participation interests in construction loans present a greater level of risk than loans secured by
improved, occupied real estate due to: (1) the increased difficulty at the time the loan is made of estimating the
building costs and the selling price of the property to be built; (2) the increased difficulty and costs of monitoring the
loan; (3) the higher degree of sensitivity to increases in market rates of interest; and (4) the increased difficulty of
working out loan problems. We have sought to minithize this risk by limiting the amount of construction loan
participation interests outstanding at any time and spreading the participations between multi-family, mixed-use and
non-residential projects. At Décember 31, 2007, the outstanding balance of our construction loan participation
interests totaled $9.5 n’lllll()ll or 3.3% of our total loan portfolio.
Our expanded lendmg terntory could expose us to mcreased lendmg risks.

We have expanded our lendmg temtory beyond the New York metropolitan area to include all of New

York, Massachusetts, New Jersey, Connecticut, Pennsylvania, New Hampshire, Rhode Island, Delaware, Maryland,

Maine and Vermont. In January 2004, we opened a loan production office in Wellesley, Massachusetts which

serves Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Rhode Island, Maine and Vermont. In 2007, approximately 41.2% of our
total loan originations were outside the state of New York. In 2006, approximately 44.0% of our total loan
originations were outside the state of New .York. While we have over fifty years of experience in multi-family and
mixed-use real estate lending in the New York metropolitan area and have significant expertise in non-residential
real estate lending, our experience in our expanded lending territory is more limited. -We have experienced loan
officers throughout our lending area and we apply the same underwriting standards to all of our loans, regardless of
their location. However, there is no assurance that our:loss experience in the New York metropolitan area will be
the same in our expanded lending territory. Because we only recenily increased the number of out-of-state real
estate lozns in our portfolio, the lack of delinquencies and defaults in our loan portfolio over the past five years
might not be representative of the level of delinquencies and defaults that could occur as we continue to expand our
real estatz loan originations outside of the New York metropolitan area.
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We may not be able to successfully implement our plans for gr'qwtli. - s T ' <

We currently operate out of our main office, our five other full-service branch offices in the New York
metropolitan area, and our loan production office in Wellesley, Massachusetts, which we opened in 2004. Recently, -
we began to implement a growth strategy that expands our presence in-other select markets'in the Northeastern
United States. We are currently exploring the feasibility of opening several retail branch offices in the Wellesley,
"Massachusetts market area, We also intend to open de novo or purchase at least two additional retail branch offices
in locations yet to be determined. At this time, we are not able to estimate'the costs'associated with or the timing of
the opening of new branch offices. We anticipate that we will incur approximately $90,000 in expenses relating to
our search for possible locations. In addition, we intend to open additional loan production offices in the next
several years, one likely in Pennsylvania and one in a location yet to be: determined. We anticipate that the setup
and operating expenses of the loan production office in Pennsylvania viill be approximately $235,000 in the first
twelve months of operations. The estimate includes the expense of office space, equipment, communications,’
marketing and personnel for the loan production office. We intend to continue to pursue opportunities to expand our
branch network and our lending operations. In connection with the expansion of our branch network and lending
operations, we would need to hire new mortgage lending, mortgage servicing and other employees to support our
expanded infrastructure, Qur ability to operate successfully in new markets will be dependent, in part, on our ability
to identify and retain personnel familiar with the new markets. There is no assurance that we will be successful in
implementing our expansion plans or that we will be able to,hire the. enployees necessary to implement our plans.

U H ’
If we do not achieve profitability on new branches and loan produs'tlon ofﬁces, the new branches and loan
production offices may hurt our earnings. . o L

0 -~

As we expand our branch and lendmg network, there is. no assurance that.our expansion strategy will be
accretive to our earnings. Numerous factors will affect our expansion strategy, such.as our ability to select suitable
locations for branches and loan production offices, real estate acquisition costs, competition, interest rates,
managerial resources, our ability to hire and retain qualified personnel, the effectiveness of our marketing strategy
and our ability to attract deposits. We.can provide no assurance that we will be successful in increasing the volume
of our loans and deposits by expanding our branch and lending network. Building and staffing new. branch offices
and loan production offices will increase our operating expenses. We'zan provide no.assurance that we will be able
to manage the costs and implementation risks associated with this strat-,gy so that expansion of our branch and
lending network will be profitable. . . vy
Our allowance for loan losses may be inadequate, which could hurt our earnings. ' .

When borrowers default and do not repay the loans that we make to them, we may lose money. The
allowance for loan losses is the amount estimated by management as nzcessary-to,cover probable losses in the loan -
portfolio at the statement of financial condition.date. The allowance is established through the provision for loan -
losses, which is charged to income. Determining the amount of the allowance for loan losses necessarily involves a
high degree of judgment. Among the material estimates required to establish the allowance are: loss exposure at
default; the amount and timing of future cash flows.on impacted loans; value-of collateral; and determination of loss
factors to be applied to the various elements of the portfolio. If our estimates and judgments regarding such matters
prove to be incorrect, our allowance for loan losses might not be suffictent, and additional loan loss provisions might
need to be made. Depending on the amount of such loan loss provisions, the adverse impact on our earnmgs could
be material. , .

' i oo ‘ .

In addition, bank regulators may require us to make a provision for loan losses or otherwise recognize
further loan charge-offs following their periodic review of our loan po:tfolio, our underwriting procedures, and our
loan loss allowance. Any increase in our allowance for loan losses or Joan charge-offs as required by such
regulatory authorities could have a material adverse effect on our finarcial condition and results of operations.
Please see “Allowance for Loan Losses” under “Critical Accounting Policies” in Item 7, “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operarzons, for a discussion of the procedures we follow in
estabhshmg our loan loss allowance.. | A T ‘
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Streng competition within our primary market area and our lending territory could hurt our profits and slow
growth. - . .

We face intense competition both in making loans in our lending territory and attracting deposits in our
primary market area. This competition has made it more difficult for us to make new loans and at times has forced
us to offer higher deposit rates. Price competition for loans and deposits might result in us earning less on our loans
and paying more on our deposits, which would reduce net interest income. Competition also makes it more difficult
to grow loans and deposits. As of June 30, 2007, the most recent date for which information is available from the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, we held less than 0.07% of the deposits in each of Westchester, Kings and
New York counties, New York, and approximately 0.61% of the deposits in Bronx County, New York. Competition
also makes it more difficult to hire and retain experienced employees. Some of the institutions with which we
compete have substantially greater resources and lending limits than we have and may offer services that we do not
provide. We expect competition to increase in the future as a result of legislative, regulatory and technological
changes and the continuing trend of consolidation in the financial services industry. Our profitability depends upon
our continued ability to compete successfully in our primary market area and our lending territory. "

Changes in economic conditions could cause an increase in delinquencies and non-performing assets,
including loan charge-offs, which could hurt our income and growth.

Our loan portfolio includes primarily real estate secured loans, demand for which may decrease during
economic downturns as a result of, among other things, an increase in unemployment, a decrease in real estate
values or increases in interest rates. These factors could depress our earnings and consequently our financial
condition because customers may not want or need our products and services; borrowers may not be able to repay
their loans; the value of the collateral securing our loans to borrowers may decline; and the quality of our loan
portfolio may decline. Any of the latter three scenarios could cause an increas¢ in delinquencies and non-
performing assets or require us to “charge-off” a percentage of our loans and/or increase our provisions for loan
losses, which would reduce our earnings. We have recently experienced an increase in non-performing and
classified assets, For more information, see Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations— Risk Management.”

The loss of our President and Chief Executive Officer could hurt our operations.

We rely heavily on our President and Chief Executive Officer, Kenneth A. Martinek. The loss of Mr.
Martinek could have an adverse effect on us because, as a small community bank, Mr. Martinek has more
responsibility than would be typical at a larger financial institution with more employees. In addition, as a small
community bank, we have fewer senior management-level personnel who are in position to succeed and assume the
responsibilities of Mr. Martinek.

We operate in a highly regulated environment and we may be adversely affected by changes in laws and
regulations.

We are subject to extensive regulation, supervision and examination by the Office of Thrift Supervision,
our primary federal regulator, and by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, as insurer of our deposits.
Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC, Northeast Community Bancorp and Northeast Community Bank are all
subject to regulation and supervision by the Office of Thrift Supervision. Such regulation and supervision governs
the activities in which an institution and its holding company may engage, and are intended primarily for the
protection of the insurance fund and the depositors and borrowers of Northeast Community Bank rather than for
holders of Northeast Community Bancorp common stock. Regulatory authorities have extensive discretion in their
supervisory and enforcement activities, including the imposition of restrictions on our operations, the classification
of our assets and determination of the level of our allowance for loan losses. Any change in such regulation and
oversight, whether in the form of regulatory policy, regulations, legislation or supervisory action, may have a
material impact on our operations.
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Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC’s majority control of our common stock will enable it to exercise
voting control over most matters put to a vote of stockholders and will prevent stockholders from forcing a
sale or a second-step conversion transaction you may like.

Northeast Community Bancorp;- MHC, owns a majority of Northeast Community Bancorp’s common stock
and, through its board of directors, will be able to-exercise voting control over most matters put to a vote of
stockholders. The same directors and officers who manage Northeast Community Bancorp and Northeast
Community Bank also manage Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC. - As a federally chartered mutual holding
company, the board of directors of Northeast Community-Bancorp, MHC must ensure that the interests of depositors
of Northeast Community Bank are represented and considered in matters put to a.vote of stockholders of Northeast
Community Bancorp. Therefore, the votes cast by Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC may not be in your
personal best interests as a stockholder. For example, Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC may exercise its voting
control to defeat a stockholder nominee for election to the board of directors of Northeast Community Bancorp. In
addition, stockholders will not be able to force a merger or second-step conversion transaction without the consent
of Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC. Some stockholders may desir€ a sale or merger transaction, since
stockholders typically receive a premium for their shares, or a second-ste> conversion transaction, since fully
converted institutions tend to trade at higher multiples than mutual holding companies.

The Office of Thrift Supervision policy on remutualization transactions could prohibit acquisition of
Northeast Community Bancorp, which may adversely affect our stock price.

1
]

Current Office of Thrift Supervision regulations permit a mutual holding company to be acquired by a
mutual institution in a remutualization transaction. However, the Office of Thrift Supervision has issued a policy
statement indicating that it views remutualization transactions as raising significant issues concerning disparate
treatment of minority stockholders and mutual members of the target entity and raising issues concerning the effect
on the mutual members of the acquiring entity. Under certain circumstanzes, the Office of Thrift Supervision
intends to give these issues special scrutiny and reject applications providing for the remutualization of a mutual
holding company unless the applicant can clearly demonstrate that the Office of Thrift Supervision’s concerns are
not warranted in the particular case. Should the Office of Thrift Supervision prohibit or otherwise restrict these
transactions in the future, our per share stock price may be adversely affected. In addition, Office of Thrift
Supervision regulations prohibit, for three years following completion of sur.initial public offering in July 2006, the
acquisition of more than 10% of any class of equity security issued by us without the prior approval of the Office of
Thrift Supervision. ‘ ‘ ‘

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.
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ITEM2. PROPERTIES

We conduct our business through our main office and five other full-service branch offices. The-following
table sets forth certain information relating to these facilities as of December 31, 2007.

Year Date of Lease " Owned/

Location Opened Explratlon " Leased Net Book Value
(Dollars in thqusands)

Corporate Headquarters and
Main Office: .
325 Hamilton Avenue 1994 N/A Owned % 1,085
White Plains, New York 10601 ot
Branch Offices: . T ) .
1470 First Avenue . T 2006 043072010 Leased 213
New York, NY 10021(1) o ‘
590 East 187th Street . 1972, © N/A. - Owned 520
Bronx, New York 10458 . ' N ’
2047 86th Street . 1988 i TN/A , Owned . ©040
Brooklyn, New York 11214 o Y
242 West 23rd Strect ' 1996 N/A  Owned/Leased(2) - . 1,017 .
New York, NY 10011
1751 Second Avenue . 1978 - 09/30/2015 Leased 44
New York, NY 10128
Other Properties:
300 Hamilton Avenue 2000 0573112010 Leased ’ 60
White Plains, New. York 10601 Lo . .
1353-35 First Avenue 1946 2109 Leased -
New York, NY 10021(3) L
40 Grove Street 2004 02/28/2009 Leased b 2
Wellesley, Massachusetts 02482
%30 Post Road East 2007 4/30/2010 Leased ' -

Westport, Connecticut 06880

(1) The Bank has temporarily relocated its branch office at 1353-55 Fifst Avenue to this property due to the sale
and renovation of the building located at 1353-55 First Avenue. See footnote 3 below.’

(2) This property is owned by us, but is subject to a 99 year ground lease, the term of which expires in 2084.

(3) In June 2007, the Bank sold this building and temporanly relocated its branch office located at 1353-55 First
Avenue to 1470 First Avenue, New York, New York, while 1353-55 First Avenue is being renovated. On June
30, 2007, the Bank entéred into a 99 year lease agreement | for office space on the first floor of the building at
1353-55 First Avenue so that the Bank may continue to operate a branch office at this location after the building
has been renovated. Lease to commence upon completion of construction at 1353-55 First Avenue, which is
presently expected to be in 2010.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS " L

Legal Proceedings .. « . o ' . L
- ' . + ' - o . [ L . .

From time to time, we may be party to various legal proceedings incident to our business. At December

31,2007, we were not a party to any pending legal proceedings that we believe would have a material adverse effect

on our financial condmon results of operations or cagh, ﬂows ' ’

i

ITEM4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

PARTI .

ITEMS. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
' MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company’s common stock is listed on the Nasdag Global Market (“NASDAQ”) under the trading
symbol “NECB.” The Company completed its initial public offering on July 5, 2006 and commenced trading on
July 6, 2006. The following table sets forth the high and low sales priczs of the common stock, as reported by
NASDAQ, and the dividends paid by the Company during each quarter since trading commenced. See Item 1,
“Business—Regulation and Supervision—Regulation of Federal Savings Institutions— Limitation on Capital
Distributions™ and Note 2 in the Notes to the Consohdated F1nanc1a] Statements for more 1nf0rmat10n relating to
restrictions on dividends. '

L]

,-Dividends .__ High Low ,

2007:

First Quarter- ‘ N/A © 41247 $11.50
Second Quarter - N/A 12.60 . 1135
Third Quarter ., 8003 12.18 9.25
Fourth Quarter "~ 0.03 12.89 10.00
2006: : oo

Third Quarter N/A - $11.45 H $10.75
Fourth Quarter N/A 12.35 1125

Northeast Commumty Bancorp, MHC, the Company’s majorily stockholder, has waived receipt of all
dividends declared by the Company. Dunng 2007 the aggregate amount of dividends walved was $436 000.

As of March 17, 2008,_ there { were aI:q:trommﬁltely_346l holdersof record of the Company_ s common stock.

The Company did not repurchase any of its common stock dur ing the fourth quarter of 2007 and, at
December 31, 2007, we had no publicly announced repurchase plans or programs.

22




ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

At or For the Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

{Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Financial Condition Data;:

Total ASSE15 covvveivivinrerrverrerrerenresesrereerenenees $ 343,895 $ 288417 $ 238,821 § 237,300 $ 231,738
Cash and cash equivalents .........ceovoneriiiinen. 39,146 36,749 .27,389 48,555 57,824
Securities held to Maturity ..o.oeveeeeerieererrennens 2,875 27,455 12,228 11,395 9,452
Securities available for sale .......occceiivinnnnns 320 355 362 473 649
Loans receivable, net ....ccccovieerinvenvrenrecennacs 283,133 201,306 190,896 167,690 154,546
Bank owned life insurance....... pererrereerenrneens 8,515 8,154 - - -
Deposits e emeeeeeeeeeer ettt 225978 168,592 193,314 193,617 190,037
Total stockholders’ equity ....ooviceevnences 108,829 96,751 43,120 41,146 39,589
Operating Data: _
INTETESt INCOMIE 1vviivreeserirrrrsrrmsreiresrerennes $ 17,602 $ 15348 $ 13,652 $ 12885 § 14,513
Interest eXpense .........ccovieervinnninine 5,018 4,493 3,110 2,494 2,620
Net inlerest inCOmMe........coeovvermenrvcenenes 11,684 . 10,855 10,542 10,391 11,893
Provision for loan lagses ..o 338 - : C = - : -
Net interest income after provision for

1081 1OSSES 1vevrvvrservsrires s reeee e 11,346 10,855 10,542 10,391 11,893
Gain (loss) on sale of premises and

SQUIPMENT .ovivveiieise s 18,962 ) (19) (136) (52)
Other INCOME. .o iies e 805 624 553 559 543
Other eXpenses.. .. cecreoeeenernionens 9,826 8,870 7.515 8,078 7,400
Income belore income taxes ......ocen..n.. 21,287 2,604 3,561 2,736 4,984
Provision for income taxes ......covveererrns 9,150 1,046 1,571 1,173 ° 2,592
Net inCome........ccvivecivimenermrinercrenens $ 12,137 $ 1,558 $ 1,990 $ 1,563 § 27392
Net income: per share — basic and diluted (1) $ 095 § 0.06 N/A N/A N/A
Dividends declared per share $ 006 % - $ - $ -  $ -

{1) The Company completed its initial public stock offering on July 5, 2006.
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At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2007 - 2006 2008 2004 2003

Performance Ratios:
Return on average assets (1) .o.oooevviecvernns 3.94% 0.57% 0.83% 0.66% 1.02%
Return on average equity (1}....ccovvninn 11.70 224 4.69 3.80 6.13
Interest rate spread (2) ..oovrecenicieinicenn, 3.13 3.65 4.27 4.36 5.07
Net interest margin (3} ......cooccoevcreerrrnenen. 4.09 424 4,55 458 5.30
Noninterest expense 1o average assets ....... 3.19 3.26 313 3.42 316
Efficiency ratio (1) {(4) .ooovrcceninecreieens 31.24 77.31 ‘ 67.85 74.70 59.75
Average interest-eamming assets to

average interest-bearing liabilities .......... 146.61 133.99 120.33 119.73 118.82
Average equity to average assets............... 33.67 25.57 17.65 17.45 16.66
Capital Ratios - Bank:
Tangible capital ..o, 24.18 2546 17.92 17.05 16.92
Core Capital....c..ovrnrruereirecrssencrreeserirecsnes 24.18 2546 : 17.92 17.05 16.92
Total risk-based capital.......cccooevrrrnernnne. 37.50 4458 33.08 3571 36.33
Asset Quality Ratios:
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of . .

LOLAl J0ANS ..ovveeeerrrincrere i ernes e 0.53 0.60 0.63 0.71, 0.77
Allowance for loan losses as a.percent of b ' .

nonperforming 10ans ... vcrrsnrennn. 65.48 N/M N/M N/M N/M
Net charge-offs to average outstanding )

loans during the period.........covvivererinn. 0.02 0.00 - 0.00 . 0.00 0.01
Non-performing loans as a percent .

of total loans .....oncsiin o 0.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Data:
Number of:

Real estate loans outstanding ................... 485 400 399 364 381

Deposit accounts...... 13,025 15,898 17,243 18,251 19,528

OFfices (5} oo, 9 8 ‘ 8 7 7

(1) 2007 operations included a non-recurring gain of $18,962,000 from the gaip on sale of the building in which our First
Avenue branch was located. If such gain, net of income taxes at the 2007 inarginal income tax rate, were removed, return
on average assets, return on average equity, and efficiency ratio would be (1.43%, 1.28%, and 78.68%, respectively,

(2) Represents the difference between the weighted average yield on average iiterest-earning assets and the weighted average
cost of interest-bearing liabilities.

(3) Represents net interest income as a percent of average interest-earning assets.

(4) Represents noninterest expense divided by the sum of net interest income and noninterest income.

(5) For 2007, includes our main office, our five other full-service branch offices, our loan production office in Wellesley,
Massachusetts, our investment advisory service office in Westport, Connecticut, and an office that houses our processing
center.

N/M - not meaningful as non-performing loans as of these dates.
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

Income. Our primary source of pre-tax income is net interest income. Net interest income is the difference
between interest income, which is the income that we earn on our loans and investments, and interest expense,
which is the interest that we pay on our deposits and borrowings. Other significant sources of pre-tax income are
prepayment penalties on multi-family, mixed-use and non-residential real estate loans and service charges — mostly
from service charges on deposit accounts — and fees for various services.

Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for losses inherent in
the loan portfolio. We evaluate the need to establish allowances against losses on loans on a quarterly basis. When
additional allowances are necessary, a provision for loan losses is charged to earnings,

Expenses. The noninterest expenses we incur in operating our business consist of salary and employee
benefits expenses, occupancy and equipment expenses, advertising expenses, federal insurance premiums and other
miscellaneous expenses.

Salary and employee benefits consist primarily of the salaries and wages paid to our employees, payroll
taxes and expenses for health insurance, retirement plans and other employee benefits.

Occupancy and equipment expenses, which are the fixed and variable costs of buildings and equipment,
consist primarily of depreciation charges, ATM and data processing expenses, furniture and equipment expenses,
maintenance, real estate taxes and costs of utilities. Depreciation of premises and equipment is computed using the
straight-line method based on the useful lives of the related assets, which range from three to 40 years. Leasehold
improvements are amortized over the shorter of the useful life of the asset or term of the lease,

Advertising expenses include expenses for print, promotions, third-party marketing services and premium
items,

Federal insurance premiums are payments we make to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation for
insurance of our deposit accounts,

Other expenses include expenses for professional services, office supplies, postage, telephone, insurance,
charitable contributions, regulatory assessments and other miscellaneous operating expenses.

Critical Accounting Policies

We consider accounting policies involving significant judgments and assumptions by management that
have, or could have, a material impact on the carrying value of certain assets or on income to be critical accounting
policies. We consider the following to be our critical accounting policies: allowance for loan losses and deferred
income taxes. : '

Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses is the amount estimated by management as
necessary to cover probable credit losses in the toan portfolio at the statement of financial condition date. The
allowance is established through the provision for loan losses, which is charged to income. Determining the amount
of the allowance for loan losses necessarily involves a high degree of judgment. Among the material estimates
required to establish the allowance are: loss exposure at default; the amount and timing of future cash flows on
impacted loans; value of collateral; and determination of loss factors to be applied to the various elements of the
portiolio. All of these estimates are susceptible to significant change. -Management reviews the level of the
allowance on a quarterly basis and establishes the provision for loan losses based upon an evaluation of the
portfolio, past loss experience, current economic conditions and other factors related to the collectibility of the loan
portfolio. Although we believe that we use the best information available to establish the allowance for loan losses,
future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if economic conditions differ substantially from the
assumptions used in making the evaluation. In addition, the Office of Thrift Supervision, as an integral part of its
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examination process, periodically reviews our allowance for loan losses. 'The Office of Thrift Supervision could
require us to recognize adjustments to the allowance based on its judgmerts about information available to it at the
time of its examination. A large loss could deplete the allowance and require increased provisions to replenish the
allowance, which would negatively affect earnings. For additional discussion, see note 1 of the notes to the
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this filing.

Deferred Income Taxes. We use the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes as.
prescribed in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” - Under this
method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences |
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and linbilities and their respective tax bases. If
current available information raises doubt as to the realization of the deferred tax assets, a valuation allowance is
established. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted! tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. We exercise
significant judgment in evaluating the amount and timing of recognition of the resulting tax liabilities and assets.
These judgments require us to make projections of future taxable income. The judgments and estimates we make in
determining our deferred tax assets, which are inherently subjective, are reviewed on a continual basis as regulatory
and business factors change. Any reduction in estimated future taxable income may require us to record a valuation
allowance against our deferred tax assets. A valuation allowance would rzsult in additional income tax expense in
the period, which would negatively affect earnings.

Sale of New York City Branch Office . . - . ) Co

In June 2007, the Bank completed the sale of its branch office building located at 1353-55 First Avenue,
New York, New York. The purchase price for the building was $28.0 mi_lion. The Bank received $10.0 million in
cash at closing. The remaining $18.0 million will be paid in two installments of $9.0 million on each of June 30,
2008 and June 30, 2009, pursuant to a zero coupon promissory note secured by a purchase money real estate
mortgage, assignment and security agreement. The zero coupon note was recorded at its present value of $16.3
million.

The sale of the branch office resulted in a pre-tax gain of $19.0 raillion, or a net gain of $10.8 million after
providing for $8.2 million in income taxes. The sale also provided an increase in total assets of $19.(t million
represented by increases of $9.1 million in cash and $16.3 million in loan; receivable partially offset by decreases of
$6.2 million in property and equipment and $263,000 in other assets. The: sale resulted in the accrual of $8.2 million
of income taxes on the sale gain.

In connection with the sale of the branch office building, the Bank entered into a 99-year lease agreement
to enable the Bank to retain a branch office at 1353-55 First Avenue. This lease will be effective upon the
completion of the renovation of the property (projected to be in 2010). We have temporarily relocated our First
Avenue branch office to 1470 First Avenue while 1353-55 First Avenue is being renovated.

Acquisition of the Business Assets of Hayden.Financial Gréup LLC

On November 16, 2007, the Bank acquired the operating assets of Hayden Financial Group LLC
(*Hayden™), an investment advisory firm located in Connecticut, at a cost of $2.0 million. The Bank paid $1.3
million at closing, and $700,000 will be paid in four annual installments of $175,000. The acquisition of these
business assets has enabled the Bank to expand the services it provides to include investment advisory and financial
planning services to the then-existing Hayden customer base as well as future customers through a networking
arrangement with a registered broker-dealer and investment adviser. In connection with this transaction, we
acquired intangible assets related to customer relationships of $710,000 and goodwill of $1,310,000.and booked a
note payable with a present value of $625,000. The intangible asset has teen determined to have an | 1.7-year life
and, absent impairment issues, will be amortized to operations over that period using the straight-line method. Both
the intangible assets and goodwill will be subject to impairment review on no less than an annual basis. The note is -
payable in four annual instailments, one on each succeeding note anniversary date, of $175,000. The note was
initially recorded at $625,000, assuming a 4.60% discount rate. The note payable balance at December 31, 2007
was $627,000 and note discount accreted during 2007 totaled $2,000. The acquired business is being operated as a
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division of the Bank and, during the period owned in 2007, generated total revenues of approximately $69,000 and
net income of approximately $2,000. ‘

Balance Sheet Analysis

Overview. Total assets at December 31, 2007, increased $55.5 million, or 19.2%, to $343.9 million from
total assets of $288.4 million at Decemnber 31, 2006. The increase was primarily due to an increase of $81.8 million
in loans receivable, net, partially offset by a decrease of $24.6 million in securities and $6.6 million in premises and
equipment. Of the $81.8 million increase in loans receivable, $16.9 million was attributable to the note received in
connection with the sale of our First Avenue branch office. The remaining increase in loans was funded with the
aforementioned decrease in securities and an increase of $37.4 million in deposits.

Loans. Our primary lending activity is the origination of loans secured by real estate. We originate real
estate loans secured by multi-family residential real estate, mixed-use real estate and non-residential real estate. To
a much lesser extent, we originate commercial and consumer loans and purchase participation interests in
construction loans. At December 31, 2007, loans receivable, net, totaled $283.1 million, an increase of $81.8
million, or 40.6%, from total loans receivable, net, of $201.3 million at December 31, 2006. The promissory note
that the Bank received in connection with the sale of the Bank’s branch office building located at 1353-55 First
Avenue, which had a $16.9 million balance at December 31, 2007, is included in the non-residential segment of our
real estate loan portfolio for 2007. T :

The largest segment of our real estate loans is multi-family residential loans. As of December 31, 2007,
these loans totaled $138.8 million, or 49.0% of our total loan portfolio, compared to $110.4 miltion, or 54.8% of our
total loan portfolio at December 31, 2006. As of December 31, 2007, mixed-use loans totaled $52.6 million, or
18.5% of our total loan portfolio, compared to $42.6 million, or 21.1% of our total loan portfolio at December 31,
2006, Non-residential real estate loans totaled $79.3 million, or 28.0% of our total loan portfolio at December 31,
2007, compared to $47.8 million, or 23.7% of our total loan portfolio at December 31, 2006. At December 31, 2007
and 2006, one- to four-family residential real estate loans totaled $304,000.and $405,000, or 0.1% and 0.2% of our
total loan portfolio, respectively.

During 2007, we established a new commercial loan department. At December 31, 2007, our commercial
loan portfolio totaled $5.5 million in committed loans, with $3.0 million drawn against such commitments,
compared to no commercial loans at December 31, 2006. In 2007 we also purchased participation interests in
construction loans secured by multi-family, mixed-use and non-residential properties. We perform our own
underwriting analysis on each of our participation interests before purchasing such loans. The outstanding balance
of construction loan participation interests purchased totaled $9.5 million, or 3.3% of our total loan poitfolio at
December 31, 2007,

In addition, we also originate several types of consumer loans secured by savings accounts or certificates of
deposit (share loans) and overdraft protection for checking accounts which is linked to statement savings accounts
and has the ability to transfer funds from the statement savings account to the checking account when needed to
cover overdrafts. Consumer loans totaled $88,000 and represented 0.03% of total loans at December 31, 2007,
compared to $419,000, or 0.21%, of total loans at December 31, 2006.
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The following table sets forth the dollar amount of all loans at December 31, 2007 that are due after
December 31, 2008 and have either fixed or adjustable interest rates,

Fixed Adjustable
Rates Rates Total
. (In thousands)
Residential real estate: 7
One- to four-family ... § o6 3 238 $ 304 .
Multz-fAMIlY oo 6,183 132,058 138,241
MIKEAUSC e rsrae e s rnnre s b e eanns 4,102 48,019 52,121
Non-residential real estate ......covevrcemecemrinenieenncnnae 19,883 58,800 78,683
Construction 10anS.......ovoeevveeeeeeeeeeeeciiereeeeeeeeceveemeeres - 2,131 2,131
Commercial loans.......c.oooocevveeveerervveniensrrerrnnennes 615 - 615
Consumer and other 10ans ......ccccoevveeninveeevieesieenenns - 69 . 69
TOUAL c.cocviiiieiccr s teer e sareserenre e et es $30,849 $241,315 . 8272,i64

The following table shows loan origination, purchase and sale activity during the periods indicated.

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)

Total loans at beginning
of period ..o $201,591 $191436 $168,675 $155,557 $169,524
Loans originated:
Residential real estate:
One- to four-family ............ - - . - . - -
Multi-family «.cc.ooccorrrinienennn 43,376 19,409 24,551 34,939 23,114

Mixed-use...........coceveevrerne 16,098 7,304 9,794 11,801 5,945
Non-residential real estate.... 24,451 9010 23,831 6,957 12,006
Construction loans................ - - - - -
Commercial loans.....cccceeen 3,012 - - - -
Consumer and other loans.... 17 80 — 63 71

Total loans originated........ 86,954 35,803 58.176 53,760 41,136
Construction loan participation
purchased .........cccrevcmrmnnnn 11,695 - - - -
Loan from sale of building...... 16,341 ~ - — -
Deduct:
Loan principal repayments... 32,109 25,648 35415 40,642 52,006
Loan sales.......c.oceervecrvrerninnns 1,505 - — - 3,097
Total deductions......ccccceeeeueen. 33,614 25,648 35,415 40,642 55,103
Other increases.......oceoveenenenns 489 -

Total loans at end of period.... 3283456 3201,591 $191,436 $168,675 $ 155,557

Securities. Qur securities portfolio consists primarily of U.S. Treasury securities, U.S. Government agency
securities, and mortgage-backed securities. Securities decreased $24.6 million, or 88.5%, from $27.8 million at
December 31, 2006, to $3.2 million at December 31, 2007. The decrease was primarily due to maturities and
repayments of $29.7 million that exceeded purchases of $5.0 million.
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The following table sets forth the amortized cost and fair values of onr securities portfolio at the dates
indicated. '

Al December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value ~  Cost Value

In thousands)
Securities available for sale: C
Fannie Maé common stock ..ooeeieveccreccrivciieee,. 3 4 $ 46 $ 4 $ M $ 4 $ 58
Mortgage-backed securities... 273 274 281 283 302 304

$ 277 $320 § 285§ 355§ 3065 362

$ - 5 - $22,904 $22,904 54,999 5 4,950
2,875 2,890 4,551 4,564 7,229 7,232

$2,875 $2.890  _$27455 $27,468  $12,228  $12,182

A-t December 31, 2007, we had no investments in a single compar.y or entity that had an aggregate book
value in excess-of 10% of our equity.

30




“BHOTY SLYTS  BBOY 9LFTE - BEY'Y g0t § bt 9§ %6Ts 0§ § v Aumew o) p[ay sanunods [g10],
%BIT'9 1 GL8T T %809 -9LY'T %t9'9 £0t %BEC8 O BOT'C as T SANUNDAS payorq-a3eSUoN
—_ - — W. — — W = - — — W | _ ﬁ PEareaE RN NN e e e E e .”mumu_.mﬂ—uuw
T . . : . : : Aousde pue WLWILIOACD S
S A . : :AlIMIEW 0] p[ay SANUNI9g

v - -

BIL'S . OCE $ %BSL9 0§ - - % - - $ - %8E0 0§ $. 7 9IEs JOJ J[qE[IRAR SONLINOAS [BI0],

BELS. T W, %99 0T - - ;= - 8y ¥ [T Sanunggs payorq-ageduo
- . o '§s - - § - - ¢ - - § %000 gy §. e A01S UOLILIOD IEP SJUUB]

] - : . 9[eS 10] J[qe[TeAR SINLINDAG
- T -~ (spuesnoy} m SIB[O() . _ o
MANA anfep - PRI anep PRIA nEes | PRIA In[EeA PPRIA anfep
adesoay  Burfire) 2desay  Budie) dfeiay  Sudue) demway  Juilure) sfersay  Suiluie)

PAYSIaM pAYSM PAYSIOM paydem - PSP s
10, SIBIX U], sIgax uajy, T SJeax aAlj §S37] 10 ’
uey) 0| - 0] SJBa X AL 0} JBa X uQ) dBd X M) ) ©
- =T . : uey) Aoy uey) 10T

.mmmmn.uzuﬁ_:zwu-wﬁ B UO 278 SP[AIA umE.o.;m paySiap uotiw [*g§ pa[eIO: sarel O[qeISnIpPr ILM SONLINDAS Paydeq-ageduow ‘£ (0T ‘1€ I9qUISda(] 1V ~MO[ag
a[qet aY) U1 pA123[Jal 10U ade sa[npayas Juioudar asa ], ‘safuer AJUMIBW SNOLIEA ) UM A[[enuue 22udal [[Im pue sa1el 1S3101u1 S[qeIsnipe ATy SaLIRIoS
payorq-o8eELow urela) “L007 ‘[ € 19QU20a(] 18 SSNLIN33S 1G3P JO SPAIA 53eI10AR PAIYSIaM puUB SILINJEW P2IRIS AY) YO $19S 3[qe) SELmO[{o] ay L,

31




Deposits. Qur primary source of funds is retail deposit accounts which are comprised of savings accounts,
demand deposits and certificates of deposit held primarily by individuals and businesses within our primary market
area and non-broker certificates of deposit gathered through two nationwide certificate of deposit listing services.
The non-broker certificates of deposits are accepted from banks, credit vnions, non- proﬁt orgamzatlons and certain
corporations in amounts greater then $75,000 and less then $100, 000 :

Deposits increased by $37.4 million, or 19.8%, in the year ended December 31, 2007. The increase in
deposits is primarily attributable to an effort by the Bank to increase deposits through the offering of competitive
interest rates in two nationwide certificate of deposits listing services. Asa result the Bank had a total of $43.2
million in such centificates of deposits at December 31 2007.

-

The following table sets forth the balances of our deposit lforoducts at the dates indicated.

At December 31,
2007 2006- ' 2005 -
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
(Dollars in thousands)

Now and money market deposit accounts.... $ 21,839 9.6% $21,137 " 11.2% § 22,731  11.8%

Savings accounts .. vereerenerneneers 37,346 25.4 6),755 322 73,133 37.8

Noninterest beanng demand deposns ........... 1,745 0.8 1,439 ¢ 0.8" 1,499 0.8

Certificates of deposit.......ccccvciiicrinninnn, 145,048 64.2 105,261 - 55.8 05,951 49.6
TOMeeeereres s seese e enenee $225978 100.0% $138,592 100.0% $193.314 - 100.0%

The following table indicates the amount of certificates of depasit with balances of $100,000 or greater by
time remaining until maturity as of December 31, 2007. We do not solic¢it jumbo certificates of deposit nor do we
offer special rates for jumbo certificates. The minimum deposit to open a ccmﬁcate of deposn ranges from $500 to
$2,500.

Certificates
Maturity Period i of Deposit -
: {In thousands)
Three months or less .. $ 7,483
Over three through six months ............................. 3,838
Over six through twelve months..........cccooceree 7,890 . “ !
Over twelve MONNS......vvvviivieririne e esren s 9,035 ‘
TOAL ..vvvevsis s eres e eas et e s st se st st $28,246

The following table sets forth timé deposits-classified by rates zt the dates indicat:ed

Ai December 31, ‘

2007 2006 2005
. . (In thousands)

000-1.00% .....coeeeennl L% 40 $ 32 $ 567
101 -2.00% ..cooonvieeeirerirernnns | 329 10,350
2.01 -3.00% ...oovvveverrrerarerarns . 988 b 9,407 33,683
3.01 -4.00% ..cooonvernierrnrnennns . 16,551 ] 26,025 28,680
401 -5.00% .ccoecreerneiriireinnn 65,554 47,212 22,284
501 -6.00% ....ccoereeervrnennnens 61,914 22,249 338
Over 6.00% .....ooeeeeeveevecnnais - . 7 49

Total ceecvievvieiieieiieene. 145,048 $105,261 $95,951
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The following table sets forth the amount and maturities of time deposits at December 31, 2007:

Amount Due : '
R o T " MoreThan = More '
o More Than More Than = Three Than Percent of
' One Year Two Years” **  Years Four : Total
Less Than to to to Four Years to ' Certificate
One Year Two Years Three Years Years Five Years Total Accounts .
' ' _ {Dollars in thousands) ,
000~100%...... $ 40  $ - $° - % - & - s 40 0.03%
101 +2.00%.......... 1 - - - - T 000
201 =3.00%...oocc... 042 46 - o 988’ 0.68
3.01 -4.00%............ 12,264 T 3,692 ' 565 30 - 16,551 11.41
4.01 -5.00%............ 44 328 9,070 8.876 1,279 2,001 635,554 45.19
501 -6.00%............ 37,766 11,723 4,971 3,790 3,664 61,914 42.69
Over 6.00%.............. — - - — - - 0.00
Total..cooceeere, $95,341 $24,531 $14,412 $5,099 $5,665 $145,048 100.0%

Borrowings. We may utilize borrowings from a variety of sources to supplement our supply of funds for
loans and investments and to meet deposit withdrawal requirements. As of December 31, 2007, we had no FHLB
advances outstanding. In conjunction with the Hayden acquisition on November 16, 2007, the Company incurred a
four-year zero-coupon note payable of $700,000. The note is payable in four annual instaliments, one on each
succeeding note anniversary date, of $175,000. The note was initially recorded at $625,000, assuming a 4.60%
discount rate, The note payable balance at December 31, 2007 was $627,000 and note discount accreted during
2007 totaled $2,000. We had no borrowings as of or during the year ended December 31, 2006.

Stockholders’ Equity. Stockholders’ equity increased $12.1 million, or 12.5%, to $108.83 million at
December 31, 2007, from $96.75 million at December 31, 2006, The increase was primarily due to net income of
$12.1 million. In addition, stockholders’ equity was increased by $302,000 of earned ESOP shares and reduced by
$328,000 of cash dividends declared to minority stockholders. Northeast Community Bancorp, MHC, the
Company’s majority stockholder, received approval of the Office of Thrift Supervision to waive its right to receive
its share of cash dividends declared by the Company in 2007, which totaled approximately $436,000. We anticipate
that the MHC will continue to waive receipt of all dividends declared by the Company, subject to applicable
regulatory approvals.

Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Overview,
% Change
2007 2006 2007/2006
(Dollars in thousands)
Net income .....ooeeeveevcnrnnnvivieinenes . $12,137 $1,558 679.0%
Return on average assets.......cooeene 3.94% 0.57% 591.2
Return on average equity.................. 11.70 2.24 4223
Average equity to average assels...... 33.67 25.57 31.7

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2007 increased by $10.6 million, or 679.0%, to $12.1 million
from $1.6 million in 2006. The increase was primarily the result of the $19.0 million gain ($10.8 million net of
income taxes) from the disposition in June 2007 of the Bank’s branch office building located at 1353-55 First
Avenue, Excluding the effect of the branch sale, net income in 2007 decreased by $232,000, or 14.9%, primarily
due to a $956,000 increase in noninterest expense and a $338,000 increase in the pravision for loan losses, partially
offset by an increase of $829,000 in net interest income, a $186,000 increase in noninterest income (excluding effect
of the branch sale), and a $47,000 decrease in income tax (excluding the effect of the branch sale).
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Net Interest Income. Net interest income increased by $829,000), or 7.6%, to $11.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2007, from $10.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. The increase in net interest
income resulted primarily from the increased average balance of net inter:st-earning assets of $26.0 million due
primarily to increased toan originations. The effect of increased balancés was partially offset by a 52 basis point
decrease in our net interest rate spread to 3.13% for the year ended Decernber 31, 2007, from 3.65% for the year
ended December 31, 2006. The net interest margin decreased 15 basis points to 4.09% for the year ended December
31, 2007, from 4.24% for the year ended December 31, 2006.

The decrease in the interest rate spread and net interest margin iti 2007 was due to the cost of our interest-
bearing liabilities increasing to a greater degree than the increase in the y:eld earned on our interest-earning assets.
The cost of our interest-bearing liabilities increased by 68 basis points to 3.03% for the year ended December 31,
2007, from 2.35% for the year ended December 31, 2006, whereas the yi:ld on our interest-earning assets increased
by 16 basis points to 6.16% for the year ended December 31, 2007, from 6.00% for the year ended December 31,
2006. ; :
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Average Balances and Yields. The following table presents information regarding average balances of

assets and liabilities, the total dollar amounts of interest income and dividends from average interest-earning assets,

the total dollar amounts of interest expense on'average interest-bearing liabilities, and the resulting annualized

average yields and costs. The yields and costs for the periods indicated are derived by dividing income or expense

by the average balances of assets or liabilities, respectively, for the periods presented. For purposes of this table,
average balances have been calculated using average daily balances. Average loan balances include nonaccrual

loans, which were not material to any period presented. Loan fees are included in interest income on loans. Interest

income on loans and investment securities has not been calculated on a tax equivalent basis because the impact

would be insignificant.

Assets:

Interest-carning assets:
Loans...omi s
SeCUrIties. i
QOther interest-earning assets......

Total interest-earning assets ............

Allowance for loan 10s5es......ceciininnns
Noninterest-earming assets ...

TOtal ASSELS ue.cvveererererorsesmreinrvisssinens

Liabilities and equity:
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Interest-bearing demand .....
Savings and club accounts........ccuvevenenns
Certificates of deposit...........
Total interest-bearing deposits ...........

BOITOWINES oo
Total interest-bearing liabilities..........

Noninterest-bearing demand ...................
Other Habilities oo ceaecrannns
Total liabilities ..cvviveveerinirnniivanes

Stockholders” equity ..ooovviiienenniiiciens
Total liabilities and
Stockholders’ equity..........oevvicerenens
Net interest inCOME ........cvoiviviorisrerienss
Interest rate SPread........eriereisrine:
Net interest Margin ........cooevvivecrerercens
Net interest-carning assets............coc.c...
Interest-earning assets to interest-
bearing liabilities .......cc.coevveeveereeee

Year Ended December 31,
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2007 2006 2005
Interest Interest Interest
Average and Yield/ Average and Yield/  Average and Yield/
Balance Dividends Cost Balunce  Dividends Cost Balance Dividends Caost
(Dollars in Thousands)
$232,496 $14,894 6.41% $200,683 $12,771  6.36% $17%,129 $11,987 6.69%
16,664 839 5.03 22,913 1,064 464 13,764 496 3.60
36,813 1,869 5.08 32,390 1513 4.67 38,707 1,169 3.02
285,973 17,602 6.16 | 255,986 15348 600 231,600 13,652 5.89
(1,362} {1,200) (1,200)
23,535 17,145 - 9,879
$308,146 3271931 $240,279
$ 20,704 $ 17 0.57% $ 22,363 111 050% $§ 22,825 62 0.27
58,963 415 0.70 66,951 469 0.70 76,607 373 0.49
115,032 5,365 4,66 101,732 3913 3.85 93,039 2,675 2.88
164 669 5.897 3.03 191,046 4493 235 192471 3.110 1.62
352 2) 597 - - 000 - - - 000
195,051 5,918 3.03 191,046 4,493 235 192 471 3,110 1.62
1,753 7.806 1.663
7,583 3,559 3,735
204,387 202,411 197 869
103759 —t9.520 42410
$308,146 $271,931 $240,279
$11,684 $10,855 $10.542
3.13 3.65 4.27
4.09 4.24 4.55
$ 90,922 3 64,940 $ 39,129
146.61% 133.99% 120.33%



Rate/Volumeé Analysis. The following table sets forth the effe cts of changing ratés and volumes on our net
interest income. The rate column shows the effects attributable to changes in rate’(changes in rate multiplied by
prior volume}. The volume column shows the effects attributable to changes in volume (changes in volume
multiplied by prior rate). The net column represents the sum of the prior columns. For purposes of this table,
changes attributable to changes in both rate and volume that cannot be iegregated have been allocated
proportionately based on the changes due to rate and the changes due to.volume.

.

" 2007 Compared to 2006 2006 Compared to 2005
Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease)

Due to Due to
Volume - Rate _ Net Volume Rate Net

(In thousands)

Interest and dividend income:

Loans receivable......coooovevvvevvvvennnnn, rereeas $2037 % 86 | $2,123 $1392 § (608) $ 784
Investment SECUNIIES ..occvrviericeeeceeeeceeecieans 309 ° - 84 (225) 396 172 568
Other interest-earning assets .............. e 218 138 356 (215) 559 344

Total interest-earning assets ............ccovesees 1,946 308 2,254 1,573 123 . 1,696

Interest expense: . ‘ .

Interest-bearing demand deposits.................. ) 15 - 6 n 50 49
SAVINES ACCOUNLS ..vvereerrsrerererernerenraresemarssnses (56) 20 (54) (52) 148 96
Certificates of deposit. ..o, 553 900 1,453 268 970 1,238
BOITOWINEZS ..vvovvvesereenescsreeesseeseeseesesniaseens . - 21 21 - - —

Total interest-bearing habilities................... 488 938 1,426 215 1,168 1,383
Net change in interest inCOmMe ........covvveercnees $1,458 $(630) 3 828 $1,358 $(1,045) §$ 313

Provision for Loan Losses. In 2007, a $338,000 provision was made to the allowance for loan losses due
primarily to the increase in mortgage loan balances outstanding. The effect of the provision for loan losses was
partially offset by a charge-off of $49,000 on a mixed-use mortgage loan that was subsequently foreclosed and sold
during 2007. The allowance for loan losses as of December 31, 2007 represented 0.53% of total loans, compared to
0.60% as of December 31, 2006.

There were no recoveries during the year ended December 31, 2007, and there were na recaveries, charge-
offs or provisions for loan losses during the year ended December 31, 2006,

Noninterest Income. The following table shows the components of noninterest income for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006.

% Change
2007 2006 2007/2006
{Dollars in thousands)

Service charges .....ooooocevccrccciiin $ 358 $443 (19.2)%
Net gain (loss) from premises and equipment... 18,962 3 N/M
Earnings on bank owned life insurance............ 361 154 134.4
OhET ... e ens 86 27 218.5
TOA L civiirr e e s s $19,767 _ $619 3,093.4

N/M Not meaningful.

Non-interest income increased $19.1 million, or 3,093.4%, to $19.8 million for the year ended December
31, 2007, from $619,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006. The increase was primarily the result of the $19.0
million gain from the June 2007 sale of the Bank’s branch office building located at 1353-55 First Avenue. In
addition, income from bank-owned life insurance, which was purchased in July 2006, increased by $207,000, or
134.4%, to $361,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007, from $154,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006.
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The increase in other noninterest income was primarily the result of $69,000 in investment advisory income earned
by our Hayden Division since its acquisition in November 2007. ) . C

Noninterest Expense. The follow'ing table shows the components of noninterest expense and the .
percentage changes for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Year Ended December 31,

! ) % Change .
2007 2006 .2007/2006
(Dollars in thousands)
Salaries and employee benefits .......cooevveee.. $5.189 $4.,604 12.7%
Net occupancy expense of premises................ . 1,107 1,072 33 .
EQUIpmeNL ... 462 ' 480 (3.8) e
QOutside data processing.......... eereerrereeeanareaes ~ 650 608 6.9, | '
AdVertising ... e s g4 T 135 (37.8) c
SErvice CONITACES ...-teeeeeeeerrrererrnrernssnineneeenns 205 191 7.3 .
Insurance........... PSP 165 162 1.9
Audit and 2cCOUNHNE .ocvvriinriniiininiiicreeee 214 . 208 29
. Directors compensation ..............c.cccocceeececeanens 219 214 23 v
. Telephone ..o cvererasesaeaen, 167 161 3.7
Office supplies and stationary ..........cceecvnnae 209 252 (1.1
Director, officer, and employee expenses ....... 235 158 48.7
“Legal fees .o 277 185 . 497 :
OMHET . ot 642 440 459
Total noninterest EXPenses ..........ioeoereeecrrans, $9.826 $8,870 10.8

Noninterest expense increased $956,000, or 10.8%, to $9.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2007,
from $8.9 million for the year'ended December 31, 2006. The increase resulted primarily from an increase of !
$585,000 in salaries and- employee benefits. All other elements of noninterest expense increased in the aggregate by
$371,000 or 8.7%. - - -

The increase in salaries and employee benefits was primarily due to a $161,000 mid-year goal attainment
payment made to employees, a $140,000 severance payment made to a long-time officer, an increase of $25,000 in
ESOP expense, dnd an increase in the number of full time equlvaient employees to 87 ai December 31, 2007 from
74 at December 31, 2006, ”

All other noninterest expenses increased by $371,000, or 8.7%, to $4.6 million in 2007 from $4.3 million in
2006 due largely to additional expenses (audit and accounting, directors compensation, legal fees, and other non-
interest expense) associated with being a public company. The increase in director, officer, and employee expenses
was due to the additional marketing efforts of the mortgage loan and commercial loan departments.

Income Taxes. Income tax expense increased by $8.1 million, or 774.8%, to $9.15 million for the year
ended December 31, 2007. from $1.05 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. The increase resulied
primarily from the $18.7 million increase in pre-tax income in 2007 compared to 2006, The effective tax rate was
43.0% or the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to 40.2% for 2006. The increased effective tax rate was due
to the increased level of pre-tax income and the resultant reduced impact of tax-exempt income.

Risk Management

Overview. Managing risk is an essential part of successfully managing a financial institution. Our most
prominent risk exposures are credit risk, interest rate risk and operational risk. Credit risk is the risk of not
collecting the interest and/or the principal balance of a loan or investment when it is due. Interest rate risk is the
potential reduction of net interest income as a result of changes in interest rates. Operational risks include risks
related to fraud, regulatory compliance, processing errors, technology and disaster recovery. Other risks that we
face are market risk, liquidity risk and reputation risk. Market risk arises from fluctuations in interest rates that may
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result in changes in the values of financial instruments, such as available-for-sale securities, that are accounted for
on a mark-to-market basis. Liquidity risk is the possible inability to fund obligations to depositors, lenders or
borrowers. Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity or press, whether true or not, could cause a decline in
our customer base or revenue. '

Credit Risk Management. Our strategy for credit risk management focuses on having well-defined credit
policies and uniform underwriting criteria and providing prompt attentic: to potential problem loans. We
underwrite each mortgage loan application on its merits, applying risk factors to insure that each transaction is
considered on an equitable basis. .

When a borrower fails to make a required loan payment, we takz a number of steps to attempt to have the
borrower cure the delinquency and restore the loan to current status. When the ten day grace period expires and the
payment has not-been received, a'late payment notice is mailed and telephone contact is initiated. Throughout the
rest of the month that payment is due, the borrower is called several times. If the payment has not been received by
the end of the month, the borrower is informed that the loan will be placed in foreclosure within two weeks. On the
45" day after payment is due, the loan is forwarded to the problem loan >fficer who will review the file and
authorize an acceleration letter.” Once a foreclosure action has been instiluted, a written agreement between the
Bank and the debtor will be required to discontinue the foreclosure action. We may consider loan workout
arrangements with certain borrowers under certain circumstances. If no satisfactory resolution to the delinquency is
forthcoming, the note and mortgage may be sold pr1or to a foreclosure sale or the real property securing the loan
would be soid at foreclosure.

Management reports to the board of directors monthiy regarding the amount of loans past-due more than
30 days. .

Analysis of Nonperforming and Classified Assets. We generally consider repossessed assets and loans
that are 90 days or more past due to be nonperforming assets. It is generilly our policy to continue to accrue interest
on past-due loans and loans in foreclosure as long management determines that there is a reasonable expectation of
collection. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, the accrual of intzrest ceases and the allowance for any
uncollectible accrued interest is established and charged against operations. Typically, payments received on a
nonaccrual loan are applied in the followmg order to late charges, interest, escrow and outstanding principal.

Real estate that we acquire as a result of a foreclosure .action or I)y deed-in-lieu of foreclosure is classified
as foreclosed real estate until it is sold. When property is acquired, it is initially recorded at fair market value at the
date of foreclosure. Holding costs and declines in fair value after acquisition of the property result in charges
against income.
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The following table provides information with respect to our nonperforming assets at the dates indicated.
We did not have any troubled debt restructurings at the dates presented. '

At December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{(Dollars in thousands)

Nonaccrual loans:
Residential real estate: ..o ivieirererinen) L, T

One- to four-family........ccorerencererrencenens $ - $ - &8 - 3 - $ -
Multi-family.....cocoovvviniicaee, 666 - - - -
Mixed-use .............coo. rvrres et gt s - = - - -
Non-residential real estate ..........cccceueoenee. 1,200 - - - -
Construction .........eeeeseseneneens reeereerererenes T— - - - -
Consumer and other 10ans ........coccivvvneriven - - 1 - — - =’
TOUAL c.eeeeeeeeeeee e ervenesrerreresnerreseneneians $1,867 $ - $ - 5 - 5 -

Accruing loans past due 90 days or more:
Residential real estate:

One- to four-family.......ccc.ccv... v - - N - -~

Multi-family......cccoverrienne. 407 - - - -
MiXed-UsSe .......coeeiiceerrrerrnreereen s — - - - -
Non-residential real estate ........cccccoceevrnneas - - - - -
Consumer and other loans ..........5 ... - 2 — ~- —

Total of nonaccrual and 90 days or
more past due 10ans ..o 2,274 2 - - -

Foreclosed real estate........ocoovveereevcrnncnnnans - - - - -
Other nonperforming assets...........cccvvevvennen - - - - -
Total nonperforming assets ................. 2,274 2 - - -

Troubled debt restructurings...........c.ecevee.. - - - - -

Troubled debt restructurings and

total nonperforming 45888 .o nncrieinveenn. $2,274 $ 2 $ - $ - 5 —
Total nonperforming loans to total loans...... 0.80%  0.00% 0.00%  000%  0.00%
Total nonperforming loans to total assets..... 0.66% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Total nonperforming assets and troubled .

debt restructurings to total assets............... 0.66% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

At December 31, 2007, we had one nonaccrual multi-family mortgage loan and two nonaccrual-non-
residential mortgage loans totaling $1.9 million. The nonaccrual multi-family mortgage loan had an outstanding
balance of $666,000 and is secured by three buildings containing fourteen apartments located in Hampton, New
Hampshire, We are in the process of accepting a deed-in-lien of foreclosure on this property. Based on a recent fair
value analysis of the property, the Bank does not expect a loss on the disposition of the property.

One of the nonaccrual non-residential mortgage loans had an outstanding balance of $769,000 and is
secured by two gasoline stations and an antomobile repair facility located in Putnam and Westchester Counties, New
York. The other nonaccrual non-residential mortgage loan had an outstanding balance of $431,000 and is secured
by a non-residential building located in Yonkers, New York. The accruing muiti-family delinquent mortgage loan
had an outstanding balance of $407,000 and is secured by a six unit apartment building located in Newark, New
Jersey.
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Interest income that would have been recorded for the year encled December 31, 2007 had nonaccruing
loans been current to their original terms amountedito approximately $153,000.: During the year ended December
31, 2007, the Bank recognized interest income of approximately $21,000 on the nonaccrual loans.

[RE ;!'- ot

Federal regulations requiré us to review and class:fy our assets on a regular basis. In addition, the Office of
Thrift Supervision has the authority to 1dent1fy problem assets and, if appropriate, require them to be classified.
There are three classifications for problem assets: substandard, doubtful and loss. “Substandard assets™ must have
one or more defined weaknesses and are characterized by the distinct possibility that we will sustain some loss if the
deficiencies are not corrected. “Doubtful assets” have the weaknesses of substandard assets with the additional
characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full on the basis of currently existing facts,
conditions and values questionable, and there is a high possibility of loss. .An asset classified “loss™ is considered
uncollectible and of such little value that continuance as an asset of the institution is not warranted. The regulations
also provide for a “special mention” category, described as assets which do not currently expose us to a sufficient
degree of risk to warrant classification but do possess credit deficiencies or potential weaknesses deserving our close
attention. We recognize a loss as soon as a reasonable determination of that loss can be made. We directly charge,
against earnings, that portion of the asset that is determined to be uncollectible. If an accurate determination of the
loss is impossible, for any reason, we will establish an allowance in an amount sufficient to absorb the most
probable loss expected. In cases where a reascnable determination of a . oss cannot be made, we will adjust our
allowance to reflect a potential loss until a more accurate determination «an be made.

ta

The following table shows the aggregate amounts of our c]assnfled assets at the dates indicated.

L¥]

) At December 31, s :
’ T 2007 ] 2006 2005
i B o {(In thousands) ..
Special mention AsSets ........coorrrinreennn $ 865 s - $ -
Substandard assels ......ccceervveviirernereiereres 1,866 ) - . -
Doubtful and loss assets.....coovveeeceeerennee. - _ - -
Total classified asSetS........couvveveveenrennn. "$2.731° s - s -

Delinquencies. The following table provides information abour delinquencies in our loan portfolio at the
dates indicated.

. - ‘At December 31, : ‘
N T 2007 2006 2005
" 30-59 60-89 30-59 60-80 . 30-59 60-89
Days Days Days, . Days . ., Days Days
Past Due Past Due Past Due Past Due Past Due Past Due
i (In thousands)

Residential real estate: " o wooo., .o -
One- to four-family......... i $ 5 -85 -0 $ - 5 - - & - 5 -
Multi-family.......coccoene feemees : - . 458, R DT - -
Mixed-use......... - - o= L - - -
Non-residential real estate. . R .
Construction ........cocoeevceeeeveeereennn. - - - - - -
Commercial ...l ecerirnreesrnens Rt e L - - -
.. Consumer and-other ]oans..-. ........ , 4 0 - , - 2 1 —
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Analysis and Determination of the Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses is a
valuation allowance for probable credit losses in the loan portfolio. We evaluate the need to establish allowances
against losses on loans on a quarterly basis. When additional allowances are necessary, a provision for loan losses is
charged to earnings. The recommendations for increases or decreas*‘s to the allowance are presented by
management-to the board of dlrectors . -y

Our methodology for assessing the appropriateness of the allowance for loan losses consists of: (1}a
specnﬂc allowance on identified impaired and problem loans, if approprlate and (2) a general valuation allowance
on the remainder of the loan portfolio. Although we detemune the amount of each element of the allowance
separately, the entire allowance for loan losses is, available for the entire “portfolio.

Specific Allowance Required for Identified Impaired and Problem Loans. We establish an allowance on
certain identified impaired and problem loans when the loan balance exceeds the fair market value, when collection
of the full amount outstanding becomes improbable and when an accurate estimate of the loss can be documented.

General Valuation Allowance on the Remainder of the Loan Portfolio. We establish a general allowance
for loans that are not delinquent to recognize the inherent losses associated with lending activities. This general
valuation allowance is determined by segregating the loans by loan category and assigning percentages to each
category. The percentages are adjusted for significant factors that, in management’s judgment, affect the
collectibility of the portfolio as of the evaluation date. These significant factors may include changes in existing
general economic and business conditions affecting our primary lending areas and the national economy, staff
lending experience, recent loss experience in particular segments of the portfolio, collateral value, loan volumes and
concentration, specific reserve and classified asset trends, delinquency trends and risk rating trends. These loss
factors are subject to ongomg evaluation to ensure their relevance in the current economic environment.

. " ) .

We also establish 4 general allowance for loans identifi ed by the internal loan review process and loans not
performing according to contractual terms. These loans typically do not pose significant risk of loss, but do
demonstrate a higher level of risk than the average loan in our portfolio. These could include loans 30 days or more
past due, properties with vacant apartments or commercial spaces temporarily vacant due to tenant turnover or
renovation, or the death of the obligator causing delinquency until a court appointed executor takes control of the
property. We separate these loans by property type and assign a risk factor to each category based on its risk
potential as compared to the other categories and the portfolio as a whole. Loans classified special mention or
substandard would typically be candidates for treatment under this category.

We also identify loans that may need to be charged off as a loss by reviewing all delinquent loans,
classified loans and other loans that management may have concerns about collectibility. For individually reviewed
loans, the borrower’s inability to make payments under the terms of the loan or a shortfall in coliateral value would
result in our allocating a portion of the allowance to the loan that was impaired or to an addition to the genera]
valuation allowance to reflect the higher nsk assoc1ated with the identifi ed loan, .

' '
v E . " I

<At December 31, 2007, our al]owance for loan losses was $1.5 million and represented 0.53% of total gross
loans. At December 31, 2006, our allowance for loan losses was $1.2 million and represented 0.60% of total gross
loans. At December 31, 2005, our allowance. for loan losses was'$1.2 million and represented 0.63% of total gross
loans. The increase in our general valuatiori‘allowance is due pnmanly to the increase in mortgage loan balances
outstanding as of December 31; 2007. ‘ . : '
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The following table sets forth the breakdown of the allowanc? for

loan losses by loan category at the dates

indicated. '
‘ At December 31,
2007 2006 s 2005

% of % of % of
% of Loans in % of Loans in v, Foof Loans in
Allpwance Category AI! owance Category - Allowance Category
to Total  to Total .t Total  to Total to Total  to Total

Amount Allowance Loans Amount Allowance Loans Amount Aflowance Loans

o {Dollars in thousands)

Residential real estate:

' One- to four-family ooovvvvvens. $ = 0.0% 0.i% $ - "0.0% 02% § - 0.0% 0.3%
Multi-Family ..ooovrcovcrnrerevsnernnes | 472 31.7 490 395 329 - ¢+ 548 443 36.9 52.4
Mixed-use....coivevrurirs ! 250 16.8 18.5 251 20.9 21.1 Yo 231 229

Non-residential real estate.. 691 464 280 554 46.2 237 480 40.0 242
Construction........ 50 34 33 - .00 0.0 - 0.0 0.0
Commercial ....c...ou.covees LS L - o0 0.0 - 0.0 0.0
Consumer and other loans............. - 0.0 00— D 0.2 - 0.0 0.2
Total atlowance for loan losses.... § 1,489 100.0% 1000% $ 1,200 ' 100.0% 100.0% $1.200 100.0% 100.0%
At December 31,
2004 . 2003
. ' ' " % of % of
' %of Loans iit %o of Loans in
Allowance Categor | Allowance Category
to Total to Total to Total to Total
_Amount- Allowance _Loans _Amount _Allowance _Loans
te - ' (Dollars in thousands) '
Residential real estate: ' - .
One- to four-family ...cocoovevves.. § 2 0.2% 05% $ 3 0.3% 0.6%
Multi-family ....ocoocvmniiiisinsininn 520 43.3 589 . 497 414 553
Mixed-use . 290 24.2 227 329 , 274 26.0
Non-residential real estate............ 388 323 17.7 371 309 17.9
CONSUUCHON ..oooveor i 0.0 0.0 - " 00 " 00
Commercial ...\ cocvmrieceinrieresennnns - 00 00 - 0.0 0.0
Consumer and other loans............ - 0.0 0z - 0.0 © 0.2
Total allowance for loan losses.... $1,200 100.0% 100‘0%. $1,200 - 100.0% 100.0%

Although we believe that we use the'best information available to establish the allowance for loan losses,
future adjustments to the aliowance for loan losses may be necessary and our results of operations could be
adversely affected if circumstances differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the determinations.
Furthermore, while we believe we have established our allowance for loan losses in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, there can be no assurance that the Office of Thrift Supervision, in reviewing our
loan portfolio, will not request us to increase our allowance for loan losses. The Office of Thrift Supervision may
require us to increase our allowance for loan losses based on judgments different from ours. In addition, because
future events affecting borrowers and collateral cannot be predicted with certainty, there can be no assurance that
increases will not be necessary should the quality of any loans deteriorate as a result of the factors discussed above.
Any material increase in the allowance for loan losses may adversely affect our financial condition and results of

operations.
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Analysis of Loan Loss Experience. The following table sets forth an analysis of the allowance for loan
losses for the periods indicated.

v Year Ended December 31, :
- 2007 2006 . 2005 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands) ‘
Allowance at beginning of period................ $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 51,219
Provision for [0an 10SSes .....ooovevuevecreeeeenne. 338 - — — -

Charge offs:

Residential real estate:
One- to four-family ......
Multi-family ................. - :
Mixed-use .....coooveievnnnen (49) - - - -

Non-residential real estate...... - - - - -

Construction.........ccccveveeeeennens

Recoveries:
Residential real estate: ’ ..
One- to four-family .......coovvoeirieeenne. - - - - -
Multi-family ................. - - - - -
Mixed-use ........coveenenee. - - - - -
Non-residential real estate..
Construction ...........cceeeveeeennnnes - - - - -
Consumer and other loans...... - - - - -
. Total recoveries............ —
Net charge-offs..........ccooocemrecenrirvneenenenne (49) - — - D)

Allowance at end of period ..o $1,489 $1,200 $1.200 °  $1,200 $1,200

Allowance to nonperforming loans ............. 65.48% N/M N/M N/M N/M
Allowance to total loans outstanding ' e )
at the end of the period............... e 0.53% 0.60% 0.63% 0.71% 0.77%
Net charge-offs (recoveries) to average ‘ .
loans ouvtstanding during the period .......... 0.02% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.01%

Interest Rate Risk Management. We manage the interest rate sensitivity of our interest-bearing liabilities
and interest-carning assets in an effort to minimize the adverse effects of changes in the interest rate environment.
Deposit accounts typically react more quickly to changes in market interest rates than mortgage loans because of the
shorter maturities of deposits. As a resuit, sharp increases in interest rates may adversely affect our earnings while
decreases in interest rates may beneficially affect our earnings. To reduce the potential volatility of our earnings, we
have sought to improve the match between asset and liability maturities and rates, while maintaining an acceptable
interest rate spread. Our strategy for managing interest rate risk emphasizes: originating mortgage real estate loans
that reprice to market interest rates in three to five years; purchasing securities that typically reprice within a three
year time frame to limit exposure to market fluctuations; and, where appropriate, offering higher rates on long term
certificates of deposit to lengthen the repricing time frame of our liabilities. We currently do not participate in
hedging programs, interest rate swaps or other activities involving the use of derivative financial instruments.

We have an Asset/Liability Committee, comprised of our chief executive officer, chief financial officer,
chief mortgage officer, chief retail banking officer, and treasurer, whose function is to communicate, coordinate and
control! all aspects involving asset/liability management. The committee establishes and monitors the volume,
maturities, pricing and mix of assets and funding sources with the objective of managing assets and funding sources
to provide results that are consistent with liquidity, growth, risk limits and profitability goals.

Our goal is to manage asset and liability positions to moderate the effects of interest rate fluctuations on net
interest income and net income. : ) !
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+++ Net Portfolio Value Analysis. We use a net portfolio value anaysis prepdred by the Office of Thrift
Supervision to review our level of interest rate risk. This analysis measures interest rate risk-by computing changes
in net portfolio value of our cash flows from assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items in the event of a range of
assumed changes in market interést rates. Net portfolio value represents the market value of portfolio equity and is
equal to the market value of assets minus the market value of liabilities, with adjustmems made for off-balance sheet
items. These analyses assess the risk of loss in market risk-sensitive instruments in the event of a sudden and
sustained- 100 to 300 basis point incréase or 100 and 200 basis point decrzase in market mteref.l rate€s with no effect
given 1o any steps that we might take-to counter the effect of that interest rate movement.

The following table presents the change in our net portfolio value at December 31, 2007 that would occur
| in the event of an immediate change in interest rates based on the Office of Thrift Supervision assumptions, with no
| effect given to any steps that we might take to counteract that change. '

Net Portfolio Value

as % of
Net Portfolio Valu: Portfolio Value of
{Dollars in thousands) Assets
Basis Point (“bp™) $ $ % NPV ‘
Change in Rates Amount Change Change Ratio Change
i
300 $82.817 $(3,604) . D% 25.88% "(29) bp
200 84,092 (2,329 - (3% 26.01% (16) bp
100 85,318 (1,103 (D% 26.11% ( 6)bp
0 86,420 - - 26.17%
(100) . 87,479 1,059 1% 26.21% . 4 bp
(200) 88,377 1,956 2% 2620% 3 bp

We.and the Office of Thrift Supervision use various assumptions in assessing interest rate risk, These
assumptions relate to interest rates, loan prepayment rates, deposit decay rates and the market values of certain
assets under differing interest rate scenarios, among others. As with any method of measuring interest rate risk,
certain shortcomings are inherent in the methods of analyses presented in the foregoing tables. For example,
although cerain assets and liabilities. may have similar maturities or perinds to repricing, they may react in different
degrees to changes in market interest rates. Also, the interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may
fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates, while interest ra‘es on other types may lag behind changes
in market rates. Additionally, certain assets, such as adjustable-rate mor:gage loans, have features that restrict
changes in interest rates on a shoft-term basis and over the life of the asset. Further, in the event of a change in
interest-rates, expected rates of prepayments on loans and early withdravials from certificates could deviate
significantly from those assumed in calculating the table. Prepayment rates can have a significant impact on interest
income. Because of the largé percentage of loans we hold, rising or falling interest rates have a significant impact
on the prepayment speeds of our earning assets that in turn affect the rate sensitivity position. When interest rates
ris¢, prepayments tend to slow. When:inierest rates fall, prepayments tend to rise. Our asset sensitivity would be
reducéd if prepayments slow and vice versa. While we believe these assumptions to be reasonable, there can be no
assurance that assimed prepayment rates vwll approximate actual future loan repayment 'u:twuy '

|
! Laqutdtty Management.. quuldlty is the ability to meet current and future financial obhgauons of a short-
term nature. Our primary sources of funds consist of deposit inflows, loan repayments, maturities and sales of
securities and borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York. While maturities and scheduled
amortization of loans and securities are predlctable sources of funds, deposit flows and loan prepayments are greatly
mfluenced by general interest rates, economic conditions and competmcn

v We regularly adJust our investments in liquid assets based upor our assessment of: (1) expected loan
demand; (2) expected deposit flows; (3) yields available on interest-eaming deposits and securities; and (4) the
objectives of our asset/liability management policy.

Our most liquid assets are cash and cash equivalents. The levels of these assets depend on our operating,
financing, lending and investing activities during any given period. Cash and cash equivalents totaled $39.1 million




at December 31, 2007 and consist primarily of deposits at other financial institutions (Predominantly the Federal
Home Loan Bank of New York) and miscellaneous cash items. Securities classified as available-for-sale and whose
market value exceeds our cost provide an additional source of liquidity. Total securities classified as available-for-
sale were $320,000 at December 31, 2007 and $355,000 at December 31, 2006.

At December 31, 2007, we had $50.2 million in loan commitments cutstanding. At December 31, 2007,
this consisted of $36.1 miltion of .real estate loan origination commitments, $8.0 million in commercial loan
commitments, $2.9 million in unused real estate equity lines of credit. $2.5 million in unused commercial loan lines,
$582,000 in construction loans in process, and $191,000 in unused consumer lines of credit. Certificates of deposit
due within one year of December 31, 2007 totaled $95.3 million. This represented 65.7% of certificates of deposit
at December 31, 2007. We believe the large percentage of certificates of deposit that mature within one year reflects
customers’ hesitancy to invest their funds for long periods in the current low interest rate environment. If these
maturing deposits do not remain with us, we will be required to seek other sources of funds, including other
certificates of deposit and borrowings. Depending on market conditions, we may be required to pay higher rates on
such deposits or other borrowings than we currently pay on the certificates of deposit due on or before December 31,
2008. We believe, however, based on past experience, that a significant portion of our certificates of deposit will
remain with us. We have the ability to attract and retain deposits by adjusting the interest rates offered.

Our primary investing activities are the origination of loans and the purchase of securities. Qur primary
financing activities consist of activity in deposit accounts. ‘At December 31, 2007, we had the ability to borrow
$i1.2 million from the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, which included two available overnight lines of
credit of $5.6 million each. At December 31, 2007, we had no overnight advances outstanding. Subsequent to
December 31, 2007, we increased our borrowing line with the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York to $72.7
million dollars. During the first quarter of 2008, we borrowed $15.0 million through advances from the FHLB, of
which $15.0 million was outstanding as of March 31, 2008. Deposit flows are affected by the overall level of
interest rates, the interest rates and products offered by us and our local competitors and other factors. We generally
manage the pricing of our deposits to be competitive and to maintain or increase our core deposit relationships
depending on our level of real estate loan and commercial loan commitments outstanding. Occasionally, we offer
promotional rates on certain deposit products to attract deposits or to lengthen repricing time frames,

The following table presents cur-primary investing and financing activities during the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands}
Investing activities:
Loans disbursed or closed........cccoou...... $(86,954) $(35,803) $(58,176)
Purchase of loan participations ............... (11,6953) - -
Loan principal repayments......... e . 32,109 25,648 - 35,415
Sale of loans.......ococeviveeviei e 1,505 - -
Proceeds from maturities and principal
repayments of securities...........ccceeveeeee. ~ 29,676 35,682 3,107
Purchases of securities..........cccceeevveeenenne. (5,000} (50,335) (3,874)
Purchase of bank owned life insurance ' - (8,000) -
Proceeds from sale of premises and
EQUIPMENT ....c.oeeiirerrrnrerrrorrenserererees reeneees 9,082 - -
Purchases of premises and equipment {198) (6,726) (156)
Purchase of business .........ccccccccovnrennene.. (1,384) - -
Financing activities:
Increase (decrease) in deposits ................ 37,386 4,727 (302)
Initial stock offering, net of ESOP shares - 52.444 -
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Capital Management. We are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the
Office of Thrift Supervision, including a risk-based capital measure. The risk-based capital guidelines include both
a definition of capital and a framework for calculating risk-weighted assets by assigning balance sheet assets and
off-balance sheel items to broad risk categories. At December 31, 2007, we exceeded all of our regulatory capital
requirements. We are considered “well capitalized” under regulatory gnidelines.

The capital from our initial public offering increased our liquiclity and capital resources. In addition, the
sale of our First Avenue branch office building in the second quarter of 2007 further increased our capital. Over
time, the initial level of liquidity will be reduced as net proceeds from the stock offering and the sale of the branch
office building are used for general corporate purposes, including the funding of lending activities. Our financial
condition has been enhanced.by the capital from the offering, resulting in increased net interest-earning assets.
However, the large increase in equity resulting from the capital raised in the offering and the branch office building
sale will, initially, have ‘an adverse impact on our return on equity. From time to time, we may consuier capital .
managemem tools such as cash dmdends and common steck repurcha5°s

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements. In the normal course of o erations, we engage in a vanety of ﬁnanc1al
transactions that, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, are not recorded in our financial
statements. These transactions involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit, interest rate and liquidity risk. Such
transactions are used primarily to manage customers’ requests for funding and take the form of loan commitments
and lines of credit. For information about our loan commitments and unused lines of credit, see Note 3 of the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements. We currently have no plans 10 engage in hedging activities in the future.

o : . T ' 1

For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, we engaged in no off-balance sheet transactions
reasonably likely to have a material effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows,
Effect of Inflation and Changmg Pr:cw '

The financial statements and related ﬁnanc:al data presentcd in this Form ]0 K have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, which require the measurement of financial position
and operating results in terms of historical dollars without considering the change in the relative purchasing power
of money over time due to inflation. The primary impact of inflation on our operations is reflected in increased
operating costs. Unlike most industrial companies, virtually all the asscts and liabilities of a financial institution are
monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates generally have a more significant impact on a financial institution’s
performance than, do generai levels of 1nﬂat10n Interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or to the
same extent as the prices of goods and services.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to Part 11, Item 7, “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

ITEMS. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required by this item is included herein beginning on page F-1.

ITEMY. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNT]NG AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE '

None.
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ITEM 9A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, including the Company’s principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s “disclosure controls and
procedures,” as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, (the “Exchange Act”™). Based upon their evaluation, the principal
executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered
by this report, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective for the purpose of
ensuring that the information required to be disclosed in the reports that the Company files or
submits under the Exchange Act with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) (1) is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules
and forms, and (2) is accumulated and communicated to the Company’'s management, including
its principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

{(b) Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

Management’s annual report on internal control over financial reporting is incorporated herein by
reference to the Company’s audited Conselidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public
accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report was not
subject to attestation by the Company’s registered public accounting fifm pursuant to temporary
rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the Company to provide only
management’s report in this annual report.

{c) Changes to Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Except as indicated herein, there were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting during the three months ended December 31, 2007 that have materially affected, or are
reasonable likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART HI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The informatien relating to the directors and officers of Northeast Community Bancorp and information
regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act is incorporated herein by reference to Northeast
Community Bancorp’s Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Proxy Statement™) and
to Part [, Item 1, “Business — Executive Officers of the Registrant” to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Northeast Community Bancorp has adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct, a copy of which can
be found in the investor relations section of the Company’s website at www.necommunitybank.com.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information regarding executive compensation is incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy
Statement, '
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ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICI AL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDERS MATTERS '

, (@ Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

Information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section captioned
“Stock Ownership” in the Proxy Statement.

(b) Security Ownership of Management

* Information required by this itemn is incorporated herein by reference to the section captioned
“Stock Ownership” in the Proxy Statement.

() Changes in Coptrol ' , ' .
Management of Northeast Community Bancorp knows of no arrangements, including any pledge
by any person or securities of Northeast Community B ncorp, the operation of which may at a
subsequent date result in a change in control of the reg strant.

D

) . “Equity Compensdtiqn Plan Information
None.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELAT_IONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE
The information ‘relating to ce;tainl relationghips.an'd related tr_aﬁ.;'actiorjs is incorpdratcd herein by reference
to the Proxy Statement.

. R
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information relating to the principal accountant fees and expenses is incorporated herein by reference
to the Proxy Statement.

1 [
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ITEM 15.

M

2)

&)

PART IV

e s

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

* L1l "
The.financial statements requxred in response to this item are 1ncorporated by reference from Item
8 of this report.
.
All financial statement schedules are omitted because they are not required or applicable, or the
required information is shown in the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.

Exhibits S

3.1 Amended and Restated Charter of Northeast Community Bancorp, Inc. (1)
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Northeast Community Bancorp, Inc. (2)
4.1 Specimen Stock Certificate of Northeast Community Bancorp, Inc. (1)

10.1 Northeast Community Bank Employee Severance Compensation Plan (1)

10,2  Northeast Community Bank Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and Participation
Agreements with Kenneth A. Martinek and Salvatore Randazzo (1)*

10.3 Northeast Community Bancorp, Inc. Employment Agreement for Kenneth A Martinek

< and Salvatore Randazzo (1)*

10.4  Northeast Community Bank Employment Agreement for Kenneth A. Martinek and
Salvatore Randazzo (1)* 1

10.5 Employment Agreement between Northeast Community Bancorp, Inc., Northeast
Community Bank and Susan Barile (3)*

10.6 Northeast Community Bank Directors’ Retirement Plan (1)*

10.7 Northeast Community Bank Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan (1)* -

10.8 Employment Agreement between Northeast Community Bancorp, Inc., Northeast
Community Bank and Michael N. Gallina*(4)

210 List of Subsidiaries

23.0  Consent of Beard Miller Company LLP

31.1.  (Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer

320 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer

‘ Pote

*  Management contract or compensatory plan, contract or arrangement,
(1) Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form $-1, as
amended, initially filed with the SEC on March 12, 2006.

- (2) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-

K filed with the SEC on October 30, 2007.

(3) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006.

(4) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.
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SIGNATURES
‘ - . )
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto.duly authorized.

NORTHEAST COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC.

‘ 1o
Date: March 31, 2008 By: /s/ Kenneth A. Martinek
Kenneth A. Martinek "
President and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of ].934, thls report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities anid on the dates indicated,

Name : Title g Date
/sf Kenneth A. Martinek Pre51dent Chlef Execunve Ofﬁcer * - March 31, 2008
Kenneth A. Martinek and Director . '

{principal executive officer)

e

s/ Salvatore Randazzo : Executive Vice President, Chief March 31, 2008
Salvatore Randazzo Financial Officer and Dire:tor .
‘ (principal accounting and
financial officer) .

/s/ Diane B. Cavanaugh . Director ) ‘ . March 31, 2008
Diane B. Cavanaugh b . '

Is/ Arthur M. Levine Director ) March 31, 2008
Arthur M. Levine ) - . '

/s! Charles A. Martinek . Director . R o Mérch 31, 2008
Charles A. Martinek . . Do

/s/ John F. McKenzie - Director - ' . - March 31, 2008
John F. McKenzie :

/s/ Linda M. Swan Director March 31, 2008
Linda M. Swan
/s{ Harry (Jeff) A.S Read Director March 31, 2008

Harry (Jeff) A.S. Read

/s/ Kenneth H. Thomas Director March 31, 2008
Kenneth H. Thomas
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of Northeast Community Bancorp, Inc. (“the Company™) is responsible for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. The internal control process has been designed
under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of the Company’s financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. ‘

Management conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007, utilizing the framework established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on this
assessment, management has determined that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007 is effective.

Our internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that pertain to the
maintenance of records that accurately and fairly reflect, in reasonable cletail, transactioqs and dispositions of assets;
and provide reasonable assurances that! (1) transactions dre recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States; {2) receipts and
expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and the directors of the
Company; and (3) unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the Company’s financial statements are prevented or timely detected.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations, Therefore, even those
systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement
preparation and presentation. Also, projections of any evaluation of effizctiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Northeast Community Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary
White Plains, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Northeast
Community Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the
related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its
internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Northeast Community Bancorp, Inc. and
Subsidiary as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the consoclidated results of their operations and their .
cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America.
Beand Ml &W LLp

Beard Miller Company LLP
Pine Brook, New Jersey
March 19, 2008
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Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders’ Equity: Y

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

Assets '
Cash and amounts due {from depository institutions

Interest-bearing deposits

Cash and cash equivalents
Securities available-for-sale |

Securities held-to-maturity

Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses $1,48% and $1,200, respectively

Premises and equipment, net
"Federal Home Loan Ban‘k of New York.stoék, at cost

"Bank owned life insurance ' ' :
Accrued interest receivable :

Goodwill

Intangible assets i
Other assets ‘

' Total Assets

Liabilities:

Deposits:
+  Non-interest-bearing deposits- T e
Interest-bearing deposits -

, Total deposits ,
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance .
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Note payable
" Total Liabilities

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized, none issued

Common stock, $0.01 par value; 19,000,000 shares authorized; issued and
outstanding: 13,225,000 shares
Additional paid-in capital

Uneamed Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”) shares
Retained earnings :

Accumulated comprehensive loss

Total Stockholders’ Equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
See notes to consolidared financial statements

December 31,

2007

2006

(In thousands, except share and ‘
per share data)

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

'S 1,878 $ 2,650
37,268 34,099
39,146 36,749

320 355
2,875 27.455
283,133 201,306
4,529 1,117
414 399
8,515 8,154
1,340 1,101
1310 -
710 -
1,603 1,781
$343,895 $288,417
$ 1,745 $ 1,439
224233 187,153
225,978 188,592
2,884 1,929
5,577 1,145
627 -
235,066 191,666
132 132
57,555 57.513
(4.665) (4,925)
55,956 44,147
(149) (116)
108,829 96,751
$343,895 $288,417




Consolidated Statements of Income

Interest Income:

Loans
Interest-earning deposits
Securities - taxable

Total Interest Income
Interest Expense:
Deposits
Borrowings
Total Interest Expense
Net Interest Income before Provision for Loan Losses
Provision for Loan Losses
Net Interest Income after Provision for Loan Losses
Non-Interest Income:

Other loan fees and service charges
Net gain (loss) from premises and equipment
Earnings on bank owned life insurance
Other
Total Non-Interest Income
Non-Interest Expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Net occupancy expense
Equipment
Outside data processing
Advertising
Other
Total Non-Interest Expenses
Income before Provision for Income Taxes
Provision for Income Taxes
Net Income
Net Income per Common Share — Basic
Weighted Average Number of Common Shares
Outstanding — Basic
Dividends Declared per Common Share

(A) “The Company completed its initial public stock offering

on July 5, 2006.

See notes to consolidated financial statements

Years Ended December 31,

2007

2006

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

$ 14,894 $ 12,771
1,369 1,513
839 1,064

17,602 15,348
5,897 4,493
21 -
5918 4,493
11,684 10,855
338 -
11,346 10,855
358 443
18,962 (5)
361 154
86 27
19,767 619
5,189 4,604 . -
1,107 1,072
462 480
650 608
84 135
2,334 1,971
9,826 8,870
21,287 2,604
9,150 1,046
$ 12,137 $ 1,558
$ 095 $  0.06(A)
12,745 12,726 (A)
$ 006 $ -




Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Accumu-
lated Other
Compre- . i
Additional  Unearned hensive ,
. Common Paid- in ESOP Retained Income Total Comprehens
Stock Capital Shares Earnings {Loss) | Equity Income
(In thousands)
Balance - December 31, 2005 5 - 5 - b - 543,089 $ 31 3 43,120
Comprehensive income: ‘
Net income - - = ts 1558, 4+ - 1,558 $ 1558
Unrealized gain on securities
available for sale, net of deferred v . .
income taxes of $(3) - - - - 11 } i, 11
ESOP shares eamed - 17 259 _ _ 276 ‘
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS 158, ' '
net of deferred income taxes of $129 - - - - (138) (158)
Capitalization of Mutual Holding - I
Company - - - (500) - (500
Issuance of common stock 132 57.496 _ - - 57,628
Common stock acquired by ESOP - - (5.184) - - (5.184)
Total Comprehensive Income : $ 1,569
Balance - December 31, 2006 132 57.513 {4,925) 44,147 (116) 96,751 ©
Comprehensive income:
Net income - - - 12,137 - 12,137 $ 12,137
* Unrealized loss on securities
available for sale, net of taxes of i .
$(10) - - - - (17) an ..
Prior Service Cost — DRP, net of . ' :
taxes of $(13) ' - - - - (16) (16) (16
Cash dividend declared ($0.06 per share) - - - 328y . "(328)
ESOP shares earned _ a2 760 R - 302
Total Comprehensive Income . ' $ 12104
Balance - December 31, 2007 $ 132 $57.555 S(4665) _$55.956  _ S(149)  _$108829
See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows rrL

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Net accretion of secunues premiums and (dlscounts)
Provision for loan losses Voo e Y
Provision for depreciation
Net (accretion) amortization of deferred discounts, fees and cosls
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)
(Gain) loss from dispositions of premises and equipment
Earnings on bank owned life insurance
(Increase) in accrued interest receivable
(Increase) decrease in other assets
Increase in accrued interest payable
Increase in other liabilities
ESOP shares earned
Net Cash Provided by {Used in) Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Purchase of loans

Sale of loan participation interest

Net increase in loans

Purchase of securities held-to-maturity

Principal repayments on securities available-for-sale

Principal repayments on securities held-to-maturity

Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock

Purchases of premises and equipment

Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment

Purchase of business

Purchase of bank owned life insurance

Net Cash (Used in) Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Net increase (decrease) in deposits
Increase in advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance
Net proceeds of initial public stock offering
Common stock acquired by the ESOP
Cash dividends paid to minority shareholders
Initial capitalization of mutual holding company
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006
(In Thousands)

$12,137 $ 1,558
(88) (353)

© 338 -
589 589
(424) 76
5,053 (214)
(18,962) 5
(361) (154)
(239) (98)
(1,080) 143
8 5

184 174
302 276
(2,543) 1,807
(11,695) -
1,505 -
(55,208) (10,486)
{5,000) (50,335)
8 21
-29,668 35,661
(15) 42)
(198) (6,726)
9,082 17
(1,384) -
- (8.000)
(33,237 (39,890)
37,386 (4,727)
935 226

— 57,628
- (5,184)
(164) -
_ (500)
38,177 47,443
2,397 9,360
36,749 27,339
$ 39,146 3 36,749




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

Supplementary Cash Flows Information:

Income taxes paid e
Interest paid
|

“a
"

Supplementary Disclosure of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:
Loan receivable originated in connection with building sale
Assets acquired (liabilities incurred) in connection with the'
acquisition of a business: 5
" Intangible Assets . Cow
, .Goodwill
Note Payable

See notes io consolidated financial statements

'
]

Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006
(In Thousands)"
$ 43865 $ 1093
$ 5908 " § 4,488
3 16,341 3 -
8710 s -
" 1,310 -
(625) o=




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements B :

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - .
The following is a description of our business and significant accounting and reporting policies:

Nature of Business and Significant Estimates

Northeast Community Bancorp, Inc. {the “Company™) is a Federally-chartered corporation that was organized
to be a mid-tier holding company for Northeast Community Bank (the “Bank”) in conjunction with the Bank’s
reorganization from a mutual savings bank to a mutual holding company structure on July 5, 2006, The
Company’s primary acfivity is the ownership and operation of the Bank, . o

The Bank is principally engaged in the business of attracting deposits and investing those funds into mortgage
and commercial loans. When demand for loans.is low, the Bank invests in debt securities. Currently the Bank
conducts banking operations from its Headquarters in White Plains, New York gathering deposits nationwide
and lending from Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania to southern Maine. The Bank also has a Loan Production Office in
the Boston, Massachusetts area: Prior to a name change effective February 15, 2006, the Bank was known as
Fourth Federal Savings Bank. The change in name had no effect on the operations of the Bank.

New England Commercial Properties LLC, a New York limited liability company and wholly owned subsidiary
of the Bank, was formed in October 2007 to facilitate the purchase or lease of real property by the Bank.
Northeast Commercial Properties, LLC has been inactive since inception and had no assets or employees during
2007. : .

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
the Bank, and have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in.the United
States of America. All significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in

- consolidation,. . !

The preparation of consolidated financial statements, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain recorded amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

The most significant estimate pertains to the allowance for loan losses. The borrowers ability to meet
contractual obligations and collateral value are the most significant assumptions used to arrive at the estimate.
The risks associated with such estimates arise when unforeseen conditions affect the borrowers ability to meet
the contractual obligations of the loan and result in a decline in the value of the supporting collateral. Such
unforeseen changes may have an adverse effect on the consolidated results of operations and financial position
of the Company. . ,
In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an in'tegral,part of their examination process, periodically review the
Bank’s allowance for loan losses.. Such agencies may require the Bank to recognize additions to the allowance
based on their judgments about information available to them at the time of their exarination.

Additionally, we are exposed to significant changes in market interest rates. Such changes could have.an
adverse effect on our earning capacity and consolidated financial position, particularly in those situations in
which the maturities or re-pricing of assets are different than the maturities or re-pricing of the supporting
liabilities. :




| .

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

e

Cash and Cash Equivalents : A e
Cash and cash.equivalents include cash and amounts due from dzpository institutions and interest-bearing
deposits in other banks, all with original maturities of three months or less.

T P

Securities

, P P .

Statement of Financial Accounting Staridards (“SFAS™) No. 113, “Accounting for Certain Investments.in Debt
and Equity Securities” requires financial institutions to classify -their securities among three categories: held to
maturity, trading, and available for sale. Management determines. the appropriate Classification at the time of
purchase. Held to maturity securities are those debt securities which management has the intent and the Bank
has the ability to hold to maturity and are reported at amortized cost (unless value is. other. than temporarily
.impaired). Trading securities are those debt and equity- securitie:s which are bought and held principally for the
purpose of selling.them in the near term and are reported at fair j7alue, with unrealized gains and losses included
in earnings. Available for sale securities are those debt and equity. securities-which are neither held to maturity
securities nor trading securities and are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of the related
income tax effect, excluded from earnings and reported in a separate-component of stockholders’ equity. 'The
Company does not have trading securities in its portfoho

- . .
. e . .
. i o

Individual securities are considered nnpalred when fair ‘value is-less ‘than amortlzcd cost.’ Manag‘ement
evaluates on a monthly.basis whether any securities are -other-than-temporarily rimpaired. In making this
determination, we consider the extent and duration of the impairment, the nature and financial health of the
issuer, other factors relevant to specific securities, and our ability and intent to hold securities for a period of
time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in market value. If a secunty is determined to be other-
than-temporarily impaired, anlmpalrment loss is charged to operations. S A
r .ot ] Dot

Premiums and discounts on all securltles are amortlzed."accretej to maturity by use of the level-yield method.
Gain or loss on sales of securities is based on the specific 1dent1flcat10n method.

' T Stelat ]

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses . ca e

[ B '

I

L

.o . ab ‘ : 3
Loans are stated at unpaid principle balances plus net deferred loan origination costs less an allowance for loan
losses which is maintained at a level that represents managemen:’s best estimate of losses known and inherent
in the loan portfolio that are both probable and reasonable fo éstimate. The allowance is'déecreased by loan
charge-offs, increased by subsequent recoveries of loans previor Sly cha'rged off, and then adjusted, via either a
charge or credit to operations, to an amount determined by management to bé necessary.: Loans or portions
thereof, are charged off when, after collection efforts are exhausted; they are determined to be un-collectible.
Management of the Bank, in determining the allowance for loan losses, considers the losses inherent in its loan
portfolio and changes in the nature and volume inherent in its loan activities, along with the general economic
and real estate market conditions. Thé Bank utilizes a two tier aaproach: (1} identification of impaired loans
and establishment of specific loss allowances:on such loans; and (2) establishment of general valuation
allowances on the remainder of its loan portfolio. The Bank ma ntains a loan review system, which allows for a
periodic review of its loan portfolio and the early identification of potential impaired loans. Such system takes
into consideration, among other things! delinquency status, size of loans, type of collateral and financial
condition of the borrowers, Specific loan loss allowances areestablished for identified loans based on a review
of such information and/or appraisals of the underlying collateral.“General joan losses are based upon a
combination of factors including, but not limited to, actua} loan Joss experience, composition of the loan
portfolio, current economic conditions and management’s judgment. Although management believes that
specific and general loan losses are established in accordance with management’s best estimate, actual losses
are dependent upon future events and, as such, further addltlons to the level of loan loss allowances may be
necessary.,

F:0,




Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

A loan evaluated for impairment is deemed to be impaired when, based on current information and events, it is
probable that the'Bank will be unable to cotlect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan

" agreement. All'loans identified as'impaired are evaluated independently. The Bank does not aggregate such
loans for evaluation purposes. Payments received on impaired loans are applied first to interest receivable,
second to late charges, third to escrow, and fourth to principal.

Loan Origination Fees and Costs

S . . «

Net loan origination fees and costs are deferred-and amortized into income over the contractual lives of the
related loans by use of the level yield method.

Loan Interest and the Alowance for Uncollected Interest

’
‘

Interest on loans receivable is recorded on the accrual basis. An allowance for uncollected interest is o
"established on loans where management has determined that the borrowers may be unable to meet contractual
principal and/or interest obligations or where interest or principal is 90 days or more past due, unless the loans
are well secured and there is a reasonable expectation of collection. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual, an
allowance for uncollected interest is established and charged against current income. Thereafter, interest
income is not recognized unless the financial condition and payment record of the borrower warrant the

recognition of interest income. Interest on loans that have been restructured is accrued according to the
renegotiated terms. !

Concentration of Risk Lo

The Bank'’s lending activity is concentrated in loans secured by multi-family and non-residential real estate
located primarily in the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic regions of the United States. The Bank also had deposits in

- excess of the FDIC insurance limit at other financial institutions, At December 31, 2007, such deposits totaled
$37.0 million, of which $36.8 million was held by the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York. Generally,’
deposits in excess of $100,000 are not insured by the FDIC. -

. i . +

oy e
3

Premises and Equipment

Land is stated at cost. Buildings and improvements, leaschold improvements and furnishings and equipment

are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization computed on the straight-line method over the
following useful lives: C

. . Years
. |  Buildings 30 - 50
. S .+ Building improvements < 10-50 .
‘ : i~ Leasehold improvements : 1-15
Furnishings and equipment ' 3-50

'

" Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations in the years incurred. N )

ot

o
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Confinued) -
Bank Owned Life Insurance (“BOL1") . "

The Bank owns life insurance on the lives of certain of its officers. The cash surrender value is recorded as an
asset and the change in cash surrender value is included in non-interest income and is exempt from federal, state
and city income taxes. Qur BOLI is invested in a General Accourt Portfolio and a Yield Portfolio account and
is managed by an independent investment firm. g

Federal Home Loan Bank of New York Stock

. v
n

Federal law requires a member institution of the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) system to hold stock of its
district FHLB according to a predetermined formula. The stock is'carried at cost.

Business Combinations

e
'

Amounts paid for acquisitions are allocated to the tangible assets icquired and liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. The Company then allocates the purchase price in excess of net

tangible assets acquired to identifiable intangible assets. The fair value of identifiable intangible assets is based
‘on detailed valuations that use information and assumptions provilded by management. The Company allocates

any excess purchase price over the fair value of the net tangible and intangible assets acquired to goodwill.

+ - N1 i

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets at December 31, 2007, totaled $710,000 and consist of the value of customer relationships
acquired in the business combination completed by the Company in November 2007. The Company recorded
these intangible assets at cost and will commence amortizing such assets on January 1, 2008, using the straight-
line method over 11.7 years. Amortization expense will be included in other non-interest expenses. The
Company plans to evaluate the remaining useful life of intangible assets on a periodic basis to determine
whether events and circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining useful life. If the estimate of an
intangible asset’s remaining useful life is changed, the Company will amortize the remaining carrying value of
the intangible asset prospectively over the revised remaining useful life. The Company plans to review
intangible assets subject to amortization for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of these assets may not be recoverable. The Company will assess the recoverability of
imangible assets using undiscounted cash flows. If intangible assets are found to be impaired, the amount
recognized for impairment is equal to the difference between the carrying value and fair value. The fair value
will be estimated based upon the present value of discounted futur: cash flows or other reasonable estimates of
fair value. :

Goodwill

Goodwill at December 31, 2007, totaled $1,310,000 and consists ¢f goodwill acquired in the business
combination compieted by the Company in November 2007. The Company plans to test goodwill during the
fourth quarter of each year for impairment, or more frequently if certain indicators are present or changes in
circumstances suggest that impairment may exist. The Company plans to utilize a two-step approach. The first
step requires a comparison of the carrying value of the reporting unit to the fair value of the unit. The Company
will estimate the fair value of the reporting unit through internal aralyses and external valuation, which utilizes
an income approach based on the present value of future cash flows. If the carrying value of the reporting unit
exceeds its fair value, the Company will perform the second step of the goodwill impairment test to measure the
amount of impairment loss, if any. The second step of the goodwi'l impairment test compares the implied fair
value of a reporting unit’s goodwill with its carrying value. The iraplied fair value of goodwill is determined in
the same manner that the amount of goodwill recognized in a business combination is determined. The
Company allocates the fair value of the reporting unit to all of the assets and liabilities of that unit, including
intangible assets, as if the reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination. Any excess of the value
of a reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwill.
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income Taxes
The Company and the Bank file a consolidated federal income tax return. Income taxes are allocated to the
Company and Bank based upon their respective income or loss included in the consolidated income tax return.
The Company and the Bank file combined or separate state and city income tax returns depending on the
particular requirements of each jurisdiction,

Federal, state and city income tax expense.has been provided on the basis of reported income. The amounts
reflected on the tax returns differ from these provisions due principally to temporary differences in the reporting
of certain items for financial reporting and income tax reporting purposes. The tax effect of these temporary
differences is accounted for as deferred taxes applicable to future periods. Deferred income tax expense or
(benefit) is determined by recognizing deferred tax assets and liabilities for the estimated future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in
earnings in the period that includes the enactment date. The realization of deferred tax assets is assessed and a
valuation allowance provided, when necessary, foy that portion of the asset, which is not more likely than not to
be realized.

The Company recognizes income tax related penalties and interest incurred as a component of income tax
expense. Such amounts have been immaterial.

Adpvertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. The direct response advertising conducted by the Bank is
immaterial and has not been capitalized. Advertising costs are included in “non-interest expenses” on the
Statements of Income.

Other Comprehensive Income

The Company records in accumulated other comprehensive income, net of related deferred income taxes,
unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities and the prior service cost of the Outside Directors
Retirement Plan (“DRP”) that has not yet been recognized in expense. Realized gains and losses, if any, are
reclassified to non-interest income upon thé sale of the related securities or upon the recognition of a security
impairment loss. A portion of the prior service cost of the DRP is recorded in expense annually. At December
31, 2007, accumulated other comprehensive loss totaled $(149,000) and included $43,000 of net gains on
available for sale securities less $(18,000} of rélated deferred income taxes and $(316,000) in prior service cost
of the DRP less $142,000 of related deferred income taxes. At December 31, 2006, accumulated other
comprehensive loss totaled $(116,000) and included $70,000 of net gains on available for sale securities less
$(28,000) of related deferred income taxes and $(287,000) in prior service cost of the DRP less $129,000 of
related deferred income taxes. The Company has elected to report the effects of other comprehensive income in
the consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity.

Net Income Per Common Share

Basic net income per common share is calculated by dividing the net income available to common stockholders
by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Basic net income per
common share for the year ended December 31, 2006, was calculated by utilizing net income for the period July
5, 2006, the date the Company completed its initial public stock offering, through Décember 31, 2006
($749,000), and the weighted-average common shares outstanding during that same period. Dituted net income
per commen share is computed in a manner similar to basic net income per common share except that the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding is increased to include the incremental common shares
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) -
Net Income Per Common Share (Continued)

(as computed using the treasury stock method) that would have been outstanding if all potentially dilutive °
common stock equivalents were isstied during the period. C0mmon stock equivalénts may include restricted
stock awards and stock options. The Company has not granted any restricted stock awards or stock options and
had no potentially dilutive common stock equivalents, Unallocated comnion shares held by the Employee
Stock Ownership Plan ("ESOP") are not included in the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding for purpdses of calculatmg both basic and'dlluted el income per common share until they are
commltted to be relea:sed v vl e ;

LA ] R . P s, o Th Y

InterestRateRisk’ ‘ R
. P A n . L MUY !

" The Bank is prmc1pally engaged iri the busmess of attracting dep :jsits from the general public and using these
deposits, together with other funds, to purchase securities and fo ‘niake loans secured by real estate. The
potential for interest-rate risk exists'as a result of the generally shorter duration of i mterest—sensmve liabilities
‘compared to the generally Ionger duration of i mterest senismve as >ets 'In a rising rate environment, liabilities
will re-price faster than asséts, fhereby reducmg net interest incoimie. For this reason, management fegularly
monitors the maturity structirre of the Bank’s ssets “and'liabilities: in’ ofder to measure its level of interest-rate
risk and to plan for future volatility.

. . - ‘. Lo v 1
Oftf-Balance-Sheet Financial Instriuments ,
In the ordinary course of business, we enter into off-balance-sheet financial instruments consisting of
commitments to extend credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial condition when funded. ' ..
. L , . . : St 'l

Reclassification

Certain amounts for prior periods have been reclassified to confo:m to the current year’s presemanon Such
reclassifications had no effect on net income.

. : L. \ . . K '
Note 2 — Mutual Holding Company Reorganization and Regulatory Matters
E ] . B N .
On July 5, 2006, the 'Cor"nparly reol:ganlzed from a mutual savmg" bank to a mutual holding company structure.
. In the reorganization, the Company sold 5,951, 250 shares of its common stock to the public and issued

7,273,750 shares of its common stock 1o Northeast Commumty Bancorp, MHC (“MHC") The net proceeds
received from the common stock offermg were $57 6 millign. . Costs incurred in connection with the common
stock offering were recorded as a reducuon of gross proceeds from the offering and totaled approximately $1.9
million. The Company also provxded a term loan to the Bank’s Employee Stock Ownership Plan to enable it to
purchase 518,420 shares of Company common.stock at $10.00 per share as part of .the reorganization.
The MHC, which owned 55.0% of the Company’s co'mmon stocll as of December 31, 2007, must hold at least
50.1% of the Company’s stock so long as the MHC exists. In adiition to owning shares of the Company’s
common stock, the MHC was capitalized in 2006 with $500,000 'm cash from_ the Bank.

All depositors who had membership or llqu1danon rights with respect to the Bank as of the effective date of the
reorganization wili contmue to have such Tights solely with respe t to the MHC as long as they continue to hold
deposit accounts with the Bank. In addition, all persons whio become deposuors of the Bank subsequent to the
date of the transaction will have such membership and llqundatlon rlghts with respect to the MHC,
Borrowers of the Bank as'of the date of the transactlon wnll have the same membership rights in the

. MHC that they had in the Bank |mme(11ately pnor to the dae of the transaction as long as their
.existing borrowings remain outstanding. - P e :
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Note 2 — Mutual Holding Company Reorganization and. Regulatory Matters

Office of Thrift Supervision (“OTS") regulations impose limitations upon all capital distributions, including
cash dividends, by savings institutions such as the Bank. .Under these regulations, an application to and a prior
approval of the OTS are required before any capital distribution if (1) the institution does not meet the criteria
for “expedited treatment” of applications under OTS regulations; (2) total capital distributions for the calendar
year exceed net income for that year plus the amount of retained net income for the preceding two years; (3) the
institution would be undercapitalized following the distribution; or (4) the distribution would otherwise be
contrary to statute, regulation or agreement with the OTS, If an application is not required, the Bank would still
be required to provide the OTS with prior notification. The Company’s ability to pay dividends, should any be
declared, may depend on the ability of the Bank to pay dmdends to the Company

OTS regulations require the MHC to notify the OTS if it proposes to waivé the receipt of dividends declared by
the Company. The OTS reviews dividend waiver requests on a case-by-case basis and, generally, has not
objected to such waivers if (1) the waiver would not be detrimental to the safe and sound opetation of the
institation; (2) the MHC’s board of directors has determined that such waiver is consistent with such directors’
fiduciary duties to MHC’s members; and (3} the MFC certifies that the dividends declared (distributed and
waived) for the current year plus prior two calendar quarters does not exceed cumulative net income during that
period. ‘

During 2007, the MHC filed notice with the OTS, which did not object, of its intention to waive dividends
declared by the Company. Dividends declared by the Company in 2007 and waived by the MHC totaled
approximately $436,000. We anuclpate that the MHC will continue to waive receipt of all dividends declared
by the Company.
The Bank is required to maintain certain.levels of capital in accordance with the Financial Institutions Reform,
Recovery and Enforcement Act (FIRREA) and OTS regulations. Under these capital adequacy guidelines and
the regulatory framework for prompt corréctive action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that
involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated
under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank's capital amounts and classification are also Sllb_jCCt to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk-weightings and other factors.

[}
Under the OTS regulations, the Bank must have: (1) tangible capital equal to 1.5% of (angible assets, (2) core
capital equal 3% of tangible assets, and (3) total (risk-based) capital equal to 8% of risk-weighted assets.,
Tangible capital consists generally of stockholders’ equity less most intangible assets. Core capital consists of
tangible capital plus certain intangible assets such as qualifying purchased mortgage-servicing nghts Risk-
based capilal consists of core Caplta] plus the general allowance for loan losses.
Under the prompt corrective action Tule issued by the federal banking authorities, an institution must have a
leverage ratio of 4% or greater, a tier 1 capital ratio of 4% or greater and a total risk-based capital ratio of 8% or
greater in order to be considered adequately capitalized. The Bank is in compliance with these requirements at
December 31, 2007. ' .

o "
L N
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Note 2 — Mutual Holding Company Reorganization and Regulatory Matters (Continued)

The following tables present a reconciliation of capital per generilly accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”)
. and regulatory capital and information about the Bank’s capital le:vels at the dates presented:

' ' December 31,

66,953

F-15

2007 2006
_ (In Thousands)
GAAP capital . $ 79,456 $ 67662
Less: Goodwill and intangible assets (2,020 -
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale (25) (42)
Disallowed deferred tax assets . (1,003) (667)
. . ¢ . .
Core and Tangible Capital 76,408 66,953
Add: General valuation allowances 1,489 1,200
Total Capital $ 77.897 $ 68,153
To be Well Capitalized
. . . L o . : under Prompt
For Capital Adequacy Corrective Action
Actual _ Purposes Provisions
Amount Ratio _Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
" l N . ' (D'ollz'l_rs in Thousands)}
As of December 31, 2007: ) S . )
Total capital (1o risk-weighted assets) $ 77,897 37.50 % § 216,617 2800 %  $20772 21000 %
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets) 76.408 36.78 U >12.463 > 6.00
Core (Tier 1) capital (to adjusted total
assets) © 76,408 24.18 212,641 24,00 >15801 2 500
Tangible capital (to adjusted total assets) 76.408 24.18 >4.740 5150 > _ s _
As of December 31, 2006: .
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) $ 68,153 458 % $ 212229 2800 % § 215286 21000 %
Tier l Capital ([0 I‘iSk-Weighted a.ssets) 66 953 43.80 s ! > _ > _ Wt 29 172 > 6.00
Core (Tier 1) capital (to adjusted total ' e
assets) 66,953 25.46 210,520 2400 213,150 2 5.00
Tangible capital (to adjusted total assets) 25.46 >1.50 S _ >

23,945




Note 2 — Mutual Holding Company.Reorganization and Regulatory Matters (Continued)

Based on the most recent notification by the OTS, the Bank was categorized as well capitalized under the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, There have been no conditions or events that have occurred
since notification that management believes have changed the Bank'’s category.

The Bank’s management believes that, with respect to regulations under FIRREA, the Bank. will continue to
meet its minimum capital requirements in the foreseeable future. However, events beyond the control of the
Bank, such as increased interest rates or a downturn in the economy in areas where the Bank has most of its
loans, could adversely affect future earnings and, consequently, the ability of the Bank to meet its future
minimum capital requirements.

Note 3 — Acquisition

On November 16, 2007, the Company acquired the operating assets of Hayden Financial Group LLC
(“Hayden”), an investment advisory firm located in Connecticut, at a cost of $2,020,000, including $95,000 of
expenses directly related to the transaction. The acquisition of these business assets has enabled the Bank to
expand the services it provides to include investment advisory and financial planning services to the then-
existing Hayden customer base as well as future customers. In connection with this transaction, the Company
recorded intangible assets related to customer relationships of $710,000, goodwill of $1,310,000 and a note
payable with a present value of $625,000. The acquired business is being operated as a division of the Bank
and, during the period owned in 2007, generated total revenues of approximately $69,000 and net income of
approximately $2,000.

Note 4 — Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet
the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments are commitments to extend credit. Those
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount
recognized in the statements of financial condition.

The Bank’s exposure to credit ioss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument
for commitments to extend credit is represented by the contractual notional amount of those instruments. The
Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-
balance-sheet instruments,

December 31,

2007 2006
(In Thousands)
Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk:
Commitments to extend credit $ 44,071 $ 3,933
Construction loans in process 582 -
Commitments to fund unused lines of credit:
Commercial lines 5,379 '3,651
’ Consumer lines ' . 19] 210
. . . . $ 50,223 3 7,794
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Note 4 — Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Rislc (Continued) .

At December 31, 2007, all of the financial instruments noted above carry adjustable or floating interest rates.
Commitments to extend credit are legally binding agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no
violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitmets generally have.fixed expiration dates or
other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Thé amount of collateral obtained, if deemed

Note 5 — Securities Availahle for Sale

Federal National Mongage Association common
stock
Mortgage-backed sécurities:
Federal Home Loan Mortgage

Corporation
Federal National Mortgage Association

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations

Federal National Mortgage Association common
. stock-

Mongagé-backed securities:

Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation
Federal National Mortgage Association

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations

necessary by the Bank, is based on management s credit evaluation of the borrower.

e “

December 31, 2007

Gross Gross
Amortized Urnrealized Unrealized -,
Cost Gains ' Losses Fair Value
", + (In Thousands).
$ 4 $r 42 $ 1= $ 46
| 1. R -
187 o " 188
82 - - 82
4 ! — - L= 4
273 1 7 ) - 274
$ 277 . 85 43 . .3 - v 5320
December 31,2006 i
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized . .
Cost . Gains ,.Losses Fair Value
(In Thousands) *
3 4 S 68 3 - $ 72
1 1 f e
193 2 o 195
e . KR
84 ‘ . - - 84
4 - - 4
281 2 o 283
$ 285 $ 70 $ - $ 355

There were no sales of securities available for sale during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.

"
b
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Note 5 — Securities Available for Sale (Continued)+ - .

Contractual maturities of mortgage-backed securities were as follows:

, i

December 31,
- 2007
Amortized . Amortized '
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
_ {(In Thousands)
Due within one year - $ 4 - % 4 $ - $ -
Due afier one but within five years _ _ 4 4
Due after ten years ‘ . - 269 270 277 279
$ 273 $ 274 $ 281 $ 283

The maturities shown above are based upon contractual maturity. Actual maturities will differ from contractual
maturities due to scheduled monthly repayments and due to the underlying borrowers having the right to prepay

their obligations.

Note 6 — Securities Held to Maturity

December 31, 2007
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost . " Gains Losses Fair Value
’ (In Thousands)
Mortgage-backed securities: : ' ' b
Government National Mortgage T S )
Association $ 1,341 $ 9 5 2 $ 1,348
Federal Home Loan Mortgage =~
Corporation R 668 - 668
Federal National Mortgage Association '-}:46 } 9 ) 753
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations _ . 116 o _ 117
Private Pass-through Securities ’ 4 ” - - 4
$ 2875 § 23 -5 - B $ 2,890
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Note 6 — Securities Held to Maturity (Continued). .+ =~ -

December 31, 2006 B
Gross Gross
L Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
. Do . . Cost . . Gains Losses Fair Value
< .. . .. (In Thousands)
U.S. Government (mcludmg Agencws) maturmg T :
Within one year o Cost21904 s 11 $ 2 $ 21,913
After one but within five yeér_s 1.000 _ 9 991
22,904 11 11 22,904
Mortgage-backed securities: ‘ BT
Government National Mortgage .
Association ' 2190 4 ., 6 13 2,183
Federal Home Loan Mortgage b
Corporation : o 130 0 s 12 | : © 1,144
‘Federal National Mongage Assouatlon N 995 ° . 12 R I 1,005
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 299 1 _ 293
Private Pass-through Securities ' 9 . o R : 9
- . - 4551 - - 31 18 4,564
| ! i '
| .. P W
T - _ o $ 27455 . o 5 42 5 29 $ 27468
‘ There were no sales of secufities held to maturity during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.
‘ Contractual maturities of mortgage-backed securities were as follows: o
| December 31,
. 2007 2006
' Amortized . Amortized
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
. : : S X (In Th()usan(is) .
Due within one year $ 50 $ 0 8 _ $ _
Due after one but within ﬁVB years . ".m - ' 46 ' . 47 258 260
Due after five but within ten years 303 303 95 95
Due after ten years ) 2,476 . 2,490 4,198 4,209
$ 2,875 $ 2,890 $4,551 $ 4,564
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Note 6 — Securities Held to Maturity (Continued)

The maturities shown above are based upon contractual maturity. Actual maturities will differ from contractual
maturities due to scheduled monthly repayments and due to the underlying borrowers having the right to prepay
their obligations.

The age of unrealized losses and the fair value of related securities held to maturity were as follows:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More - Total
. Gross Gross s Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Yalue Losses Value Losses Value Losses
(In Thousands)
December 31, 2007:
Mortgage-backed securities $ 74 $ 1 $ 961 § 7 $1.035 - $ 8
December 31, 2006:
U. S. Government . . )
(including Agencies) $ 997 s 2 $ 991 $ 9 $1,988 $ 11
Mortgage-backed securities _ _ 1372 18 2372 18
$ 997 $ 2 $3,363 $ 27 $4,360 $ 29

At December 31, 2007, 27 mortgage-backed securities had unrealized losses. As of December 3.1‘, 2007 and
2006, management concluded that the unrealized losses reflected above were temporary in nature since they
were primarily related to market interest rates and not related to the underlying credit quality of the issuers of
the securities. Additionally, the Bank has the ability and intent to hold these securities for the time necessary to
recover the amortized cost.
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Note 7 — Loans Receivable, Net

December 31,

e 2007 . 2006

{(In Thousands)
Real estate mortgage:
- One-to-four family LRI Do $ 304 $ 405
Multi-family 138,767 110,389
Mixed use e Wm0 52,559 42 576
Commercial o o o T T 79,305 47,802
. » L » .;l 'I'-..
‘_, i PN . 270,935 201,172
Construction: L ;e
Multi-family ' 7,538 '_'
Commercial I S _ 1,918« - -
9,456 =
Commercial Business: :
Lines of Credit . . - . 2,322 R
Term - _ 655 . -,
2,977 -
Consumer: i - -
Line of credit o U . L 69 T
Passbook or certificate o . o 19 " 348
Total Loans ' 283456 201,591
Allowance for loan losses (1,489) (1,200)
Deferred loan fees and costs 1,166 915
$283,133 $201,306

Loans serviced for the benefit of others totaled approximately $4,407,000 and $3,012,000 at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively. :

At December 31, 2007, we had three non-accrual loans which totaled approximately $1,867,000. There were nio
non-accrual loans at December 31, 2006. Interest income on such Icans is recognized only when actually
collected. During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Bank recognized interest income of approximately

© $21,000 on the non-accrual loans. Interest income that would have been recorded had the loans been on the
accrual status would have amounted to approximately $153,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007. The
Bank is not committed to lend additional funds to borrowers whose loans have been placed on the non-accrual
status.
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Note 7 — Loans Receivable, Net (Continued)

At December 31, 2007, impaired loans totaled $1,866,000 and were not subject to specific loan loss allowances.
For tlie year ended December 31, 2007, the average recorded investment in impaired loans totaled
approximately $1,114,000. No interest income was recognized on impaired loans during the peried of
impairment. At and during the year ended December 31, 2006, no loans were classified as impaired.

The following is an analysis of the allowance for loan losses:

] : . - Years Ended December 31,
' 2007 2006
" (In Thousands)
Balance, beginning $ 1,200 $ 1,200
Provision charged to operations 338 , -
Losses charged to allowance (49) -
Balance, ending c $ 1.489 $ 1,200

Note 8 - Premises and Equipment, Net -

‘ v e

- S . December 31,

: : 2007 2006
(In Thousands)
Land . : c $ 534 . $ 587
Air rights acquired . l - 6,088
Buildings and improvements _ ' 7,183 7,592
Leasehold improvements ) Co. 736 725
Furnishings and equipment ' T 4,977 4,823
. 13,430 19,815
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (8,901) (8,698)
3 4,529 $11.117

1 L

Included in property and equipment at December 31, 2006, were $6,187,000 in assets, which were held for sale.
These assets relate to a branch focated in New York City and-consisted of the following: land of $52,000, air
rights of $6,088,000, building of $5,000 and furnishings and equipment of $42,000. The Bank closed on the
sale of these assets on June 29, 2007 recewmg net proceeds of $25,157,000 and recogmzmg a net gain of
$18,962 000
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Note 9 — Accrued Interest Receivable, Net

. December; 31,

2007 2006
(In Thousands)
Loans 5 1,456 $ 1,041
Securities - 16 64
1,472 1,105
Allowance for uncollected interest (132) (4)
' $ 1,340 $ 1,101
Note 10 — Deposits
December 31, '
2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
Ave::age. L Average
Interest Interest
Amount Eate Amount Rate
. (Dollars in Thousands)
" Démand deposits:
Non-interest bearing $ 1,745 Do % % 1,439 O.QO %
NOW and money market 21,839 084 % 21,137 - 049 %
23,584 077 % 22,576 . 046 %
Savings accounts 57,346 w73 % 60,755 070 %
Certificates of deposit maturing in:
‘ One year or less 95,341 83 % 68,033 440 %
_ After one to two years 24,531 476 % 13,537 417 %
After two to three years 14,412 478 % 9,630 ~4.28 %
After three to four years 5,099 ‘ 27 % 9,339 457 %
After four to five years 5,665 515 % 4,722 ) 527 %
145,048 484 % 105,261 441 %
$225,978 337 % $188,592 274 %

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, certificates of deposit over $100,000 totaled $26,846,000 and $24,368,000,
respectively. Generally, deposits in excess of $100,000 are not insuied by the FDIC.
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Note 10 — Deposits (Continued)

Interest expense on deposits consists of the following:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006
{In Thousands)
Demand deposits $ 117 $ 111
Savings accounts 415 469
Certificates of deposit 5,365 3913

$5.897 : $4,493

Note 11 — Note Payable

In conjunction with the Hayden acquisition on November 16, 2007, the Company incurred a four-year, zero-
coupon note payable of $700,000. The note is payable in four annual installments, one on each succeeding note
anniversary date, of $175,000. The note was initially recorded at $625,000, assuming a 4.60% discount rate.
The note payable balance at December 31, 2007, was $627,000 and note discount accreted during 2007 totaled
$2,000. ’

Note 12 — Income Taxes

The Bank qualifies as a savings institution under the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code and was,
therefore, prior to January 1, 1996, permitted to deduct from taxable income an allowance for bad debts based
upon eight percent of taxable income before such deduction, less certain adjustments. Retained earnings at
December 31, 2006 and 20035, include approximately $4.1 million of such bad debt deductions which, in
accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” is considered a permanent difference between
the book and income tax basis of loans receivable, and for which income taxes have not been provided. If such
amount is used for purposes other than for bad debt losses, including distributions in liquidation, it will be
subject to income tax at the then current rate.

The components of income taxes are summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006
(In Thousands)
Current tax expense $4,097 51,260
Deferred tax expense 5,053 (214)
Income Tax Expense $9,150 $1,046
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Note 12 — Income Taxes (Continued)

The following table presents a reconciliation between the reported-“income taxes and the income taxes, which
would be computed by applying normal federal income tax rates to income before taxes:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006
(Dollars In Thousands)
Federal income tax at statutory rates ‘ $7.238" $ 886
State and City tax, net of federal income tax
effect 1,945 202
Non-taxable income on bank owned life
insurance (123) {52)
Other ‘ 90 10
Income Tax Expense $9,150 - $1,046
Effective Income Tax Raie . : 43.0% 40.2%

The tax effects of significant items comprising the net deferred tax asset are as follows:

December 31,

2007 2006
(In Thousands)
Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for loan losses , $ 657 $ 514
Depreciation 168 264
Benefit plans 223 63
Accumulated other comprehensive loss - DRP . 142 129
Deferred loan fees and discounts - 67
Total Deferred Tax Assets 1,190 1,037

Deferred tax liability:
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale 18 28
Deferred loan fees and discounts 14 -
Gain on sale of building 5,179 -
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 5,211 28
Net Deferred Tax (Liability) Asset $(4,021) $£1,009

The net deferred tax (liability) asset is included in {(accounts payabl: and accrued expenses) other assets in the
consolidated statements of financial condition.
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Note 13 — Other Non-Interest Expenses

The following is an analysis of other non-interest expenses:

Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006
(In Thousands)

Service contracts $ 205 $ 191
Insurance ' : ‘ 165 , 162
Audit and accounting 214 208
Directors compensation 219 214
Telephone 167 161
Office supplies and stationary 209 252
Director, officer, and employee expenses 235 158
Legal fees 21 185
Other 642 440

$2,334 31,971

Note 14 — Benefits Plans

QOutside Director Retirement Plan (“DRP”)

Effective January 1, 2006, the Bank implemented the DRP. This plan is a non-contributory defined benefit
pension plan covering all non-employee directors' meeting eligibility requirements as specified in the plan
document. The DRP is-accounted for under Statements of Financial Accounting Standards Nos. 132 and' 158.
The following table sets forth the funded status of the DRP and components of net periodic expense:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006
(Dollars In Thousands)
Benefit Obligation — beginning : : 5 358 5 -
Service cost : 43 oo 12
Interest cost ' o : 25 - 18
Actuarial loss ) 49 -
Prior service cost 1 ‘308
Benefit Obligation — ending : 3 476 $358
Funded Status - Accrued liability included in Accounts Payable and Accrued '

Expenses $ 476 $358
Discount rate ‘ ) ' - 6.00% . 6.00%
Salary increase rate . . 2.00% o 2.00%
Net pension expense: :

Service cost $ 43 $ 32

Interest cost . 25 18.

Amortization of unrecognized prior service liability 21 21
Total pension expense included in Other Non-Interest Expenses : $ 89 5 71
Discount rate ' 6.00% 6.00%
Salary increase rate 2.00% 2.00%
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Note 14 — Benefits Plans (Continued) Coeds et

Qutside Director Retirement Plan (“DRP”) (Continued)s 1

At Deceimber-31, 2007, prior service cost of $267,000 and actuar.al losses of $49,000 have been recorded in

" Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss. Approximately $21,0(10 and $5.000 of those amount are expected to

be included in pension expense in 2008.

'Benefit payments, which reflect expected future service as appropriate, are expected to be paid for the years
.ended December 31 as follows (in thousands): :

M 3

2008 ‘ $ -
' 2009 oo N
2010 o . _
2011 ' 29 .
2012 60
2013 -2017 393

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP”).

Y

Effective January 1, 2006, the Bank implemented the SERP. This plan is a non-contributory defined benefit
plan accounted for under SFAS 106. The SERP covers both the 3ank’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer. Under the SERP, each of these individuals will be entitléd (6 recéive, upon retirement at age
65, an annua] benefit, paid in monthly installments, equal to 50%, of his average base salary in the three-year
perlod precedmg rellrement Each mdmdual may also retlre early and receive a reduced benefit (0.25%

reduction in benefit for e.u:h momh by which retlrement age is Ie*.s than 65 years) upon the attainment of both

age 60 and 20 years of semce Addm{onal terms related o death while employed death after retirement,
disability before retirement and termination of emp]oyment are fully described within the plan document. The
benefit payment term is the greater of 15 years or the executives temaining life. No benefits are expected to be

'paid during the next ten years.

During the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, expenses of $135,000 and 114,000, respectively, were
recorded for this plan and are reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Income under Salaries and Employee
Benefits. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, a liability for this plan of $249,000 and $114,000, respectively, is
included in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition under Accounts Payabie and Accrued Expenses.

401(k) Plan

The Bank maintains d 40 1(k} plan for all ellglble employees. Par:icipants are- permitted to contribute from 1%

.to 15% of their annual compensation up to the maximum permuted under the Internal Revenue Code. The

Bank through August 2006, made matching contributions equal to 100% of the employees contribution up to
5% of annual compensation. Plan expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $90,000. 'In September

' 2006, the Bank ceased making matching contributions to the 401(k) plan. Employer contrlbutlons fully vest
after 6 years.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”) o

o H . P i AN L
v EORM

" In conjuncuon-wnh the Company s initial public stock offering, the Bank established an ESOP for all eligible

employees (substantially all full-time employees). The ESOP boirowed $5,184,200 from the Company and
used those funds to acquire 518,420 shares of Company common stock at $10.00 per share. The loan from the
Company carries an interest rate of 8.25% and is repayable in twenty annual installments through 2025. Each
year, the Bank intends to make discretionary contributions to the ZSOP equal to the principal and interest
payment required on the loan from the Company. The ESOP may further pay down the priricipal balance of the
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Note 14 — Benefits Plans (Continued) " A . “

Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”’) (Continued)

loan by using dividends paid, if any, on the shares of Company common stock it owns. The balance remaining
on the ESOP loan was $4.762,000 at December 31, 2007,

Shares purchascd with the loan proceeds serve as collateral for the Joan and are held in a suspense account for
future allocation among ESOP participants. As the loan principal is repaid, shares will be released from the
suspense account and become eligible for allocation. The allocation ameng plan participants will be as
described in the ESOP governing document.

The ESOP is accounted for in accordande wnh Statement of Position 93- 6 “Accounting for Employee Stock
Ownership Plans”, which was issued by the Amencan Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Accordingly,
ESOP shares mma]ly pledged as collateral were recorded as unearned ESOP shares in the stockholders’ equity
section of the consolidated statement of financial condition. Thereafier, on a monthly basis over a 240 month
period, approximately 2,160 shares are committed to be released and compensation expense recorded egual to
the shares committed to be released multiplied by the average closing price of the Company’s stock during that
month. ESOP expense during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, totaled approxlmately $302,000
and $276,000, respectively. Dividends on unallocated shares, which totaled approximately $15,000 during
2007, are recorded as a reduction of the ESOP loan. "Dividends on allocated shares, which totaled -
approximately $1,000 during 2007, are charged to'retained earnings. ESOP shares are summarized as follows:

a I S L P TR ! i
December 31,

’ N ' 2006
Allocated shares 25,921 -
Shares committed to be released 25,921 25,921
Ungamed shares . 7 466,578 492,499

Total ESOP Shares 518,420 518,420
Fair value of uneamned shares _ $5,520,000 $6.,053,000

+

' v 1

Note 15 — Commitments and Contiltgeltcies .

Lease Commitments
. . ! . " ‘ ' c . . .
Rentals under operating leases for certain branch offices amounted to $297,000 and $198,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. At December 31, 2007, the minimum rental commitments
under all non-cancelable leases with mmal or remalnmg terms of more than one year are as follows (in
thousands): . ‘ ‘
Year ending December 31, . « . -
2008 5 294

2009 oL . ’ ) 274

2010- . - : c 248

2011 » T ; : 162

2012 64

Thereafter 1,114
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Note 15 — Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)
Available Credit Facilities - e

The Bank has the ability to borrow up to $11.2 miltion from the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York,
consisting of a $5.6 million Overnight Line of Credit and a $5.6 niillion Companion (DRA) Commitment, both
of which expire on July 31 2008. At Décember 31, 2007 and 20(!6 no amounts were outstandmg under these
credit facilities.

Other o T s ‘ ‘

The Company and Bank are also subject to claims and litigation that arise pnmanly in the ordinary course of
business. Based on information presently available and advice received from legal counsel representing the
Company and Bank in connection with such claims and litigation, it is the opinion of management that the
"disposition or ultimate determination of such claims and litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the
consolidated financial position, results of operations or liquidity cf the Company. '

Note 16 — Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instru ments

The following methods and assumpuons were used 10 estimate the fair, value of each class of financial
instruments for.which it is practicable to estimate falr value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Accrued Interest Receivabl: and Payable

For theseAshort-term in"sfmments, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.
Securities . ‘

For bot'h available for sale and held to maturity securities, fair values are based on qhoted market prices.
Loans |

Fair values are estimated for portfolios of loans with similar financial characteristics. The total loan portfolio is
first divided into performing and non-performing categories. Persorming loans are then segregated into
adjustable and fixed rate interest terms. Fixed rate loans are segriiented by type, such as construétion and land
development, other loans secured by real estate, commercial and industrial loans, and loans to individuals.

Certain types, such as commercial loans and loans to mdlv:duals are funther segmented by matunty and type of
collateral, :

For performing loans, fair value is catculated by discounting scheduled future cash flows through estimated
maturity using a discount rate equivalent to the rate at which the 13ank would currently make loans which are
similar with regard to collateral, maturity, and the type of borrow:r. The discounted value of the cash flows is
reduced by a credit risk adjustment based on internal loan classifizations.

For non-performing toans, fair value is calculated by first reducing the carrying value by a credit risk
adjustment based on internal loan classifications, and then discounting the estimated future cash flows from the

remaining carrying value at the rate at which the Bank would cun ently make similar loans to creditworthy
borrowers.

Federal Home Loan Bank of New York Stock

The cé:*rying amount of the Federal Home Loan Bank of New Yark stock is equal to its fair value.
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Note 16 — Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instraments (Continued)
Deposit Liabilities

The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as non-interest-bearing demand deposits, money market
accounts, interest checking accounts, and savings accounts is equal to the amount payable on demand. Time
deposits are segregated by type, size, and remaining maturity. The fair value of time deposits is based on the
discounted value of contractual cash flows. The discount rate is equivalent to the rate currently offered by the
Bank for deposits of similar size, type and maturity. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, accrued interest payable
of $27,000 and $19,000, respectively, is included in deposit liabilities.

Borrowed Funds
The fair value of the Bank’s borrowed funds is estimated based on the discounted value of future contractual
payments. The discount rate is equivalent to the estimated rate at which the Bank could currently obtain similar
financing.

Off-Balance-Sheet Financial Instruments

The fair value of commitments to extend credit is estimated based on an analysis of the interest rates and fees
currently charged to enter into similar transactions, considering the remaining terms of the commitments and the
credit-worthiness of the potential borrowers. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the estimated fair values of these
off-balance-sheet financial instruments were immaterial.

The carrying amounts and estimated fair value of our financial instruments are as follows:

December 31,

2007 2006
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
{In Thousands)
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 39,146 $ 39,146 % 36,749 $ 36,749
Securities available for sale 320 320 355 355
Securities held to maturity 2,875 2,890 27,455 27,468
Loans receivable 283,133 286,213 201,306 196,020
FHLB stock 414 414 399 390
Accrued interest receivable 1,340 1,340 1,101 1,101
Financial liabilities:
Deposits 225,978 228,605 188,592 - 187,919
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Note 17 — Parent Company Only Financial Information

The following are the condensed financial statements for Northeas: Community Bancorp (Parent company onty)

as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and for the periods then ended.

Statements of Financial Condition

Assets
Cash and due from banks

" Securities held to maturity

Investment in subsidiary
ESOP loan receivable
Other assets
Total Assets
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Accounts payable and accrued expense
Total Liabilities

Total Stockholders’ Equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Statéments of Income¢:

Interest income — securities

Interest income — interest- earning deposits
Interest income — ESOP loan

Operating expenses

Income before Income Tax Expense and Equity in
Undistributed Earnings of Subsidiary

Income tax expense

Income before Equity in Undistributed
Earnings of Subsidiary

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary

Net Income
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December 31,
2007 . 2006
(In Thousands)
$ 25,187 $ 9,533
o~ 14,916
79,282 67,662
4,762 4877
- 3
$109,231 $96,991
S 402 _ $240
402 240
108,829 96,751
$109,231 $96,991
July 5, 2006
Year Ended (Inception) to
December 31, December 31,
2007 2006
{In Thousands)

§ 402 $ 307
780 149
402 210

(276) (90)
1,308 576
522 226
786 350
11,351 399
$12,137 $ 749




Note 17 — Parent Only Financial Information (Continued)

Statements of Cash Flow
, July 5, 2006
’ Year Ended (Inception) to
December 31, December 31,
2007 2006
. (In Thousands)
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income ' : " $12,137 $ 749
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities: :
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary (11,351) (399)
Amortization of securities discount &4 (307
Decredse (increase) in other assets - ' 3 3)
{Decrease) increase in other liabilities j ' () 240
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities | 703 280
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of securities held to maturity . ' (5,000) (29,609)
Maturities of securities held to-maturity Co 20,000 15,000
Loan to ESOP : - \ ' - (5.184)
Repayment of ESOP loan . L : 115 307
Purchase of Bank capital stock - (28.889)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities ‘ 15,115 (48,375)
Cash Flows from f‘inancing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock - 57,628
Cash dividends paid (164) -
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities ' (164) 57,628
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equiv'alents 15,654 9,533
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning ' 9,533 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending : $ 25,187 $ 9,533

’
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Note 18 — Recent Accounting Pronouncemgqt__& .

FASB Statement No. 141(R) T
» FASB Statement No. 141 (R) “Business Combinations™ was issued in December of 2007. This Statement
" establishes pr1nc1ples and requirements for how the acquirer of a business recognizes and measures in its
financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree. The Statement also provides guidance for recognizing and measuring the goodwill acquired in the
business combination and determines what information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to
evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. The guidance will become effective as of
the beginning of a company’s fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2008 ‘This new pronouncement will
impact the Company’s accounting for business combinations completed beginning January 1, 2009,
A, 1 "
FASB Statement No. 157 '
Ve . v
In September 2006, the FASB issuved Statement No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” ‘which defines fair value
establishes a framework for measuring fair value under GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value
- measurements. FASB Statement No. 157 applies to other accounting pronouncements that require or. permit
fair value measurements. - The new guidance is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
. beginning after November 15, 2007, and for interim periods thhll n those fiscal years, The adoption of FASB

Statement No. 157 is not expected to have a material effect on our ‘consolidated financial position, results of
operations and cash flows. I

.+ In.December 2007, the FASB issued proposed FASB Staff Positicn (FSP) 157-b,“Effective Date 6f FASB
‘Statement No. 157, that would permit a one-year deferral in applying the measurement provisions of Statement
No. 157 to non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities (non-financial items) that are not recognized or
disclosed at fair value in an entity’s financial statements on a recuring basis (at least annually). Therefore, if
the change in fair value of a non-financial item is not required to be recognized or disclosed in the financial -
statements on an annual basis or more frequently, the effective date of application of Statement 157 to that item
is deferred until fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008 and, interim periods within those fiscal years.
This deferral does not apply, however, to an entity that applies Statement 157 in interim or annual financial
statements before proposed FSP 157-b is finalized. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, that
the adoption of FSP 157-b will have on the Company’s operating mcome or net eammgs

I . )

4

FASB Statement No. 158

*On September 29, 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 158, “Eniployers’ ‘Aé¢counting for Défined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans”, which amends Statement 87 and Statement 106 to require recognition
of the over funded or under funded status of pension and dther postietirement benefit plans on the balance sheet.
Under Statement 158, gains and losses, prior service costs and credits, and any remaining transition amounts
under Statement 87 and Statement 106 that have not yet been recognized through net periodic benefit cost will
be recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax effects, until they are amortized as a

- component of net periodic cost. The measurement date — the datz at which the benefit obligation and plan
assets are measured — is required to be thé company’s fiscal yearend. Statement 158 is effective for publicly-
held companies for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2006, except for the measurement date provisions,
which are effective for fiscal years ending after December 13, 2008. The implementation of the measurement
date provisions of Statement 158, effective January 1, 2008, did not have a significant impact on the Company’s
financial condition or results of operations.
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Note 18 — Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)
FASB Statement No. 158 (Continued)

In February 2007, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) FAS 138-1, “Conforming Amendments to the
Iltustrations in FASB Statements No. 87, No. 88, and No 106 and to the Related Staff Implementation Guides.”
This FSP makes conforming amendments to other FASB staternents and staff implementation guides and
provides technical corrections to Statement No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans.” The conforming amendments in this FSP shall be applied upon adoption of
Statement No. 158. The adoption of FSP FAS 158-1 did not have a material impact on our consolidated *
financial statements or disclosures.

FASB Statement No. 159

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities-Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115." Statement No. 159 permits entities
to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. Unrealized gains and
losses o items for which the fair value option has been elected will be tecognized in earnings at each
subsequent reporting date. Statement No. 159 is effective for our Company January 1, 2008. The Company
does not expect the adoption of Statement No. 159 to have a material effect on its consolidated financial
statements,

FASB Statement No. 160

FASB Statement No. 160 “Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements—an amendment of
ARB No. 51" was issued in December of 2007. This Statement establishes accounting and reporting standards
for the non-controlling interest in a subsu:hary and for the-deconsolidation of a subsidiary. The guidance will

. become effective as of the beginning of a company’s fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2008, The
Company is currently evaluating the potenua] 1mpact the new pronouncement will have on its consolidated
financial statements.

Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) 110 .
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 110 (SAB 110) amends and replaces Question 6 of Section D.2 of Topic 14,
“Share-Based Payment,” of the Staff Accounting Bulletin series. Question 6 of Section D.2 of Topic 14
expresses the views of the staff regarding the use of the “simplified” method in developing an estimate of
expected term of “plain vanilta” share options and allows usage of the “simplified” method for share option
grants prior to December 31, 2007. SAB 110 allows public companies which do not have historically sufficient
experience to provide a reasonable estimate to continue use of the “simplified” method for estimating the
expected term of “plain vanilla” share option grants after December 31, 2007. SAB 110 is effective January 1,
2008. As the Company does not presently have a stock option plan, SAB 110 has no present impact.

Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) 06-4 and 06-10

In September 2006, the FASB's Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) issued EITF Issue No. 06-4, "Accounting
for Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split Dollar Life Insurance
Arrangements" ("EITF 06-4"). EITF 06-4 requires the recognition of a liability related to the postretirement
benefits covered by an endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangement. The consensus highlights that the
employer (who is also the policyholder) has a liability for the benefit it is providing to its employee. As such, if
the policyholder has agreed to maintain the insurance policy in force for the employee's benefit during his or her
retirement, then the liability recognized during the employee's active service period should be based on the
future cost of insurance to be incurred duting the employee’s retirement. Alternatively, if the policy holder has
agreed to provide the employee with a death benefit, then the liability for the fuiure death benefit should be
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recognized by following the guidance in SFAS No: 106 or Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opirion No. 12,
as appropriate.
Note 18 — Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

Emergmg Issues Task Force (EITF) 06-4 and 06-10 (Contlmued)
¢ - - 1
For transition, an entity can choose to apply the gl.udance using either of the following approaches (a)a change
. 1in accounting principie.through retrospective application to all periods presented or (b} a change in accounting

principle through a cumulative-effect adjustment to the balance in retained earnings at the beginning of the year
of adoption. This EITF is effective for fiscal years'beginning afte: December 15, 2007, with early adoption
permitted. The Company does not beliéve that the implementation of this guidance will have a material impact
on the Company's consclidated financial statements.

[ i

In March 2007, the FASB ratified Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 06-10 “Accounting for Collateral
Assignment Split-Dollar Life Insurance Agreements" (EITF 06-101). EITF 06-10 provides guidance for
determining a liability for the postrenrement benefit obhgallon as well as recognition and measurement of the
associated asset on the basis of the terms of the collateral assignmant agrecment The requirements of EITF 06-
10 are essentialty equivalent to EITF 06-04 and are effective for f scal years beginning after December 15,
2007. The Company does not believe that the implementation of ths guidance will have a material impact on

the Company 5 consolldated ﬁnanc:a] statements. \

Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) 06-11
In June 2007, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) reached a consensus on Issue No. 06-1 1, “Accountmg for
Income Tax Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based Payment Awards” (“EITF 06-11”). EITF 06-11 states that
an entity should recognize a realized tax benefit, associated with dividends on non-vested equity shares, non-
vested equity share units and outstanding equity share options cherged to retained earnings as an increase in
additional paid in capital. The amount recognized in,additional paid in capital should be included in the pool of
excess tax benefits available to absorb potential future tax deﬁcwucles on share-based payment awards. EITF
06-11 should be applied prospecuvely to income tax benefits of dividends on equity-classified share-based
payment awards that are declared in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007. In the absence of any’
existing share-based compensation plans, the implementation of 11is guidance will not impact on the Company's
consolidated financial statements. Should share-based compensaiion plans be adopted in the future, this
guidance will apply. <

o El v
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Note 19 — Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Interest Income
Interest Expense
Net Interest Income

Provision for Loan Losses
Net Interest Income after Provision
for Loan Losses

Non-Interest Income
Non-Interest Expenses
Income before Income Taxes

Income Taxes
Net Income
Net Income per commeon share
— Basic
Weighted average numbers of
common shares outstanding - basic

Dividends declared per share
[

Interest Income
Interest Expense
Net Interest Income

Provision for Loan Losses
Net Interest Income after Provision
for Loan Losses

Non-Interest Income
Non-Interest Expenses
Income before Income Taxes

Income Taxes
Net Income
Net Income per common share
- Basice
Weighted average numbers of
common shares outstanding — basic
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Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,

2007 2007 2007 2007

(In Thousands,

except for per share data)
$ 3,960 $ 4,126 $ 4,562 $ 4945
1,284 1,332 1,504 1,798
2,685 2,794 3,058 3,147
- 338 - -
2,685 2,456 3,058 3,147
182 19,141 195 249
2,259 2,739 2,362 2,466
608 18,858 891 930
218 8,235 337 360
$ 390 $ 10,623 3 554 5 570
$ 003 $ 0383 $ 004 $ 004
12,736 12,742 12,749 12,758
I 3 - . % 003 $ 003
TS S S TR IR ST PR
Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2006 2006 2006 2006
(In Thousands, except for per
share data)

$3,545 $3,684 $4,111 $4.008
903 1,072 1,225 1,293
2,642 2,612 2,886 2,715
2,642 2,612 2,886 2,715
113 119 179 208
2,035 2,110 2,354 2,371
720 621 711 552
311 271 299 165
$ 409 $ 350 $ 412 $ 387
N/A N/A $ 003 $ 003
N/A N/A 12,723 12,729
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